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NVC Lighting Holding Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) is a leading
supplier of lighting products in China, which is engaged in the
design, development, production, marketing and sale of a wide
variety of lighting products including lamp products, luminaire
products and lighting electronic products. Our products are
sold through the national sales network of 36 exclusive regional
distributors and our 3,634 NVC outlets covering 31 provinces,
municipalities and autonomous regions in China. Our production
bases in China are located in Guangdong, Chongqing,
Zhejiang and Shanghai and we have established research and
development centre in Huizhou. We have set up operation
agencies in more than 40 countries and regions around the
world.

Since the establishment in 1998, we always insist on
independent innovation in product research and development,
and are committed to providing efficient, energy-saving, healthy
and comfortable lighting solutions for the fields of construction,
transportation, urban lighting, supermarket, hotel, office, housing
and industry. We have maintained the leading position in the
market, especially in the commercial lighting sector. On 20 May
2010, the Company’s shares were listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 02222).
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As a professional lighting enterprise, our products and solutions
are selected and used by a number of famous projects and
brands, including the well-known projects such as the 2008
Beijing Olympic Games, the Shanghai World Expo 2010,
Hangzhou G20 Summit, Tianjin Subway, Wuhan-Guangzhou
Highspeed Railway and Shanghai Honggiao Transport Hub, etc.
and also by the world-class hotels such as Hilton, Sheraton
and Intercontinental, and the domestic sales outlets of famous
automotive brands such as Bentley, BMW and Toyota as well
as the garment brands such as Metersbonwe, Septwolves,
K-Boxing and Erdos. In 2011, we became the lighting and
service cooperative partner of the Olympic Council of Asia. We
entered into an agreement to become an “Official Cooperative
Partner of International Swimming Federation” from 2013 to 2017
in 2013 and became the senior sponsor for the 2014 Qingdao
International Horticultural Exposition.

The Group has devoted itself to beautify the commercial and
living space with artificial lighting and protecting the ecological
environment with environmentally-friendly and energy-saving
lighting products. Therefore, we have been vigorously promoting
the research and development and applications of advanced
lighting technologies, accomplishing its brand beliefs and
commitments with excellence and expertise.
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Revenue
Gross profit
Gross profit margin (Note 1)
Profit/(loss) before income tax
Profit/(loss) margin before income tax
(Note 1)
Profit/(loss) for the year (Note 2)
Net profit/(loss) margin (Note 1)
Profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Note 1: Gross profit margin equals to gross profit divided by revenue;
profit/(loss) margin before income tax equals to profit/(loss)
before income tax divided by revenue; net profit/(loss) margin
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2017E
RMB'000
w[0 A

4,063,163
1,172,858
28.9%
435,856

10.7%
g2 o 331,600
EoWI o 8.2%

314,268
17,332

equals to profit/(loss) for the year divided by revenue.

Note 2: Profit/(loss) for the year represents profit before netting off

profit for the year attributable to non-controlling interests.

U120 31 URE

2016 2015 2014 2013
2016 E 2015 2014 E 2013E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
w[0E w[0E w[O0 A& w[0E
3,806,329 3,845,650 3,471,014 3,773,816
1,020,958 901,005 741,576 797,403
26.8% 23.4% 21.4% 21.1%
254,054 203,088 (314,587) 354,458
6.7% 5.3% (9.1%) 9.4%
178,583 127,737 (328,068) 282,107
4.7% 3.3% (9.5%) 7.5%
150,928 55,759 (354,153) 244,884
27,655 71,978 26,085 37,223
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Non-current assets

Current assets

Current liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Total equity

Including:

Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Current ratio (Note 1)

Note 1:

Current ratio equals to current assets divided by current

liabilities.
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2017E
RMB'000
w0 A

1,836,115
3,637,201
2,043,767
1,593,434
3,429,549

99,320
3,330,229

3,242,052
88,177
1.78
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2016
2016 E
RMB'000
w0 A

1,346,409
3,598,264
1,635,629
1,962,635
3,309,044

535,369
2,773,675

2,703,481

70,194
2.20

cW1j

2015
2015E
RMB'000
w[O0 A

1,221,748
3,645,816
1,313,771
2,332,045
3,553,793

97,764
3,456,029

3,316,907
139,122
2.78

t a ot
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2014
2014
RMB’000
w0 A

1,304,846
3,206,593
1,043,726
2,162,867
3,467,713

101,104
3,366,609

3,247,462
119,147
3.07

*dot

2013
2013 E
RMB'000
w0 A

1,312,316
3,456,658

900,279
2,556,379
3,868,695

108,070
3,760,625

3,676,870
83,755
3.84
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NVC Lighting signed strategic cooperation
agreements with Shaohaihui* (C O) jointly
sponsored by Haier Home Integration* ( '«
¢) and other enterprises, and Youzhu Website*
(P c), thus entering the ecosphere of the

smart home.

6 U/June
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NVC Lighting's brand value of RMB20.685

billion ranked among China's Top 500
Most Valuable Brands.

4 U/April

IEd{0 "K,£E*7
«7LED " 6-30 Vv f
Huizhou NVC ranked among China’s Top
30 enterprises in terms of LED technology
innovation in the “Fourth LED Pioneering
Award of China” (K, £« 7LED / 6 n).
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The first prize was awarded for Huizhou
NVC’'s “Nightscape Lighting Project for
Riverside Landscape Belt of Hangzhou
Qianjiang Century City™* ( E9z&31i16
€{Hme+{ki"Q)in the “China Lighting
Award — Lighting Engineering Design Award”*
(ekkia Nkiu~0£ n).
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of NVC
Lighting Holding Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present to
you the 2017 annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”).

In 2017, the global economy improved as a whole, and China’s
economy became the bellwether of global economic growth. The
“Belt and Road Initiative” of the PRC government was promoted
in an orderly manner. This brought about large energy-saving
reconstruction demands to LED lighting enterprises. Meanwhile,
market competition in the LED lighting industry was increasingly
fierce. Especially in recent years, certain metallic raw material,
components and parts and labor costs increased continuously,
leading to shrinkage in profitability of manufacturing enterprises.
LED manufacturing enterprises can only improve the quality,
efficiency and core competitiveness and realize their sustainable
development eventually through internal in-depth technical
improvement or product mix adjustment, or through achieving
scale economy and driving up the entry barrier via external
horizontal merger and acquisition, or through optimization and
integration of upstream and downstream resources via vertical
merger and acquisition. Therefore, transformation is an inevitable
choice for many manufacturing enterprises.

Attributable to the advantages as the No. 1 brand in the
domestic lighting industry, the extensive and profound layout of
sales channels, as well as the comprehensive cost reduction and
efficiency improvement in internal management, the Group made
satisfactory growth in results in 2017.

. Sales revenue amounted to RMB4,063,163,000,
representing an increase of 6.7% as compared with the
Corresponding Period;

. Gross profit amounted to RMB1,172,858,000,
representing an increase of 14.9% as compared with the
Corresponding Period;

. Profit attributable to owners of the parent amounted to
RMB314,268,000, representing an increase of 108.2% as
compared with the Corresponding Period;

. The sales revenue of LED lighting products amounted to
RMB3,165,613,000, representing an increase of 17.4% as
compared with the Corresponding Period.
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In 2018, the Group will continue to develop business all over
the world, conduct comprehensive and in-depth reforms in
domestic and overseas sales channel expanding as well as
internal management improvement, gradually transform itself
from a manufacturing enterprise to a channel enterprise, devote
itself to commercial lighting, home lighting, kitchen & bathroom
and township channels, strive to become the first brand of smart
lighting solution provider, and achieve the ultimate mission of
using innovative technology and artistic design to bring people
an infinitely beautiful living experience space.

Domestic sales

In the field of domestic commercial lighting, the Group will
continue to be professional and dedicated, devote itself to
creating a differentiated and leading integrated solutions
provider that specializes in professional lighting, key clients and
major projects. In terms of professional lighting, the Group will
continue to strengthen and perfect the 400-project system, set
up a channel engineering department to be responsible for the
construction and management of exclusive regional distributors’
project operation system so as to achieve the full coverage of
project managers of core prefecture-level cities; establish one-
on-one invisible channel design system, enhance the business
reputation through the invisible channel, change from the initiative
sales to users’ selection; focus on spotlights, lamp panels, spot
luminaries and other product lines, ensure that key products rank
first in market share. In terms of key clients, the Group will focus
on the top 20 clients in real estate and stores, and initially set
up a dual-channel model of direct sales with key clients project
system.
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In the field of domestic home lighting, the Group will continue to
expand and deepen its channels. In 2018, it plans to establish
350 exclusive outlets and refurbish 230 outlets. In the meantime,
the Group will initiate “500 Plan”, establish 500 exclusive outlets
with respective area of more than 500 square meters and
respective retail sales of more than RMB5 million, introduce
four-standardization (terminal image standardization, display
standardization, store operations standardization, commodity
operations standardization) management system into exclusive
regional distributors to help them enhance user-centered retail
management skills. In terms of channel promotion, in 2018 the
Group plans to conduct more than 10,000 regular promotion
activities such as “Factory Buying”, “Lamp Replacement for
Good” and “Plumbers”, and use online media promotion to
introduce online retail clients to exclusive outlets, directly
promoting the terminal sales.

The kitchen & bathroom and township channels newly developed
over the past two years will also become a key part of the
strategic development of the Group in 2018. With the rapid
development of the real estate industry and the upgrading of
residents’ consumption level in recent years, the integrated
ceiling has been transformed from the ceiling of a single kitchen
and bathroom to the “whole house custom-made” ceiling of the

living room, dining room, hallway, balcony and bedroom. In 2018,
the Group will take the opportunities in the industry and market
to promote the investment of integrated houses, enter into the
market through whole house ceiling and fully enter into the
medium to high-end market of the ceiling industry. At the same
time, the Group will strengthen its strategic cooperation with
large-scale real estate developers and whole-house assembly
platforms to provide customized kitchen and bathroom products,

and prosper kitchen and bathroom channel. In terms of township
channels, in 2018 the Group plans to set exclusive outlets in the
Top 100 and Top 1000 towns, populated towns and southeastern

coastal towns, provide training and policy support through

standardized store management to assist exclusive outlets in the
integration of plumber resources, set up E-commerce platforms
in township channel to build the Group’s township channel into a
service provider that provides clients with basic design and one-
stop water and electricity decoration.
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Overseas sales

In terms of expanding the overseas channels, the Group will
continue focusing on channel expansion and breakthrough
in engineering projects, and attach importance to expanding
channels in Southeast Asia, other developing countries and Gulf
countries in Middle East. As for channel expansion, by virtue
of the talent resources in Southeast Asia and the back support
of the Middle East office, the Group will assist the distributors
in Indonesia to complete the development of 200 secondary
distributors, and assist the Gulf countries in Middle East to
complete the layout of 100 sales outlets. Meanwhile, the Group
innovates upon the marketing models, and enters the markets
of Italy and surrounding countries by franchising model, in an
attempt to develop 10 franchised outlets in major cities of Italy.
The Group is also considering extending its sales channels into
North America markets in order to increase its overseas sales.
As for engineering projects, the Group will establish the key
project follow-up team, so as to offer support in technology,
personnel and specialized product development for seizing
major overseas engineering projects such as “Yogyakarta Court
in Indonesia”, “World Cup Main Stadium in Qatar”, “2020 World
Expo in UAE”, “Royal Docks in London”, etc. Meanwhile, by
virtue of the favorable policy of “Belt and Road Initiative”, the
Group will strengthen cooperation with Tsinghua Design Institute,
the “Belt and Road Initiative” Industry Alliance of the Chinese
Academy of Sciences, etc., and integrate the products, R&D
and back support resources within the Group to participate in
the “Belt and Road Initiative” projects such as “Construction of
Luang Prabang New City in Laos”, “Road Lamp Replacement in
Sri Lanka”,”Coal-fired Power Plant in Dubai”, etc., in an effort to
make some breakthroughs.

.V

T .-8Rejdl« Z1fsSE
- 8Re¢ " 0°fENCM
T-¢lliee7eg¢ées D
7efa8Rejdl« Z>? 1
[ Uge 1+ (O5dX
?™M53%V
idX?e D7¢¢0
cgl..i«U6- V]|Iid™ }
i otU7eg$¢% |[1T]db
FGE« ™ }:6 197

¢¥% 3fl«e u yGZIV/=
8Re O9 dg# « Y
VIXTTa°fjl« Z\

A 0°f' tf\d% ™50 "
™ 86'0¢°06 e ™ L

20200E 306 ™;,"Pg-esA~™

} .CacfY'®d6! e
pe$>*U8iI0jieU>2e7
"SmS)M™MYP;A dl« Z~0
6£ 6e+AESmMS)*8L"

v¥*d« « «A*Ue¥ig
(65 Ud ~~UA{EO -
I E™MEvV T YRAel ™"

Oxebieg™ SmS)°fdbE
POENf

AsR

+0200+2Zt%V 3
100V /

10 $



Lo (

UP®eU&dI« m>B¢e7
kit 82"UD ¢ OA+Lj¢zA
Ubd 2018 < 7 t X 6
da‘@?0e+z €[Dao™e7Kk
Ub\E },ed{ 20tEEQ-z
t ]JYyUbpa2fe«Udl«
Zgl—-éel “el”""Y"
pki,”"izk™M-e¢s,db6Y8Y
0U OUéd m 8Y810©-
(-@~]r£f 2e£ &1 (¢
¥*dXI£ }ad _UDYpu”
1©«f

2018 E 1« Z 72 %i%Ole
i¢%01e®..%01¢[ %O
Y% O1°*Y2pjd A v
fedte g}, (Y U™ -q
EX¥TY%i;(jdl« ZAEY«A
Ud\ «/%0GEdAY A¥«
cO 8kiu"0$>*U¢eC, o
*U8i.de/Y%m0épPZm &
Al8[z-0q pki Y%
Gdt }e-*U°t-¢¢ }
«-P\ {]ed3%« }FkU
“%a-0pflt; (U &d 2018E
l« Z?6 U -¢«06 Ya
EOEBHItQY E1..d(
"@E¥7EqJt Ud mZzZta
O U 0d¥%s$ 80%gjY ~&
U:™ &a.d 2018EpzjbpJta
Ud-@B-¢ 9«.Y!1t¢Z
Gtl; (d¥%$6Ii « 0

Uc(i«.Y!1 .q



existing standardized call center in 2018, thus enhancing the
systematic degree of business handling process; meanwhile,
the Group will present the after-sales service platform system,
so as to complete the development of user management,
order management, service provider management, engineer
management and assistant management modules, optimize
the quick response mechanism, and upgrade the customer
satisfaction.

The extensive and well-arranged channel resources have always
been the precious treasure of the Group. In the future, the Group
will use such channel advantages to gradually transform into
a channel enterprise. The Group will plan to realize the mutual
integration of online and offline channels by getting through the
online channels; transform the offline channels and strengthen
control of the exclusive regional distributors, so as to master
the initiative power for engineering projects; initiate a new era of
strategic transformation by creating sub-brands or introducing
other matured brands, so as to create a new era of strategic
restructuring of the Group.

Acknowledgement

Our stable development for more than 10 years depends on
the wholehearted contributions and persistent support from the
Board and all staff members. | would like to express my heartfelt
thanks to the long-term support of all shareholders, clients,
suppliers and distributors. In the future, we will strive forward
steadily as in the past with full responsibility to all shareholders,
clients, suppliers and distributors, with an aim to make NVC a
world-wide respected brand and secure satisfactory results to
repay the support from various sectors.

WANG Donglei
Chairman

Hong Kong
22 March 2018
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In 2017, the global economy grew faster. The growth rate of
developed economies, such as the Eurozone, the United States
and Japan, was better than the expectation, while the relatively
quick growth of emerging markets and developing economies
became the major impetus stimulating global economic recovery.
Therefore, the global economy achieved the best performance
this year as compared to recent years. In spite of the highlights
in global economy, the long-term low interest rate environment of
developed countries, the continuous accumulation of global debt
level and the three consecutive interest rate hikes by the Board
of Governors of The Federal Reserve System, etc. all became
the uncertainty factors inhibiting the continuous growth of global
economy.

Under the background of the overall upturn of the global
economy, the 2017 Gross Domestic Product in the PRC enjoyed
a growth rate of 6.9% as compared with the Corresponding
Period, which realized the first upswing since the downward
economic growth rate in 2011, reflecting that Chinese economy
has become the bellwether of global economic growth.
Meanwhile, as the Chinese government further implemented the
“Belt and Road Initiative” strategy, the export volume of lighting
products in China kept rising. According to the Monthly Report
on Export of LED Lighting Products in China, during January to
November 2017, the amount of LED lighting products exported
by Chinese enterprises totaled to US$19.76 billion, representing
an increase of 5.4% on a year-on-year basis; meanwhile, due
to the lower power consumption level, developing countries
alongside the “Belt and Road Initiative” had huge demand for
LED energy-saving lighting products. “Belt and Road Initiative”
has become the new blue ocean of export for the Chinese LED
lighting enterprises having the cost-effective products and great
overseas marketing capability (Data Source: Semiconductor
Lighting Network).
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As one of the eleven emerging industries in the PRC, the pattern
of LED industry tended to be clear and the industry concentration

degree became increasingly high through the rapid development
in the recent years. However, the continuous increase in the cost
of metallic raw materials, elements and labor led to the shrinkage
of profit space. Therefore, the LED manufacturers can eventually
improve quality, enhance efficiency and raise core competence,
and achieve sustainable development only by the internally in-
depth technological upgrade or adjustment of product mix, or by

the externally horizontal mergers and acquisitions to realize scale
economy and enhance entry barriers, or by vertical mergers and
acquisitions to realize optimization and integration of upstream
and downstream resources.

Attributable to the advantages as the No. 1 brand in the
domestic lighting industry, the extensive and profound layout
of sales channels, as well as the comprehensive cost reduction
and efficiency improvement in internal management, the Group
made satisfactory growth in results during the Reporting
Period. In terms of channel expansion, the Group continued
to implement resolutely the full channel development model
with a focus on “commercial and home lighting” and gradually
strengthened the control and expansion of the channel, such
as continuously intensifying the 400 engineering system in the
commercial lighting sector, effectively expanding project reserves
and upgrading project conversion rate, and successfully winning
or participating in winning bids for lots of large-scale national
outdoor engineering projects. As for the home lighting sector,
the Group continued strengthening terminal retail capability and
independent design and R&D capability, thereby seizing market
shares from various market segments by applying product
differentiation strategies. During the Reporting Period, the kitchen
and bathroom electric appliance channel performed well, which
provided customers with the overall house integrated solutions
by optimizing the product mix. In addition, the Group succeeded
in entering the engineering fields, conducted strategic partnership
with numerous famous real estate developers, and finally doubled
the results. Meanwhile, the Group started to focus on the
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extensive township channel and market, and initiated the plans
of establishing exclusive outlets in towns, so as to expand the
sales channels and fill up the gap of exclusive outlets in towns.
In terms of internal quality increase and efficiency improvement,
the Group’s overall profitability was remarkably enhanced
through implementation of the four cost saving measures for
reducing R&D cost, manufacturing cost, purchasing cost and
labor cost. In addition, through integrating internal resources and
optimizing the organizational framework, the Group established
the corresponding logistics platform, customer service platform
and R&D platform system, which provided powerful back-end
guarantee for the overall and orderly operation of the Group.

Sales and distribution

As for the NVC Brand in the PRC market, the Group had
exclusive cooperation with 36 regional distributors during the
Reporting Period. These exclusive regional distributors had a
total of 3,634 exclusive outlets (100.0% coverage rate in the
provincial capital, 93.36% coverage rate in the prefecture-level
cities, 64.96% coverage rate in the county-level cities and 1.45%
coverage rate in the town centers), and 3,733 counters (these
counters were mainly located in township channels). During
the Reporting Period, the Group adopted different marketing
strategies by dividing the exclusive outlets into commercial
lighting exclusive outlets, home lighting exclusive outlets, and
commercial lighting & home lighting integrated outlets. As for
the commercial lighting sector, the Group continued focusing
on the implementation of the “400 Plan”, so as to establish
400 key engineering project distributor teams nationwide to
support the engineering projects. During the Reporting Period,
the Group made fruitful achievements in engineering projects,
and successfully won or participated in winning bids for lots of
major projects including “Beijing Sub City Center”, “Hong Kong-
Zhuhai-Macao Bridge Zhuhai Port”, “Qingdao Municipal Lighting
Project”, “Spring Festival Gala Zhuhai Sub-Venue” and “Chengdu
Metro Line 77, and entered into a long-term strategic partnership
agreement with Evergrande Real Estate Group Co., Ltd. to carry
out comprehensive strategic cooperation. Moreover, the Group
further reinforced the construction of invisible channels during
the Reporting Period, cooperated with 892 organizations and
gathered more than 2,500 designers to share their lighting design
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cases and concepts by sponsoring “Zhurong Award” National
Lighting Designers Competition, which effectively activated the
designer resources in different regions. As for the home lighting
sector, the Group has continued to implement the product
differentiation strategy and establish the stylistic exclusive outlets
to deeply dig out the potential various market segments. As a
result, our home lighting products have preliminarily achieved
the full-channel and all-user covered network advantages.
Meanwhile, the Group proactively promoted the innovation in
marketing models, established the “7S” customer experience
marketing system (including shop experience system, case
experience system, product experience system, service
experience system, visual experience system, participation
experience system and evaluation experience system) covering
thousands of outlets, and carried out twenty-one “7S” trainings
covering 1,016 exclusive outlets, thereby remarkably enhancing
the sales capabilities of shopping guides in these outlets.

In respect of the international NVC Brand market, continuous
efforts have been made to implement the globalization process
of NVC brand during the Reporting Period. For instance, the
Group conducted further channel expansion, independently
created demands and successfully carried out various
engineering projects in matured channels like UK. While the
Middle East office started to operate during the Reporting
Period, which enhanced understanding and control of the local
market and dug out product demands and market potential,
thereby providing market and technical support for distributors
in the Middle East region. During the Reporting Period, the
Group successfully won the bid for key engineering projects
such as “Beverly Hills in Qatar”, “Al Ghurai Apartment Complex
in Dubai”, “University of Kuwait”, etc. Meanwhile, the Group
organized various brand marketing activities, such as major
client recommendation event in Middle East, product show in
Qatar and Kuwait, opening ceremony of new exclusive outlets in
Kuwait, which have won favorable reputation. As for Southeast
Asia and other developing channels, the Group paid attention to
strengthening development of new customers and advancing the
progress of engineering projects. During the Reporting Period,
the Group has successfully developed distributorship resources
in Indonesia, Brunei and lItaly, and successfully participated in the
first “Belt and Road Initiative Coal-fired Power Plant” and “NVC
Full Solutions for Diamond Twin Tower Project” in Vietnam and
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Cambodia respectively. Meanwhile, the Group started to make
preparations for establishing the “Belt and Road Initiative” Project
Team so as to occupy more project resources alongside the One
Belt One Road. However, sales contributions in some regions
were limited as the Group just started operation there. During the
Reporting Period, some engineering projects were not delivered
on schedule, leading to the decrease in the international sales
turnover of the NVC Brand as compared to the Corresponding
Period.

As for the non-NVC Brand in the PRC and international market,
the Group mainly supplied the well-known lighting enterprises
with energy-saving lamps, energy-saving light tubes and other
accessories in the form of ODM. During the Reporting Period, the
Group specialized in serving major clients in North America and
Europe, and continuously strengthened input of market resources
to develop new clients. By virtue of the favorable opportunities
arising from LED lighting products that gradually dominated the
market, the Group gradually promoted the LED lighting products
to enter the sales channels of major clients by utilizing the cost,
technology and scale strengths, thus increasing the percentage
of LED lighting products in sales. During the Reporting Period,
the sales revenue of non-NVC brand products increased by
12.4% as compared with the Corresponding Period.

Product research, development and design

The Group endeavored to improve the comprehensive
competitiveness of products mainly by R&D of new products and
cost optimization and reduction. During the Reporting Period,
the Group established a quick response mechanism, which was
oriented on the market demands, and successfully developed
160 indoor products and specialized products for outdoor
engineering, including key product series such as “Cezanne
Hotel Spot Luminaries (e&e a3 f)”, “Vi-domi Spot Luminaries

(j=~0 n)", “Lingke Series (i 0¢°)",
b 0", and “Gaosi Series (+v(+)". The Group improved

the outdoor engineering products and successfully applied

“Lingshi Series (7

to outdoor engineering projects such as “Qingdao Municipal
Lighting Project”, “Zhuhai Night Scene Lighting Project” and
“Bangbu Olympic Sports Center”, and accumulated strong
delivery capability of engineering products. Under the initial
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framework of the smart lighting control system, the Group
completed the development of the new track system 1.0 during
the Reporting Period. As for cost optimization, the Group
continued to promote the platform orientation, standardization,
modularization and series reform of the products, optimized
the power configuration platform, and improved the flickering
phenomenon. As a result, some products become flickering
free. Meanwhile, the Group promoted the upgrade of light
source platform, and obviously enhanced lighting effect of the
products. In addition, the continual optimization of the LED912
spot luminaries automation project made the production capacity
increase by 15% as compared with the Corresponding Period,
and lead to sharp shrinkage of labor cost. In addition, the Group
filed 303 new patent applications during the Reporting Period
and together the Group had 233 successful patent application
cases.

Brand promotion and honor

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued implementing
the core brand concept of “Expert in Luminous Environment”,
and devoted to creating the No. 1 brand of the lighting solution
service providers in the era of Internet. During the Reporting
Period, the Group with the brand value of RMB20.685 billion was
elected by the World Brand Lab as one of the “14th China’s 500
Most Valuable Brands” again and remained the No.1 brand in the
lighting industry for 6 consecutive years, reflecting the Group’s
powerful brand strength and influence. During the selection
of the Twelfth China Lighting Award held in September 2017,
the Group’s “G20 Hangzhou Qianjiang Century City Lighting
Project” won the “First Prize of China Lighting Award” with its
amazing design and prominent overall lighting solution capability.
Meanwhile, the Group was also honored as “Leading Brand
of the Industry” of the 2017 China lighting industry, “Top 30
Enterprises for LED Technological Innovation in China” and “2016
Top 100 Enterprises of LED Lighting Industry in China”, which
fully reflected the highly social recognition of NVC brand, and
further enhanced our brand reputation. In addition, the Group
further promoted the globalization process of the brand by
means of advertising, media reporting and sponsoring the FINA
Diving World Series, and the influence of NVC brand among the
public was gradually deepening by carrying out activities such as
“Zhurong Award” China Lighting Application Design Competition,
interview of the Group’s President by the CCTV Dialogue TV
programme.
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Progress of Litigation

Since December 2014, a subsidiary of the Company (the
“Subsidiary”) initiated a series of court proceedings in the PRC
against Mr. WU Changjiang, a former director and the former
chief executive officer of the Company, and other persons
in relation to a number of alleged pledges and guarantees
entered into by Mr. WU Changjiang purportedly on behalf of the
Subsidiary, and certain counter-guarantees provided by a PRC
company. During the Reporting Period, the Subsidiary was also
a co-defendant in three PRC court actions commenced by two
PRC banks and a finance company, respectively, in relation to
several alleged pledges and guarantees purportedly entered
into by Mr. WU Changjiang. Please refer to the Company’s 2016
annual report and 2017 interim report for details.

In relation to one of the aforementioned court actions
commenced by a PRC bank against the Subsidiary as a
co-defendant, certain funds held by the Subsidiary had been
frozen by such PRC bank. In April 2016, Chongqing Fifth
Intermediate People’s Court issued a judgment, which, among
other things, ordered that the Subsidiary was jointly liable with
another PRC company for the payment of RMB60,000,000,
plus interest and costs, to such PRC bank. The Company filed
an appeal against such judgment with the Chongqing Higher
People’s Court. In early 2017, the Company received the
judgment of the Chongqing Higher People’s Court which rejected
the Subsidiary’s appeal and upheld the first instance judgment.
Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 27 February
2017 for details. The Subsidiary subsequently filed an application
of retrial of the relevant PRC court judgments (please refer to
the Company’'s 2017 interim report) but its application was
rejected by the Chongqing Higher People’s Court. The Subsidiary
has recently filed an application of protest with the Chongging
People’s Procuratorate to overturn the relevant judgments
and for a retrial of this matter. The outcome of the protest
application, according to the official legal documents received
by the Subsidiary, is pending as of the date of approval of these
financial statements.
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The Group’s Main Products

The Group focuses on developing creative R&D capability,
providing professional and optimized LED lighting solutions, and
aim to promote the national energy-saving, emission-reduction
scheme and enhance green lighting industry forward to more
sustainable, healthy and well-regulated growth. The revenue from
LED lighting products account for more than 78% of the Group’s
total revenue.

The Group’s product can be divided into three segments: lamp
products, luminaire products and lighting electronic products.
The luminaire products mainly designed for 2 applications:
commercial lighting luminaire products and home lighting
luminaire products. Main product of commercial lighting include:
downlights, ceiling lights, spotlights, panel lights, batten lights,
flood lights, wall lights, garden lights, bollard, in-ground lights,
underwater lights, street lights, tunnel lights and emergency
lights series, which can be widely used in the large conference
halls, hotels, supermarkets, offices, landed properties, roads and
airports etc. Main product of home lighting include: aluminum
lights, candle lights, wrought iron lights, flat-panel low-voltage
lights, brass lights, Acrylic lights, kitchen and bathroom series
etc, which can be widely used in the living room, dining room,
bed room, children’s room, kitchen, bathroom, balcony and many
other indoor applications.
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Samples of Main Products of Commercial Lighting Luminaire:
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Samples of Main Products of Commercial Lighting Luminaire:
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Batten Light Series Panel Light Series Street Light Series
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Samples of Main Products of Home Lighting Luminaire
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Financial Review
Revenue

Revenue represents the invoiced value of goods sold, after
allowances for returns and trade discounts. During the Reporting
Period, the revenue of the Group increased by 6.7% from the
Corresponding Period to RMB4,063,163,000. In particular, the
LED lighting products recorded revenue of RMB3,165,613,000
with an increase of 17.4% from the Corresponding Period.

Revenue by product segments
The table below sets forth the revenue by product segments

(luminaire, lamp and lighting electronic products) and the growth
rate of each segment.
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Revenue by geographical locations, NVC brand sales and 2@# Acd{UBP~¢d{UDPV

non-NVC brand sales /E+Yx]

The table below sets forth the revenue by geographical locations, h@E1.2@0# A¢d{UDP*Uq
NVC brand products and non-NVC brand products and the ¢Cd{UDP*UE=+YV/x]¢ste
growth rate of each item. Our non-NVC brand products primarily fY#— f¢cAYCd{UDP*USb
consist of ODM products. _ODM*U\Of

Years ended 31 December
U120 31URE
2016  Growth rate

2016 E #—

RMB’000

w[O A&
Sales revenue from PRC 8 «7YV/x]
NVC brand d{Ub 2,316,747 9.8%
Non-NVC brand ¢d{UbD 313,080 (14.9%)
Subtotal / 2,629,827 6.9%
Sales revenue from international 8 7¢YV/x]

market

NVC brand d{Ub 387,859 (27.6%)
Non-NVC brand ¢d{UD 788,643 23.3%
Subtotal / 1,176,502 6.5%
Total ¥ 3,806,329 6.7%



Revenue by LED lighting products and non-LED lighting 2LEDk i *Uq¢ LEDk i *U=+ A
products E +

The table below sets forth our revenue from LED lighting hE&1«2LEDku*Uqg¢ LEDK @
products and non-LED lighting products and the growth rate of *UE+Yx]¢etofY# — f
each item.

Years ended 31 December
U120 31URE
2016  Growth rate

2016 E #—
RMB’000
w[O A&
LED lighting products LEDkU*U 2,696,868 17.4%
Non-LED lighting products ¢LEDKku*U 1,109,461 (19.1%)
Total ¥ 3,806,329 6.7%

During the Reporting Period, the sales of LED lighting products 6 SE «dLEDkU*0V/#

increased by 17.4%, and the sales of non-LED lighting products —17.4% d ¢LEDk U * U V / h %
decreased by 19.1%, mainly because the Group grasped the 19.1%d6 Jl« ° LEDk U
favorable opportunity in the rising consumer demands and 8 16E¢9 A joeyp;U

market penetration of the LED lighting industry, and successfully >d-@5f v LEDku-U%ie
seized the market share of LED lighting products by continuously -8RB+¢9 U33]dO &
strengthening the R&D of new LED lighting products, expansion LEDkG*U9 ..Xipa LEDkU
of marketing channels and input of market resources; as affected *OY¢l)FBadAUku*0OV

by the fierce competition of LED lighting products, the sales of /IB5dGkO$a %—YODf
traditional lighting products shrank, the both of which took on a
trading-off trend.



Cost of Sales

Cost of sales mainly consists of the cost of raw materials,
outsourced manufacturing costs, direct and indirect labor costs
and indirect costs. Major raw materials of the Group include
iron, aluminum and alloys, fluorescent powder, glass tubes,
electronics components and LED packaged chips. Outsourced
manufacturing costs primarily include the cost of purchased
semi-finished products and finished products produced by other
manufacturers and used in the production of our products.
Indirect costs primarily include water, electricity, depreciation
and amortisation and others. The table below sets forth the
composition of our cost of sales:

Raw materials a¢ @
Outsourced manufacturing costs [*O1
Labor costs 8601
Indirect costs e YI\
Total ¥

During the Reporting Period, the cost of sales as a percentage to
revenue decreased from 73.2% to 71.1%, the gross profit margin
increased from 26.8% to 28.9%, mainly benefited from, on the
one hand, the adjustment of operating price of some products,
and on the other hand, the positive effect resulting from the four
cost saving measures for reducing R&D cost, purchasing cost,
manufacturing cost and labor cost continuously implemented
by the Group, including strengthening technological upgrade,
structural optimization and improvement of process flow of the
products, adopting public procurement and tendering, dealing
with inactive stocks timely, implementing “Amoeba”operating

model and enhancing lean production management, etc., which
have significantly controlled the costs and improved the overall
gross profit margin level.
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Years ended 31 December

U120 31URE
2016

2016 E
Percentage in

RMB’000 revenue (%)
& x]

w[O A a 7(%)
1,907,153 50.1%
508,702 13.4%
275,305 7.2%
94,211 2.5%
2,785,371 73.2%
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

Gross profit is calculated as the net value of sales revenue less
cost of sales.

During the Reporting Period, gross profit from sales was
RMB1,172,858,000, representing an increase of 14.9% as
compared with the Corresponding Period; gross profit margin of
sales increased from 26.8% to 28.9%.The gross profit and gross
profit margin by segments are as follows:

(i) The table below shows the gross profit and gross profit
margin by product segments (luminaire, lamp and lighting
electronic products):

Luminaire products fiH*U
Lamp products "uU*U
Lighting electronic products ke oe*U

Total ¥

During the Reporting Period, the gross profit margin
of luminaire products increased from 30.9% to 34.5%,
mainly benefited from the positive effect resulting from
the four cost saving measures for reducing R&D cost,
purchasing cost, manufacturing cost and labor cost
continuously implemented by the Group, as well as the
increase in operating price of some luminaire products.
The gross profit margin of lamp products decreased from
16.2% to 12.5%, mainly because on the one hand more
favourable price discounts were offered to major clients in
order to stabilise the order resources of the international
market; and on the other hand, the traditional lamp
products suffered from decline in both sales volumes
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Years ended 31 December

U120 31URE

2016
2016 E
RMB’000 (%)
w[O A& (%)
817,517 30.9%
152,193 16.2%
51,248 23.3%
1,020,958 26.8%

6 SE «dAH*UA&A:;
}309% ) ° 345%d6 J
l« 5f2 Y%i%Ole
®..%01lej¢ %Ol
%Ol ,}%OI£D_{

=00de¢AxtAaH*U6

Yd+i"U*Ua;
}16.2% h % 125% d 6 _
8SU&GLED " U*U % ¢> 7
c9 Up 86 O
»+Y o li$SU&AU
“U*UalLED"U*U)FB
c0$Z {Y..&d¢4E



and prices as affected by the competition with LED lamp
products, thereby leading to the decrease in overall
gross profit margin of lamp products. The gross profit

“U*UAa; h%ipku
e;e*U&a; } 233%j°
247% d 6 J-+a; Y LED
kiiece-0U369 (_{

»0 dog¢le @ YE&
%OIEDsO * YBaf

margin of lighting electronic products increased from
23.3% to 24.7%, mainly attributed to the favorable effect
resulting from the launch of new LED lighting electronic
products with high gross profit margin into the market,
the comprehensive cost saving measures adopted by the
Group, and the impact from the exchange fluctuation.

hE«jOj,ceY2®# A
¢cd{¢cd{UPYa;¢a
products and non-NVC brand products: D

(i) The table below shows the gross profit and gross (i)
profit margin by geographical locations and NVC brand

Years ended 31 December
U120 31URE

2016
2016 E
RMB’000 (%)
w[O A& (%)
Gross profit from c7TVI*[Y
PRC sales: a;j
NVC brand d{Ub 745,727 32.2%
Non-NVC brand ¢d{UD 58,579 18.7%
Subtotal / 804,306 30.6%
Gross profit from 7T¢VI*[Y
international sales: a;j
NVC brand d{ub 78,376 20.2%
Non-NVC brand ¢d{UbD 138,276 17.5%
Subtotal / 216,652 18.4%
Total ¥ 1,020,958 26.8%



(iii)

During the Reporting Period, the gross profit margin
from PRC sales increased from 30.6% to 34.6%, mainly
benefited from the favorable results resulting from the
comprehensive cost saving measures adopted by the
Group, the increase in operating price of some products
and the impact of changes in product mix. The gross
profit margin from international sales decreased from
18.4% to 15.9%, mainly attributed to the more favourable
price discounts offered in order to stabilise the order
share of major clients at the international market, as well
as the decline in the gross profit margin of a subsidiary
of the Group that operated on the international market as
affected by local exchange fluctuation.

The table below sets forth the gross profit and gross profit
margins of LED lighting products and non-LED lighting
products:

LED lighting products LEDki*U
Non-LED lighting products ¢ LED k ii * U
Total gross profit <a;

(iii)
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Years ended 31 December
U120 31URE

2016
2016 E
RMB’000 (%)
w[O & (%)
788,901 29.3%
232,057 20.9%
1,020,958 26.8%



Other income and gains

Our other income and gains mainly consist of rental income,
gain on sales of scrap materials, fair value gain of derivative
component of convertible bonds, gain arising from waiver of
other payables, government grants and interest income (the
breakdown of other income and gains is provided in note 5 to
the consolidated financial statements on page 284 to 285 of
this annual report). We received various types of government
grants in the form of tax subsidies and incentives for research
and development activities and expansion of production capacity
of energy-saving lamp. Government subsidies are provided by
relevant authorities at their discretion, and may not be recurring
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in nature. During the Reporting Period, other income and gains [O £127604w©dd J SE
increased significantly to RMB127,604,000 as compared with the «2 IpAN ["THA .. ®2
Corresponding Period, which was mainly due to the effect from = XxXB¢ €ES5IUDU*>*[Y

the fair value gain of derivative component of convertible bonds xBYBaof

and the gain arising from waiver of other payables during the

Reporting Period.

Selling and distribution costs Vi¢gxVIN

Our selling and distribution costs mainly consist of freight costs, CAYV/igxVINEG <6le
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During the Reporting Period, our administrative expenses
were RMB356,895,000, representing a decrease of 13.5% as
compared with the Corresponding Period, which was mainly
due to the decrease of staff costs, other professional fees and
impairment loss as compared with the Corresponding Period.
Our administrative expenses as a percentage in revenue
decreased from 10.8% to 8.8%.

Other expenses

Other expenses mainly consist of losses on disposal of
property, plant and equipment and scrap, fair value change of
held-for-trading investments, net exchange losses, donation and
other miscellaneous expenses.

Finance costs

Finance costs represent interests on bank loans, interest
expenses on convertible bonds and other interest expenses.

Share of results of associates

This item represents the Group’s share of net profits or net
losses in the associates during the Reporting Period.

Income tax

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s income tax expense
amounted to RMB104,256,000.

Profit for the year (including profit attributable to
non-controlling interests)

Due to the factors mentioned above, our net profit for the year
(including profit attributable to non-controlling interests) was
RMB331,600,000 during the Reporting Period.
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Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations

During the Reporting Period, our exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations were RMB2,136,000. These
exchange differences primarily arose from the translation of
the financial statements of the Company and the overseas
subsidiaries which are denominated in foreign currencies.

Profit attributable to owners of the parent for the year
Due to the factors mentioned above, profit attributable to owners
of the parent was RMB314,268,000 during the Reporting Period.
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests for the

year

During the Reporting Period, profit attributable to non-controlling
interests was RMB17,332,000.
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Cash Flow and Liquidity

Cash flow $-tZ
The table below sets out selected cash flow data from our hEle}CAYY¥  $-t ZE-s -
consolidated statement of cash flows. oY$—-tZplf

31 December

120310
2016
2016 E
RMB’000
w[O A
Net cash flows from operating activities % z O{$-
tZ X 743,483
Net cash flows used in investing activities 3z O\$-
tZ X (782,101)
Net cash flows from financing activities Dz O{$-
tz X 251,968
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents $—-¢$- J
# X 213,350
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year E<$—¢ $— J 917,953
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net o) Ba X 28,852
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the BY¥:$—tZE+O-
consolidated statement of cash flows Y$—-¢$- J 1,160,155
Cash and bank balances classified as E+£% 5P | *Y
assets held for sale $-¢%5- I -
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the 8¥:1l KIE-O-
consolidated statement of financial position Y$—-¢$—- J 1,160,155
At the end of the Reporting Period, the cash and bank balances 81 SE Kdl« Y$—-¢0O
of the Group were mainly denominated in RMB, HK$, GBP, BRL g0 6[0O/Fe¥0Ced@ekE
and US$. The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, d-'¢00 =f[OE" _7
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control [ % |l 0-Efipdihe7«®Y
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment . OM#a7‘¢s Oe/OQO¢su0
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to M#e>dl « X @ -A*t
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to .08 YO Z[OE3I% li

conduct foreign exchange business. - AEf



Liquidity

Net current assets and working capital sufficiency

The table below sets out our current assets, current liabilities and

net current assets as at the end of the Reporting Period.

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade and bills receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Income tax recoverable

Other current assets

Held-for-trading investments

Restricted bank balances and
short-term deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

t *
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31 December

120310

2016
2016 E
RMB’000
w[O A

401,668
1,218,003

343,115
4,596
25,303

445,424



As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, net current
assets of the Group amounted to RMB1,593,434,000 and
RMB1,962,635,000, respectively, and the current ratio was 1.78
and 2.20, respectively. In light of our current liquidity position,
the unutilised banking facilities available to the Group and our
projected cash flows generated from operations, the Directors
believe that we have sufficient working capital for our present
requirements and for the next 12 months.

Capital management

The table below sets out our gearing ratio as at the end of the
Reporting Period.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings Ir>e >5¢
and convertible bonds — liability IPANN AA..
component

Total debt A ¥

Less: cash and cash equivalentsand | $—¢$—- J¢d,A>

short-term deposits (excluding
restricted bank balance)

Net debt A

Total equity attributable to ownersof N®!1pP[D&</AB

the parent

Gearing ratio | Aa

€08a"sSO A

62017 E12 U31 U q2016 E12 U31 U d
l« Y t *< X9 %[O
/1,593,434 w © q [ O A,962,635w
©dt a *+9% 178q220f4a6
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31 December
12 031U

2016
2016 E
RMB’000
w[O A

488,683

488,683

(1,550,183)

N/A
” G \

2,703,481

N/A
” G \




The primary goal of our capital management is to maintain the
stability and growth of our financial position. We regularly review
and manage our capital structure and make corresponding
adjustments, after taking into consideration changes in economic
conditions, our future capital requirements, prevailing and
projected profitability and operating cash flows, projected capital
expenditures and projected strategic investment opportunities.
We manage our capital by monitoring our gearing ratio (which is
calculated as net debt divided by the total equity attributable to
owners of the parent). Net debt is the balance of interest-bearing
loans and convertible bonds — liability component less cash and
cash equivalents and short-term deposits (excluding restricted
bank balances).

Inventories

The balance of inventories represents our balance of stock of
raw materials, work in progress and finished goods as at the

end of the Reporting Period. We monitor our inventories on a

regular basis. For the year ended 31 December 2017, turnover

of average inventories (in days) (average inventories equal to
the inventories at the beginning of the year plus inventories at
the end of the year (after provision), divided by two. Turnover of
average inventories (in days) equals to the average inventories
divided by the cost of sales and then multiplied by 365) was 52.2

days, while it was 58.8 days in 2016.

More details about the inventories are provided in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements on page 322 of this annual
report.
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Trade and bills receivables

Trade receivables of the Group represented proceeds receivable
from sale of goods. The Group’s trading terms with its customers
are mainly on credit, except for new customers where payment
in advance is normally required. The credit periods generally
range from 30 to 180 days for major customers. Each major
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and has
a credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In
view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers,
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
its trade receivables balance. Overdue interests of several trade
receivables are calculated at an annual interest rate of 12%.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, turnover of average trade

and bills receivables (in days) (average trade and bills receivables
equal to the trade and bills receivables at the beginning of

the year plus trade and bills receivables at the end of the year

(before provision), divided by two. Turnover of average trade and

bills receivables (in days) equals to the average trade and bills
receivables divided by revenue and then multiplied by 365) was

118.4 days, while it was 129.4 days in 2016.

More details about the trade and bills receivables are provided in
note 21 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 323
to 326 of this annual report.

Trade and bills payables

During the year ended 31 December 2017, turnover of average
trade and bills payables (in days) (average trade and bills
payables equal to trade and bills payables at the beginning of
the year plus trade and bills payables at the end of the year,
divided by two. Turnover of average trade and bills payables (in
days) equals to average trade and bills payables divided by cost
of sales and then multiplied by 365) was 99.2 days, while it was
89.2 days in 2016.
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More details about the trade and bills payables are provided in
note 26 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 334
to 335 of this annual report.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

More details about the interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
provided in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements on
page 337 of this annual report.

Convertible bonds

More details about the convertible bonds are provided in note
45 to the consolidated financial statements on page 393 to page
396 of this annual report.

Capital expenditure

We funded our capital expenditure with cash generated from
operations and bank loans, and cash generated from issue of
shares or convertible bonds. Our capital expenditure is primarily
related to expenditure on property, plant and equipment, and
other intangible assets. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s
capital expenditure amounted to RMB75,713,000, mainly
attributable to the increase in machinery equipment, moulds,
non-productive equipment and intangible assets.

Off-balance Sheet Arrangement

Except for the derivative component of Convertible Bonds
mentioned in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements
on page 393 to 396 of this annual report, we did not have any
outstanding derivative financial instruments or off-balance sheet
guarantees for outstanding loans. We did not engage in trading
activities involving non-exchange traded contracts.

Capital Commitments
The details of capital commitments are referred to in note 37 to

the consolidated financial statements on page 357 of this annual
report.
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Merger, Acquisition and Investment

On 21 April 2017, the Company formed the Guoyuan China
Growth Investment Fund LP (the “Limited Partnership”) with
Guoyuan Asset Management (Asia) Limited (as the general
partner) by the contribution of USD30,000,000. The Limited
Partnership intends to invest in (including but not limited to)
shares of private companies related to emerging industries
such as the lighting, energy saving, environmentally friendly
industries or private equity funds. Through the Limited
Partnership, the Company will be able to benefit from a wealth
of attractive investment opportunities in the lighting, energy
saving, environmentally friendly industries and achieving
economies of scale and synergies. This can also enhance the
Company'’s ability to grow organically through the effective use of
resources which will save capital expenditure and optimise cash
management, thus improving the overall competitiveness of the
Company. Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
21 April 2017 for more information. During the Reporting Period,
the limited partnership has not yet commenced its external
investment.

On 7 June 2017, Huizhou NVC, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, has entered into a purchase agreement with
Zhuhai Ruiheng Investment Co., Ltd. (the “Vendor”), pursuant
to which Huizhou NVC has agreed to acquire, and the Vendor
has agreed to sell, certain properties at a cash consideration of
RMB345,000,000. The Group intends to use the office buildings,
business exhibition rooms and car parking spaces comprised in
such properties for office purposes. The Group intends to use
such properties as the office for key businesses of the Group
such as household lighting business upon the completion of the
acquisition. The Board considers that the acquisition of such
properties will meet the Group’s rapid business development
demand, achieve rental savings and enable effective appreciation
of the assets of the Group. Please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 7 June 2017 for more information.
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On 12 June 2017, the Board announced that it has resolved
to acquire shares of ETIC (the shares of which are listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 002005) to the
amount of no more than RMB110,000,000 on market before
31 December 2017 with the acquisition price of no more
than RMB5.45 per share of ETIC. Assuming a purchase price
of RMB5.45 per share of ETIC, it is estimated that the total
number of shares of ETIC to be acquired by the Company will
be approximately 20,183,486 shares, representing 1.45% of the
total issued shares of ETIC on 12 June 2017.

Immediately prior to the above acquisition of shares of ETIC,
Mr. WANG Donglei indirectly held 20.94% of the total issued
shares of ETIC and was a substantial shareholder of ETIC. Mr.
WANG Donglei is also the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer
and Executive Director of the Company. Although the Company
shall acquire shares of ETIC on market from the public, such
acquisition was regarded as a connected transaction of the
Company under Rule 14A.28 of the Listing Rules.

ETIC is an important business partner of the Company in its
industrial chain. The strategic investment in ETIC will enhance
the Company’s strategic cooperation relationship with ETIC.
ETIC is focusing on the production and sale of small household
appliances and LED products in the PRC. With a positive outlook
on the LED products market and the future performance of ETIC,
the Company believes that such share acquisition presents a
valuable investment opportunity for the Group to capture the
potential growth of ETIC, which will bring benefits to the Group.
The Company also considers that the current stock price of ETIC
is also at a reasonable standard and of investment value. For
more details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 12 June 2017.
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On 14 December 2017, Huizhou NVC, the Company’s
wholly-owned subsidiary, contributed RMB9,000,000 to establish
a subsidiary, Zhuhai NVC Youpin Industrial Co., Ltd* (. d{~
Uv8P"®! (“NVC Youpin”), 90% equity interest of which is
held by Huizhou NVC. NVC Youpin is principally engaged in the
production and sale of lamp products, luminaire products and
lighting electronic products etc.

Save as disclosed in the above, the Group made no material
acquisition, merger or sale of subsidiaries and associates during
the Reporting Period.

Other Significant Investment and Performance

Huizhou NVC, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, signed
a partnership agreement with the general partner to establish
a limited partnership. Through the establishment of the limited
partnership, the Company will be able to benefit from a wealth
of attractive investment opportunities in the lighting industry and
achieving economies of scale and synergies. For more details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 4 May
2016. During the Reporting Period, the limited partnership has
not yet commenced its external investment.

As mentioned in the announcement of the Company dated 23
May 2016, the Board has approved the Company to establish
an investment fund in form of a limited partnership to engage
in investment in the distributors of the Company. The expected
source of fund for the investment will be the fund generated from
the daily operations and financing of the Company. During the
Reporting Period, the investment has not yet been carried out.
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Contingent Liabilities

()

(b)

As at 31 December 2017, contingent liabilities not (a)
provided for in the consolidated financial statements were
as follows:

Alleged guarantees given to banks and JH1-She
a finance company in connection with ®!J[{
facilities granted to: 'rp 30 ¢

Sel ®IYA-j
Two PRC companies and Ms. WU Lian, Ge7®!¢Ng
an individual ~{€EHO[{-

The Group acted as defendant in lawsuits brought by (b)
two PRC banks and a PRC finance company alleging
that the Group should assume guarantee liabilities and
interests according to alleged guarantee agreements
entered into by Mr. WU Changjiang (the Company’s former
CEOQO) purportedly on behalf of a subsidiary of the Group.
The Directors consider that the likelihood of the Group
sustaining further losses from the guarantees is remote,
and accordingly no provision for claims arising from the
litigations is considered necessary as at 31 December
2016 and 2017, save for the related legal and other
costs. Based on the respective court judgments, interests
are imposed on the principal amounts as disclosed in
(a) above, which are calculated on (i) principal amount
of approximately RMB62,000,000 at 9.9% per annum
plus compound interest at 9.9% per annum on unpaid
interest since 21 October 2014; (ii) principal amount of
approximately RMB34,000,000 at four times of six-month
borrowing rate of the People’s Bank of China since 8
October 2015; and (iii) principal amount of approximately
RMB35,497,000 at 0.05% per day since 4 January 2015.
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We are exposed to various market risks in the ordinary course
of business. Our risk management strategy aims to minimise the
adverse effects of these risks to our financial results.

Foreign currency risk

We are exposed to transactional currency risk. Such risk arises
from sales or procurement by an operating unit in currencies
other than its functional currency. As a result, we are exposed
to fluctuations in the exchange rate between the functional
currencies and foreign currencies. During the Reporting Period,
the Group had entered into several forward exchange contracts
in place to hedge the foreign exchange exposure and did not
experience any material difficulties or negative impacts on our
operations or liquidity as a result of fluctuations on currency
exchange rates.

Commodity price risk

We are exposed to fluctuations in the prices of raw materials
which are influenced by global changes as well as regional
supply and demand conditions. Fluctuations in the prices of raw
materials could adversely affect our financial performance. We
did not enter into any commodity derivative instruments to hedge
the potential commodity price changes.

Liquidity risk

We monitor our risk of having a shortage of funds by considering
the maturity of our financial instruments, financial assets and
liabilities and projected cash flows from operations. Our goal is
to maintain a balance between continuity and flexibility of funding
through the use of bank loans and other interest-bearing loans.
Our Directors have reviewed our working capital and capital
expenditure requirements and determined that we have no
significant liquidity risk.
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Credit risk

Our major credit risk arises from exposure to a substantial
number of trade and bills receivables, deposits and other
receivables from debtors. We have policies in place to ensure
that the sales of products are made to customers with an
appropriate credit limit, and we have strict control over credit



Mr. WANG Donglei (T d), aged 54, is an
Executive Director, the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
Mr. WANG joined the Group in January
2013. He has many years of experience
in product research and development,
manufacturing and business management.
In 1996, Mr. WANG participated in the
founding of Zhuhai China Resources
Electric Co., Ltd.* (. 6 —e ® P " ®
1) (which was subsequently renamed as
Elec-Tech International Co., Ltd. ¢ C
"—:e p..b"®! ) and the shares
of which were listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange in China in 2004) and
served as the chairman and the general
manager. Since 2001, he has been
serving as the chairman and a director of
ETIC. At present, Mr. WANG also holds
positions in various subsidiaries of Elec-
Tech International Group which include: the
chairman of Zhuhai Hansheng Precision
Machinery Co., Ltd.* (. «8ZWUUbP
"®!), the chairman of Appliance Co. of
America (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd.* ( O e ce€.
b "®!), the chairman of Elec-Tech
(Hong Kong) Optoelectronic Technology
Co., Ltd* (C'€0¥<eAlP"®)),
executive director of 3E Semiconductor
(Wuhu) Co., Ltd.* (g S€>3 = P

' ® !), executive director of Elec-Tech
(Dalian) Investment Co., Ltd.* G €}
1e3 P " ® V), director of Zhuhai
Elec-Tech International Co., Ltd.* (.
C"—:eceb"®!), director of ETI-
LED Solutions Japan Co. Ltd, director of
Elec-Tech US Inc., director of ETI Solid
State Lighting Inc. and director of ETI
LED Solutions Inc.. Mr. WANG graduated
from China Dalian Institute of Technology
(subsequently renamed as Dalian University
of Technology) with a bachelor’s degree in
engineering. Mr. WANG Donglei is the elder
brother of Mr. WANG Dongming and Mr.
WANG Sheng, and the father of Mr. WANG
Keven Dun.
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Mr. WANG holds 90% equity interest in
Wuhu Elec-Tech Investment Co., Ltd.* (>
3 C "~ 3 P " ® !); Wuhu Elec-Tech
Investment Co., Ltd.* (>3C "3 pP"®

') in turn holds 16.57% of the shares of
ETIC. ETIC held 24.30% of the total issued
shares of the Company as of 31 December
2017.

Mr. WANG Dongming (I 1), aged 47,

is an Executive Director of the Company.
Mr. WANG joined the Group in June
2013. Mr. WANG has more than 19 years’
of experience in electrical and finance
industry, and has many years of experience
in manufacturing, finance and business
management. He was the vice finance
manager of China Infrastructure Materials
Corporation* (¢ 7?2 J < ®! ) and
the general manager of its Shenzhen
subsidiary, respectively, from 1992 to 2000.
From 2000 to 2013, Mr. WANG acted
as an executive director, a vice general
manager, the chief financial officer of
ETIC, the shares of which are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange in China, and
the general manager of lighting division
of ETIC. Mr. WANG is currently a director
of NVC Lighting & Electrical Technology
Singapore Pte. Ltd. Mr. WANG graduated
from Shaanxi Institute of Finance and

Economics (7 |%2@&) with a bachelor

degree in finance and accounting in 1992.
Mr. WANG Dongming is the younger
brother of Mr. WANG Donglei and Mr.
WANG Sheng, and the uncle of Mr. WANG

Keven Dun.
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Mr. XIAO Yu (y A), aged 58, is an Executive
Director of the Company. Mr. XIAO
joined the Group in May 2014 as a Non-
executive Director and re-designated as
an Executive Director in August 2014.
Mr. XIAO graduated from Dalian Institute
of Technology (later renamed as Dalian
University of Technology) with a bachelor’s
degree in 1985 and also graduated
with an EMBA’s degree from School of
Economics and Management of Tsinghua
University in 2008. He holds the engineer’s
qualification certificate. From July 1986
to June 1996, Mr. XIAO worked in Beijing
Beinei Group* ( [/ « « ) as the
deputy chief coordinator and the party
secretary of the Communist Party of China
of the Central Coordination Office, during
which he was awarded the titles of Beijing
Model Worker and Beijing Excellent Young
Intellectual. He was the chairman and
general manager of Westar (Zhongshan)
Electrical Appliance Manufacturing Co.,
Ltd* (pv:ee€eteje P "®! ),

a subsidiary of Elec-Tech International
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(>3C"—:"eA!b"®!). Currently, P"®!<¥%u#ffAdy<«[+90 0
Mr. XIAO works in different subsidiaries of hC " —:« hn®!«A, .
Elec-Tech International Group as: adirector 9 A OZWARP"®!é&+e
of Zhuhai East Yingcheng Precision Die- O e €. «P"®!é+e}tC”’
casting Co., Ltd* (. 9 A Oz w "eA'P"®!B eé+elEd-"
A R P " ®), a director of Appliance e®+pbP"®!B eé+fy<«[HbP —
of America (Zhuhai) Limited* ( O e @ ,YT8[*M# " *3% dlepEA
€. opb " ®!), an executive director ,*7}0j9®!I+tM#[pdA®
of Elec-Tech Photoelectric Technology !'7#et8M# HP MYOAAq#
(Dalian) Co., Ltd.* §1C "eA!p" f

®!) and an executive director of Leitong

Photoelectric Device (Huizhou) Co., Ltd.*
(lTEd-"e@s+sb"®!) M XIAO

has extensive experience in production

management. He once served as a senior

officer in companies listed in Mainland

China for several years and therefore has

in-depth knowledge and understanding

on corporate governance and corporate

management.

Mr. WANG Keven Dun (Tm), aged 25, is Tm«<[d$E 25KdJI®!B &
an Executive Director of the Company. +fi1<[8& 2016E12U 1« f
Mr. WANG joined the Group in December 1 < [ 2014E8 U 2016E12 U &
2016. Mr. WANG has been the analyst in Compass Lexecon LLC.A, + 2aff
Compass Lexecon LLC. from August 2014 <[& 2014E6 E}2,4;+¢_{

to December 2016. Mr. WANG obtained 3% 6aqze~Zaf[Jaa{2a fi

a bachelor degree in Economics and m«[JI®!e+—R/OB o1
Molecular and Cell Biology from University d<[YEed (0JI®!® ...Jt0Q

of California, Berkeley in 2014. Mr. WANG U <RTA«[¢I®!B &+1

Keven Dun is the son of Mr. WANG U«<[Ypef

Donglei, the chairman and chief executive

officer of the Company, and the nephew
of Mr. WANG Sheng, vice president of
procurement logistics system of the
Company, and Mr. WANG Dongming, the
Executive Director of the Company.



Non-executive Directors

Mr. LI Huating (% 6 ), aged 55, is a Non-
executive Director of the Company. Mr.
Ll joined the Group in December 2016.
From September 1985 to May 1996, Mr.
LI worked in China Resources National
Corporation; from June 1996 to August
2001, he successively served as the
director and the general manager of
Zhuhai China Resources Electric Co., Ltd.,
and concurrently served as the general
manager of Zhuhai Hansheng Precision
Machinery Co., Ltd.; from August 2001
to now, he has served as the director of
ETIC (the shares of which are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code:
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Independent Non-executive
Directors

Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway (Y% ¥ ), aged
63, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. LEE joined
the Company in November 2012. He
received a bachelor of arts degree from
Kingston University (formerly known as
Kingston Polytechnic) in London and
further obtained his postgraduate diploma
in business from Curtin University of
Technology in Australia. Mr. LEE served
as a partner of Ernst & Young (“EY”) for
over 29 years, until 2009, during which
he held key leadership positions in the
development of EY in China. Mr. LEE is
a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales,
the Institute of Chartered Accountants,
Australia and New Zealand, Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Macau Society of
Certified Practising Accountants. Mr. LEE
currently also serves as an independent
non-executive director of the following
companies: Chaowei Power Holdings
Limited, West China Cement Limited, China
Modern Dairy Holdings Ltd., GOME Retail
Holdings Limited, Tibet Water Resources
Ltd., Yashili International Holdings Ltd.,
GCL New Energy Holdings Limited, WH
Group Limited, China Rundong Auto Group
Limited (all shares of which are listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange)
and Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd. (the
shares of which are listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange and the
Shanghai Stock Exchange). He acted as
an independent non-executive director of
China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company
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Limited (the shares of which are listed on
main board of the Stock Exchange) from
October 2009 to August 2013 and also
acted as a non-executive director and vice
chairman of Merry Garden Holdings Limited
(now known as China Environmental
Technology and Bioenergy Holdings
Limited) (the shares of which are listed on
the main board of Stock Exchange) from
July 2014 to September 2015. He was
an independent non-executive director of
CITIC Securities Company Limited (the
shares of which are listed on main board
of the Stock Exchange and the Shanghai
Stock Exchange) from November 2011 to
May 2016. Mr. LEE was a member of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Hunan Province (7312

A X %o p) in China from 2008 to 2017.

Mr. WANG Xuexian (T2<), aged 54, is an

Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. WANG joined the Company
in May 2014. Mr. WANG graduated from
Renmin University of China with a Master’s
degree in Civil Laws in January 1990. He
is a lawyer in China, and his qualification
for serving as an independent director has
been approved by the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. From January 1990 to the
present, he has worked as an assistant
professor and lecturer in Dalian University
of Technology. He currently serves as a
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of the Dalian Arbitration Commission. Mr.
WANG has extensive experience in law
studies, teaching and the work of lawyers,
once served as an independent director
of several listed or unlisted companies
in the Mainland China, and has in-depth
knowledge and understanding on domestic
and overseas laws, corporate management
and corporate governance.

Mr. WEI Hongxiong (g f @), aged 44, is
an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company. Mr. WEI joined the
Company in May 2014. Mr. WEI graduated
from Xi'an Polytechnic University with a
bachelor’s degree in engineering. Mr. WEI
is currently a full-time lawyer of China
Commercial Law Firm in Guangdong* (?
6 2+ O ) and a law expert of
the Expert Pool of the Shenzhen Nanshan
Science and Technology Commission.
He is a statistician and patent agent
in China. Mr. Wei also obtained the
qualification of an independent director of
a listed company of the China Securities
Regulatory Commission on February
23, 2017. In 1998, he started to work in
the Shantou Haojiang Development and
Reform Bureau, mainly engaging in the
planning and studies of economic and
social development, and the feasibility
studies and approval of major projects.
From 2006 to the present, he has worked
as a full-time lawyer. Mr. WEI once served
as a deputy director of the Legal Services
Commission of the Cultural Industry of the
Shenzhen Lawyers Association. Mr. WEI is
mainly engaged in corporate establishment
and regulatory governance, restructuring
and reorganization, issuance and listing
of shares, acquisitions and mergers,
private equity, intellectual property rights
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and other law services. He once served
as a long-term legal advisor of many
enterprises, had/has been dealing with and
participating in the restructuring and listing
of many enterprises (A shares, red chips)
and special law services such as those for
the construction of major projects. He has
many years’ of experience in the provision
of law services such as those for corporate
governance, securities and capital market
and intellectual property rights.

Mr. SU Ling (= E), aged 53, is an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company.
Mr. SU joined the Company in December
2016. From 1986 to 1990, he worked as
an officer in the former Bureau of Drugs
of the Ministry of Health; from 1992 to
1993, he served as a visiting scientist
in the Center for Drug Evaluation and
Research of the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration; from 1996 to 1999, he
served as a researcher in epidemiology of
the Merck Research Laboratories of Merck
& Co Inc.; from 2000 to 2002, he served
as the medical director of the Merck China;
from January 2003 to November 2003,
he served as the senior director of global
regulatory strategy of the Merck Research
Laboratories of Merck & Co Inc.; from
2004 to 2007, he served as the director
of the medical and drug development
department in Shanghai Roche
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.; from 2007 to
2010, he served as the vice president
and the head of the Asia-Pacific clinical
research and development department
in Wyeth Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.; from
2010 to 2012, he served as the senior
vice president and head of the Pharma
Development Department in Greater China
in Beijing Novartis Pharmaceuticals Co.,
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Ltd.; from 2012 to 2016, he served as
the life science strategic advisor in Sidley
Austin LLP; from 2016 to present, he
has been a venture partner of Lily Asia
Ventures, the professor and the director of
Institute of the Drug Regulatory Science in
Shenyang Pharmaceutical University. Mr.
SU graduated from School of Pharmacy,
Shanghai Medical University (currently
known as School of Pharmacy, Fudan
University) majoring in pharmacology in
1986, obtained a master’s degree in drug
clinical research and development from
University of North Carolina in 1992 and
obtained a doctoral degree in epidemiology
from University of North Carolina in 1996.

Senior Management

Mr. WANG Donglei (¢ d), aged 54, is
the chief executive officer of the Company.
His biographical details are set out above
under the paragraph headed “Executive
Directors”.

Mr. XIAO Yu (y A), aged 58, is the vice-
president in charge of the components
system of the Company. His biographical
details are set out above under the
paragraph headed “Executive Directors”.
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Mr. ZHANG Peng (u ), aged 45, is the

president of the Company. Mr. ZHANG
joined the Group in June 2016. Mr. ZHANG
has about 20 years experience of sales,
brand operations and management. Mr.
ZHANG served as General Manager of
Beijing Industry and Trade in Haier Group
from 2003 to 2004. From 2004 to 2008,

he was the Director of Global Brand
Operations of Haier Group. From 2008
to 2016, he was the General Manager of
RRS (U U #) of Haier Group. Mr. ZHANG
graduated from Qingdao University in
1996 with a bachelor's degree in electrical
engineering and obtained a master’s
degree in business administration from the
Graduate School of Shanghai Jiaotong
University in 2014.

Mr. WANG Sheng (7 A), aged 51, is a vice
president of procurement logistics system
of the Company. Mr. WANG has over
20 years’ of experience in procurement
management. Before joining the Group in
2014, Mr. WANG has taken up the posts
of deputy general manager, vice president
and vice chairman at ETIC from 1996
to 2014. In 2004, Mr. WANG obtained a
master's degree in Business Management
from Zhongshan University. Mr. WANG
Sheng is Mr. WANG Donglei’s younger
brother and Mr. WANG Dongming’s elder
brother, and Mr. WANG Keven Dun’s uncle.
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Mr. TAN Ying ( ;), aged 51, is the chief
financial officer and vice-president of
overseas marketing company of the
Company. Before joining the Group in
2006, Mr. TAN was the financial accountant
in Goodman Fielder Ingredients Limited
from 1999 to 2000 and the financial
director in Shenzhen New World Sunlong
Tech Co., Ltd* ( --0¢ 2c |

" b ® )!'and Shenzhen Sun Long
Communication Co., Ltd.* ( -9 2.
Ab"®!) from 2000 to 2006. Mr. TAN
received an MBA degree from University
of Manchester in 2007. He is a fellow
member of the Financial Service Institute of
Australia.

Mr. HONG Xiaosong (s E ), aged 50, is
a vice-president of Research and
Development Department of the Company.
Mr. HONG served as the manager of
Shenzhen Golden Decorative Lighting
Corp. Ltd.* (- » — A t « ) from
1995 to 2000. He was the deputy
general manager of Shenzhen Golden
Lighting Engineering Corp. Ltd.* ( - —

k 4~ a0 ®!) from 2000 to 2004 and
Shenzhen Jinyueliang Lighting Technology
Co, Ltd*( -9 -A¥ " U!”"p"

® ) from 2004 to 2007, respectively.
After joining the Group in 2007, Mr.
HONG successfully developed various
kinds of lightings specifically designed
for the Olympic Games, which paved
the way for our products to be used
in the Olympic Games. Mr. HONG is a
qualified national registered senior lighting
designer and a senior member of China
Illuminating Engineering Society. He has
been committed to the development and
promotion of new type energy-saving
lamp products since 2004. He is one of
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the pioneers engaged in the promotion
of LED engineering application in China
and has obtained various patents for
product technologies. Mr. HONG obtained
a bachelor’'s degree in mechanical
manufacturing from Chongqing University
in 1989 and also received an EMBA degree
from China Europe International Business
School in 2015.

Mr. XU Jin, aged 46, is the vice president
of the Household Product Business
Department of the Company. Mr. XU joined
the Group in May 2015. He has about
22 years of experience in marketing and
management. He acted as the channel
manager and the division general manager
of AVON Products (China) from 1996 to
2004. He served as the national marketing
director of Danone Group from 2004 to
2011. He acted as the general manager of
OPPLE Lighting in East China from 2011
to 2015. He has successively acted as the
general manager of household product
sales, the general manager of the Home
Lighting Business Department and the vice
president of the Group since 2015. Mr. XU
graduated from Western Sydney University
and holds a bachelor degree in law and a
MBA degree.

Mr. WANG Qingbo, aged 42, is the vice
president of the Commercial Lighting
Business Department of the Company.
Mr. WANG joined the Group in June 2015.
Mr. WANG has 18 years of experience
in finance and management. Mr. WANG
acted as chief financial officer of household
electric appliance in Midea Group Co., Ltd.
from 2002 to 2012. He worked as chief
financial officer of the Logistics Business
Department of Midea Group Co., Ltd.
from 2013 to 2014. He acted as the vice
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president of finance in Guangdong Xinbang
Logistics Co., Ltd.* (? - JtP"®!)

from 2014 to 2015. Mr. WANG graduated

from Zhongnan University of Economics
(later renamed as Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law) in 1999 and holds a
bachelor degree in accountancy.

Mr. LIU Qijiang, aged 42, is the deputy
general manager of the Strategic Center
of the Company. He joined the Company
in July 2017. Before joining the Group in
2017, Mr. LIU successively served as a
human resource specialist and manager in
Huawei Technologies Co., Ltd. from 1997
to 2005. He acted as the vice president
of human resources in China Hasan
International Holdings Co., Ltd.* (7 ¥
7¢3 >pb"®!) from 2008 to 2012.

He acted as the assistant to chairman and
the director of human resources in Huafu
Industrial Co., Ltd.* 6 E%8p..P"®
') from 2012 to 2015. He worked as the
vice president of human resources and
operation in Hebei Jichi Investment Group
Co., Ltd. after 2015. Mr. LIU obtained a
master's degree from Tongji University in
2008. He has many years of experience in
enterprise operation and human resource
management.
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Joint Company Secretaries

Ms. LO Yee Har, Susan ( e?3), aged 59,
was appointed as a joint company
secretary on 24 March 2010. Ms. LO is
an Executive Director of Tricor Services
Limited and a fellow member of both
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries. She
has over 30 years’ of experience in
corporate advisory services. Prior to joining
Tricor Services Limited, Ms. LO served
as a director of the company secretarial
department of Tengis Limited (now known
as “Tricor Tengis Limited”). Ms. LO has
provided various secretarial and corporate
services to many listed companies.

Miss LEUNG Ching Ching (N z z), aged
37, was appointed as a joint company
secretary on 1 April 2014. Miss LEUNG is
a manager of corporate services of Tricor
Services Limited. Miss LEUNG has over 10
years’ of experience in company secretarial
industry, and provided services to clients
ranging from private companies to public
companies listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange. Other than the Company,
Miss LEUNG is currently also named
company secretary to three other listed
companies of which the shares are listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
Miss LEUNG is a Chartered Secretary
and an Associate of both The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom.
Miss LEUNG graduated from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong and admitted to
the bachelor’s degree of Social Science.
She also received a master of arts degree
in Professional Accounting and Information
System from City University of Hong Kong.
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The Directors present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017
(“Financial Statements”).

Principal Activities

The Company was redomiciled from the British Virgin Islands to
the Cayman Islands on 30 March 2010 and incorporated as an

exempted company with limited liability. The Group’s operations
are conducted mainly through the direct and indirect subsidiaries
of the Company. The Group is principally engaged in the design,
development, production, marketing and sale of a variety of
lighting products including three principal product categories,

namely, luminaire products, lamp products and lighting

electronics products. During the Reporting Period, there is no
significant change in the Group’s principal activities. The analysis
of the principal activities of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2017 is set out in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss of the consolidated financial statements on page 199.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s profit for the Reporting Period and the state of
affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2017 are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 199 to 404 of this
annual report.

The Board proposed to declare final dividend of HK1 cent
(equivalent to approximately RMBO0.8 cent) per share payable
to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Monday, 11 June 2018, which
is subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders
(“Shareholders”) at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the
“Annual General Meeting”). Based on the 3,581,805,000 shares
in issue as at 31 December 2017, it is expected that the final
dividend payable will amount to approximately HK$35,818,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB29,940,000) (tax inclusive).
Subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting, the final dividend is expected to be paid to the
eligible Shareholders by no later than 31 July 2018.
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The Annual General Meeting of the Company is scheduled to be
held on 4 June 2018. A notice convening the Annual General
Meeting will be published and dispatched to Shareholders in due
course.

Closure of Register of Members

The Register of Members will be closed from Wednesday, 30
May 2018 to Monday, 4 June 2018 (both days inclusive) and
from Friday, 8 June 2018 to Monday, 11 June 2018 (both days
inclusive), during which periods no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the
Annual General Meeting, all transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for registration before 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 29
May 2018. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend
(subject to the approval by Shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting), all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’'s Hong
Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at the abovementioned address for registration
before 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 7 June 2018.

Business Review

The discussion for the business review of the Reporting Period
of the Group as well as the major risks and uncertainty factors
facing the Group are set forth in the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 16 to 51 of this annual report. The
future business development of the Group are set forth in the
“Chairman’s Statement” on pages 10 to 15 of this annual report.
The critical indices adopted in the financial statements for the
analysis of the performance of the Group during the Reporting
Period are set forth in the “Financial Highlights” on pages 6 to 7
of this annual report.
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The Group has complied with relevant laws and regulations
affecting the operation of the Group significantly.

Relationship with Stakeholders

As confirmed by the Group, our employees, clients and business
cooperative partners are the key to our sustainable development.
The Group is committed to the establishment of close
relationship with our employees and the provision of application
solutions for our clients’ premium lighting, and strengthens the
cooperation with our business cooperative partners so as to
attain the win-win outcome for various parties, and push ahead
with the healthy and rapid development of the lighting industry.

Environmental Protection and Social
Responsibility

The Group is committed to the support for the sustainable
environmental protection. As the leading supplier for lighting
products, the Group shall comply with various environmental
protection laws and regulations formulated by the relevant
government department. The Group is the advocate pioneer
for green lighting and committed to the promotion of “Lighting
Environment”: to beautify the commercial and living space
with artificial lighting, protect the healthy living environment for
mankind with energy-saving lighting for environmental protection,
and support the energy-saving environmental protection
business for the PRC and even the whole world with action
taken. Meanwhile, the Group has proactively performed its social
responsibilities such as having advocated and pushed forward
with the public welfare project of “luminosity charity walk” for
a decade since 2007 with the footprints of charity covering
over ten provincial cities to take lighting and warmth to the
local children by means of improving the lighting environment,
supporting education with love, fulfilling their wishes and so on.
The Group will go further to continue to carry out the enterprise
social responsibilities as a means of feedback to our society.
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On 2 June 2017, the Company and Rising Wealth Limited, Lead
Investment Limited, Mr. YE Yong, Mr. FENG Chuntian and Ms.
Z0U Xiaoyang (being the subscribers) entered into a subscription
agreement, pursuant to which the subscribers conditionally
agreed to subscribe and the Company conditionally agreed to
allot and issue in aggregate a total of 368,357,000 subscription
shares.The subscription price of HK$0.80 per subscription share
represents a discount of approximately 8.05% to the closing
price of HK$0.87 per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on
2 June 2017, being the date of the subscription agreement; and
a discount of approximately 8.05% to the average of the closing
prices of approximately HK$0.87 per share as quoted on the
Stock Exchange for the last five trading days immediately before
2 June 2017, being the date of the subscription agreement.
The subscription shares represent approximately 11.46% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
the subscription agreement and approximately 10.28% of the
total issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by the
allotment and issue of the subscription shares. According to the
par value of US$0.0000001 each share, the nominal value of the
subscription shares is US$36.84 (equivalent to approximately
HK$286.62).

The Directors have considered various ways of raising additional
funds for future use and they consider that the issue of the
subscription shares is an appropriate means of raising additional
capital for the Company since the shareholder base of the
Company will be enlarged, the capital base of the Company
can be broadened at a relatively low cost compared to bank
borrowings or the issue of debt securities, and the financial
position of the Group will be improved for establishing and
strengthening the existing and future business of the Group. The
Board considers that the terms of the subscription agreements
mentioned above are on normal commercial terms and are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the
shareholders as a whole. As at the date of this annual report, all
the net proceeds had been used for general corporate (including
purchasing office, supporting facilities and exhibition hall).
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The gross proceeds of this subscription amounts to
approximately HK$294,686,000. After deducting the relevant
expenses, the net proceeds from the issue of the subscription
shares amount to approximately HK$294,000,000. The net price
for each subscription share is approximately HK$0.798. For more
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
4 June 2017.This subscription was completed on 13 June 2017.

On 27 June 2017, the Company and Rising Wealth Limited (being
the subscriber) entered into a subscription agreement, pursuant
to which the subscriber conditionally agreed to subscribe and
the Company conditionally agreed to allot and issue in aggregate
a total of 257,330,000 subscription shares. The subscription
price of HK$0.80 per subscription share represents a discount
of approximately 2.44% to the closing price of HK$0.82 per
share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 27 June 2017,
being the date of the subscription agreement; and a discount
of approximately 7.19% to the average of the closing prices
of approximately HK$0.862 per share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange for the last five trading days immediately before 27
June 2017, being the date of the subscription agreement. The
subscription shares represent approximately 7.18% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of the subscription
agreement and approximately 6.70% of the total issued share
capital of the Company as enlarged by the allotment and
issue of the subscribed shares. According to the par value of
US$0.0000001 each share, the nominal value of the subscription
shares is US$25.73 (equivalent to approximately HK$200.67).
For more details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 27 June 2017. This subscription was terminated
on 27 December 2017. For more details, please refer to the
announcement of the company dated 27 December 2017.
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On 20 May 2016, for the purpose of raising additional capital
for general corporate and business development and working
capital requirements, the Company and an independent third
party entered into a subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”) in relation to the issue of convertible bonds
denominated in HK$ in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$500,000,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”). The Convertible
Bonds have been issued on 7 June 2016.

Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, the Convertible Bonds
are convertible into fully paid ordinary shares:

(a) on or after the issue date (i.e. 7 June 2016) and up to and
excluding the close of business on the second anniversary
of the issue date (the “First Maturity Date”), i.e. June
2018, at an initial conversion price of HK$0.925 per share
(subject to anti-dilutive adjustments); and

(b) with extension up to and excluding the close of business
on the fourth anniversary of the issue date if agreed by
the Company and the bondholder in writing at least 30
days prior to the First Maturity Date (the “Second Maturity
Date”).

Based on the initial conversion price of HK$0.925, a maximum
number of 540,540,540 conversion shares will be allotted and
issued upon exercise of the Conversion Rights attached to the
Convertible Bonds in full.
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The Convertible Bonds bear interest at the rate of 7.8% per
annum on the principal amount of the bonds outstanding.
The interest will be payable by the Company semi-annually in
arrears. The outstanding amount of the Convertible Bonds will be
redeemed on maturity (the date falling on the First Maturity Date
or the Second Maturity Date where applicable) at a value equal
to the aggregate of (1) its principal amount outstanding; and (2)
the interest accrued.

The Convertible Bonds that contain both liability and conversion
option components were classified separately into their
respective items on initial recognition. The embedded derivative
of conversion option is therefore accounted for as a derivative.
The fair values of the derivative component are determined
based on the valuations performed by Jones Lang LaSalle
Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, an independent firm
of professionally qualified valuers, using the binomial option
pricing model. Changes in fair value of that component between
the measurement dates are recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value of the liability component is measured as the present value
of the expected payments and principal repayment at maturity
on initial recognition and is carried as a liability on the amortised
cost basis until extinguished on conversion or redemption.

During the Reporting Period, no convertible bonds have been
converted into shares of the Company.
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The movements of the liability component and derivative 8 SE d IpANY AA .. ¢
component of the Convertible Bonds during the Reporting Period ["THA...Y %hij
are as follows:

Issued Convertible Bonds Si IpAN

Effective interest expenses 0&BE%OYYg;10
recognised to profit or loss

Interest paid Su;t

Fair value change ®2 =

Exchange realignment .0 E

31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 2016 E12 U31 U ¢2017E1U1U

Effective interest expenses 8&BE%OYY%g;t0
recognised to profit or loss

Interest paid Su;t

Fair value change ®2 =

Exchange realignment .0 E

At 31 December 2017 2017 E12 0310




The major inputs for the valuation of the fair value of the
derivative component of Convertible Bonds as at 31 December
2016 and 2017 are shown as follows:

Share price p
Conversion price Ip

Risk-free rate 1,
Volatility *7

Equity-linked Agreement

Apart from the Share Option Scheme of the Group set forth on
pages 86 to 91 and the Convertible Bonds of the Group set
forth on pages 73 to 76 of this annual report, the Group neither
entered into nor had any equity-linked agreement during the
Reporting Period.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, each
director is entitled to the compensation out of the assets and
profits of the Company for all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages, expenses or liabilities incurred due to the execution
of his/her duties or taken place related to such execution. The
Company has taken out the appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance policy for the directors and officers of the
Group as a means of security.
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On 20 May 2010, net proceeds received from the initial public
offering, including the exercise of Over-allotment Option, after
deducting related expenses, were approximately HK$1.467
billion. Out of which, as at 31 December 2017, approximately
HK$367 million was used for capital expenditure, approximately
HK$367 million was used for the continual implementation of
our branding strategies and enhancement of our sales network,
approximately HK$147 million was used for enhancing our
research and development efforts, approximately HK$439 million
was used for our expansion plans, both in the PRC and the
international markets and approximately HK$147 million was
used for working capital and other general corporate purposes.

Financial Highlights

A summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five reporting periods is set out
on pages 6 to 7 of this annual report.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Details of bank loans and other borrowings and the Convertible
Bonds are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 337 and note 45 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 393 to 396 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected
Transactions, Potential Connected Transactions and Continuing
Connected Transactions” below, the Group did not grant any
loans to any entities, nor did it offer any financial assistance to
its associates or make any guarantee for the facilities granted to
its associates.
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Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment for
the Reporting Period are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 300 to 302 of this annual report.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital for the Reporting
Period are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements on page 339 of this annual report.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group for the Reporting Period are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements on pages 343 to 345 and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 203 to
204 of this annual report.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution amounted to RMB1,703,229,000, of which
RMB29,940,000 has been proposed as a final dividend for the
Reporting Period.

Public Float

As of the date of this annual report, based on the information
publicly available to the Company and to the best knowledge of
the Directors, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules for the Reporting Period and at any
time prior to the date of this annual report.

Pre-emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the

Company’s Articles of Association or applicable laws of the
Cayman Islands where the Company was incorporated.
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The Company is not aware of any particular tax allowances
granted to the Company’s shareholders due to their interests in

its securities.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the Reporting Period and

up to the date of this annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors

WANG Donglei

WANG Dongming
XIAO Yu

WANG Keven Dun

Non-executive Directors

LI Wei
LI Huating
YANG Jianwen

appointed on 11 January 2013
and re-designated as
an Executive Director
on 2 February 2015
appointed on 21 June 2013
appointed on 29 May 2014
and re-designated as
an Executive Director
on 8 August 2014
appointed on 12 December 2016

appointed on 29 May 2014
appointed on 12 December 2016
appointed on 15 June 2016

and resigned on 22 March 2018
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Independent Non-executive Directors

LEE Kong Wai, Conway
WANG Xuexian

WEI Hongxiong

SU Ling

appointed on 28 November 2012
appointed on 29 May 2014
appointed on 29 May 2014
appointed on 19 December 2016

Ms. YANG Jianwen resigned as a Non-executive Director, a
member of the Audit Committee and a member of Independent
Investigations Committee in order to devote more time to pursue
her other business commitments with effect from 22 March 2018.
Ms. YANG Jianwen has confirmed that she has no disagreement
with the Board and there is no other matter in relation to her
resignation that needs to be brought to the attention of the
Shareholders.
Directors’ and Senior
Biographies

Management’s

Directors’ and senior management’s biographies are set out
in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 52 to 67 of this annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

The relevant information on Directors’ service contracts is set out
in the section headed “Appointment and Re-election of Directors”
in the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 115 to 116 of
this annual report.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts

Save for the Acquisition, the Renewed Trademark Licensing
Agreement, the Renewed Framework Finished Products and Raw

Materials Purchase Agreement, the New ETIC Sales Agreement,

the Transportation and Warehousing Services Framework
Agreement and the Sales Framework Agreement as disclosed
below, no Director nor an entity connected with a Director had

a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,

arrangement or contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company’s holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during or at the
end of the Reporting Period.
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The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway, Mr.
WANG Xuexian, Mr. WEI Hongxiong and Mr. SU Ling, the annual
confirmation letter of their respective independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that the
Independent Non-executive Directors were independent from
their respective date of appointment to 31 December 2017 and
remain independent as of the date of this annual report.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
or Debentures

As at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company have or are deemed to have interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notifiable to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or recorded in the register required to be maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were notifiable to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the provisions of the Model Code.

Interests and short positions of substantial
shareholders in the shares and underlying shares

As at 31 December 2017, to the best knowledge of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company, the following shareholders
(other than Directors or chief executives of the Company) had
5% or more interests or short positions in the issued shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO:
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Name of shareholder
p oH

Elec-Tech International (H.K.)
Company Limited
C'—:7¢E0¥p"®!

ETIC

C’ —:

Haitong Securities Co., Ltd.

Haitong International Securities
Group Limited

Andrew Y. YAN
)

Cisco System, Inc.

SB Asia Investment Fund Il L.P.

SAIF Il GP, L.P.

Nature of Interests
EBI/

Beneficial owner
Y“BlP|

Interest of corporation controlled
by the substantial shareholders
op O>SY, YEB

Interest of corporation controlled
by the substantial shareholders
6p O>SY, YEB

Interest of corporation controlled
by the substantial shareholders
op O>SY, YEB

Beneficial owner
Y%Bip|

Interest of corporation controlled
by the substantial shareholders
op O>SY, YEB

Interest of corporation controlled
by the substantial shareholders
op O>SY, YEB

Beneficial owner
%uBlP|

Interest of corporation controlled
by the substantial shareholders
6p O>SY, YEB

Class of shares
p..09

Ordinary shares
w-p

Ordinary shares
w-p

Ordinary shares
w-p

Ordinary shares
w-p

Ordinary shares
w-p
Ordinary shares

w-p

Ordinary shares
w-p

Ordinary shares

w-p

Ordinary shares
w-p

Number of shares or
underlying shares
p.D ép..pf

870,346,000 (L) (Note 1)
€Wl -

870,346,000 (L) (Note 2)
€2

845,746,000 (L) (Note 3)
€ W3 »

845,746,000 (L) (Note 3)
€oW3

22,274,000 (L)

599,123,000 (L) (Note 4)
€4 o

588,223,000 (L) (Note 5)
EoW5 o

588,223,000 (L)

588,223,000 (L) (Note 6)
€ W6 »

Percentage of
the total
issued shares

24.30%

24.30%

23.61%

23.61%

0.62%

16.73%

16.42%

16.42%

16.42%



Name of shareholder
p oH

SAIF Partners Il LP

SAIF Il GP Capital Ltd

Guoyuan Investment Fund Series

SPC (Acting on behalf of
Guoyuan Global Income
Fund Segregated Portfolio)

Guoyuan Investment Fund Series
SPC€ p EGuoyuan Global

Income Fund Segregated
Portfolio + ¢

Schneider Electric Asia Pacific

Limited

Schneider Electric Industries SAS

Schneider Electric SE

YE Yong
ag

Nature of Interests
EBI/

Interest of corporation controlled
by the substantial shareholders

op O>SY, YEB

Interest of corporation controlled
by the substantial shareholders

op O>SY, YEB

Investment manager
3 U#

Beneficial owner
Y“uBlP|

Interest of corporation controlled
by the substantial shareholders

6p O>SY, YEB

Interest of corporation controlled
by the substantial shareholders

op O>SY, YEB

Beneficial owner
YBlP|

Spouse’s interest
d YEB

Class of shares
p..09

Ordinary shares
w-p

Ordinary shares
w-p

Ordinary shares
w-p

Ordinary shares
w-p

Ordinary shares

w-p

Ordinary shares
w-p

Ordinary shares

w-p

Ordinary shares
w-p

Number of shares or
underlying shares
p.D ép..pf

588,223,000 (L) (Note 6)
€ Wb -

588,223,000 (L) (Note 6)
€ W6 »

540,540,540 (L) (Note 7)
EoWT7 o

288,371,000 (L)

288,371,000 (L) (Note 8)
E W8 »

288,371,000 (L) (Note 8)
€ W8 -

270,227,000 (L)

7,433,000 (L) (Note 9)
£ W9 o

Percentage of
the total
issued shares

16.42%

16.42%

15.09%

8.05%

8.05%

8.05%

7.54%

0.21%



Notes:

(L) represents long position.

These shares were held by Elec-Tech International (H.K.)
Company Limited. As Elec-Tech International (H.K.) Company
Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of ETIC, ETIC is deemed to
be interested in all these shares.

These shares are held by Haitong International Securities
Company Limited. As Haitong International Securities Company
Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Haitong International
Finance Company Limited, which in turn is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Haitong International (BVI) Limited, which is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Haitong International Securities
Group Limited, 61.77% interest of Haitong International Securities
Group Limited is held by Haitong International Holdings Limited,
and which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Haitong Securities
Co., Ltd., Haitong Securities Co., Ltd. and Haitong International
Securities Group Limited are deemed to be interested in these
shares.

These shares were held by SB Asia Investment Fund Il L.P.
(588,223,000 shares) and SAIF Partners IV L.P. (10,900,000
shares), respectively. As all these companies are held by Mr.
Andrew Y. YAN indirectly, Mr. Andrew Y. YAN is deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company held by the aforesaid
companies.

These shares were held by SB Asia Investment Fund Il L.P.. As
Cisco Systems, Inc. (as limited partner) held 38.9% interests in
SB Asia Investment Fund Il L.P., Cisco Systems, Inc. is deemed
to be interested in these shares.

oWj

1.

LYpE»Qf
p.._ C —:7¢c€0¥eb
"®!5PfCT —:7cE0 ¥
P"®!JC " —:YE +n®
1d2aC " —:—V %0 p..
1P EBf
p ... Haitong International

Securities Company Limiteds b f
Haitong International Securities
Company LimitedJ Haitong
International Finance Company
Limited Y & e n ® !Hhitong
International Finance Company
Limited J Haitong International (BVI)
Limited Y & * n ® !Hhitong
International (BVI) Limited Haitong
International Securities Group
Limited Y & * n ® !Hhitong
International Holdings Limited 5 b
Haitong International Securities Group
Limited 61.77% Y A B dHhpitong
International Holdings Limited f J
Haitong Securities Co., Ltd. Y E
n®!d?2&aHaitong Securities Co.,
Ltd. ¢ Haitong International Securities
Group Limited—V %6 p...e*
PAEBf

p..x9_ SB Asia Investment
Fund Il L.P. 5 P588,223,000 p ¢
SAIF Partners IV L.P. 5 p10,900,000
pf 8 ®!EA%..10<[ce
Y5pd2a&a..l0<[—V*1p

®161®!05bp..pfe~
EAEBT

p ... _SB Asia Investment Fund
Il L.P. 5P f_ 6 Cisco Systems,
Inc. g b "¥«[Y . 5 pPSB
Asia Investment Fund Il L.P. 38.9%
Y £ B d?2acCisco Systems, Inc. —
V%06 p..-'bP/EBT



6. These shares were held by SB Asia Investment Fund Il L.P.. As
the interests of SB Asia Investment Fund Il L.P. is held by SAIF II
GP, L.P., SAIF Partners Il LP and SAIF Il GP Capital Ltd directly
or indirectly, SAIF Il GP, L.P., SAIF Partners Il LP and SAIF Il GP
Capital Ltd are deemed to be interested in these shares.

7. These shares represent the maximum number of shares to be
issued and allotted upon exercise in full of the conversion rights
attaching to the Convertible Bonds issued by the Company
pursuant to the subscription agreement dated 20 May 2016
entered into between the Company and Guoyuan Investment
Fund Series SPC (acting on behalf of Guoyuan Global Income
Fund Segregated Portfolio).

8. These shares were held by Schneider Electric Asia Pacific
Limited. As Schneider Electric Asia Pacific Limited is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Schneider Electric Industries SAS, which
in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Schneider Electric SE,
Schneider Electric Industries SAS and Schneider Electric SE are
deemed to be interested in these shares.

9. As these shares are held by Ms. GAO Xia, the spouse of Mr. YE
Yong, Mr. YE Yong is deemed to be interested in these shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, so far as the
Directors are aware, no other person (except the Directors and
chief executive) or corporation had 5% or more interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which were recorded in the register required to be maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

6. p ... SB Asia Investment
Fund I LP. 5 P f _ &B Asia
Investment Fund Il L.P. ™ &£ B %o
SAIF Il GP, L.Pe SAIF Partners Il
LP ¢ SAIF 1l GP Capital Ltd\Y P ce
Y5bdaasAIF Il GP, L.P.e SAIF
Partners Il LP ¢SAIF Il GP Capital
Ltd —V % d p..s*pPABf

7. P .. % 1% 1 ®! &2016E5
U20 U ~Guoyuan Investment Fund
Series SPGE p EGuoyuan Global
Income Fund Segregated Portfolio
+e mMYO..XDdoI®!T
Y IpANO«Ip&E ,p 4
dzsi ¢cadiopYp..f

8. p ... _ Schneider Electric Asia
Pacific Limited5 b fSchneider
Electric Asia Pacific Limited]
Schneider Electric Industries SAS'Y
E +n®!dpSchneider Electric
Industries SAS f Sdhneider
Electric SEY E e n ® !d 2 &
Schneider Electric Industries SAS ¢,
Schneider Electric SE—V %0 0
p..*1PABf

9. .._aC«<«[Yyda +3~{
5I:>da aac« [—V%oo p
.elPpEBf
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(a)

Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
conditionally approved and adopted at an extraordinary
general meeting held on 27 April 2010. The purpose of
the Share Option Scheme is to provide the Company
with a means of incentivising and retaining employees,
and to encourage employees to work towards enhancing
the value of the Company and promoting the long-term
growth of the Company. This scheme will link the value
of the Company with the interests of the participants,
enabling participants and the Company to develop
together and promoting the Company’s corporate culture.
The Directors may, at their discretion, invite any Directors
(including executive Directors, non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors), employees and
advisors, consultants, distributors, contractors, contract
manufacturers, agents, customers, business partners and
service providers of any member of the Group who the
Board considers, in its sole discretion, have contributed
or will contribute to the Group to participate in the Share
Option Scheme. The period within which the options
must be exercised shall be determined by the Directors
at the time of grant and such period must expire no later
than 10 years from the date when the Board resolves to
make the offer of options to the grantees. All outstanding
options shall lapse when the grantee is dead or retired,
the employment of the grantee ceases or where the
grantee is no longer an employee of the Group.
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The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme or any other share option schemes
adopted by the Company shall not exceed 10% (the
Company may refresh the 10% limit in certain conditions)
of the aggregate of the shares in issue on the listing date
or 30% of the shares in issue from time to time. The total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each participant under the
Share Option Scheme or any other share option scheme
adopted by the Company in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue. Any further grant
of options which would result in the number of shares
issued as aforesaid exceeding the said 1% limit requires
shareholders’ prior approval with the relevant participant
and his associates abstaining from voting. At the time
of grant of the options, our Company may specify any
minimum period(s) for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised. The Share Option Scheme
does not contain any such minimum period.

The subscription price for the Shares under the Option
Scheme shall be no less than the highest of (a) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet
issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b)
the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five Stock Exchange business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of
a share upon its issue. The amount payable by a grantee
on acceptance of a grant of options is US$1.00. Life
of the Share Option Scheme is ten years and ends on
the date of the tenth anniversary of the adoption of the
Share Option Scheme. Further details of the Share Option
Scheme are set out in the prospectus of the Company
dated 7 May 2010.

During the Reporting Period, no option was granted under
the Share Option Scheme.
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(b)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the pre-IPO share option scheme
(the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) as approved by
the Board on 15 October 2006 and amended on 23
December 2009 and 24 March 2010. The purpose of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to assist the Company
in attracting, retaining and motivating key employees,
Directors, consultants and strategic suppliers. The Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme was valid and effective for
the period of time commencing on 15 October 2006
and expired on the day immediately prior to the date
on which dealings commence in the ordinary shares on
the Stock Exchange. The Company may at any time
amend or terminate the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
as advised by the Board at its discretion. The termination
of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme has no effect on
the outstanding share options granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme. Any such outstanding share
options shall continue in effect in accordance with their
terms and conditions and the terms and conditions of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. The extent to which any
eligible person is entitled to be granted options pursuant
to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to be determined
in the sole discretion of the Board, provided, however, that
the number of shares issued to or reserved for issuance
to any one person pursuant to the options and other
stock option plans or share compensation arrangements
shall not exceed 3% of the number of shares in issue
(on a fully-diluted basis), including those shares of
the Company which are issuable upon the exercise or
conversion of outstanding securities of the Company,
including the options previously granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme and any options granted under
other stock options, stock option plans or other share
compensation arrangements which the Company may
issue or establish in addition to the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme. The aggregate number of shares subject to the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is 240,429,000 shares,
representing 8.11% of the issued share capital of the
Company following the IPO.
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Options have been granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme and shall expire no later than 10 years
from the date the Board resolves to make the offer of
options to the grantees. Options granted to grantees
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall vest
immediately to the grantees, or vest to the grantees at
a rate not more than 25% of each such grant for each
year commencing from the date when the grantees can
exercise such options granted to them. The exercise price
of these share options was determined by the Board with
reference to the market value of the Company’s ordinary
shares and the Company’s equity value.

In the event that the Board allows a grantee to exercise
an option granted under this Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme by delivering shares previously owned by such
grantee and unless otherwise expressly provided by the
Board, any shares delivered which were initially acquired
by the grantee from the Company (upon exercise of a
share option or otherwise) must have been owned by
the grantee at least six months as at the date of delivery.
The Company will not be obligated to deliver any shares
unless and until it receives full payment of the exercise
or purchase price therefore and any related withholding
obligations and any other conditions to exercise or
purchase have been satisfied. Unless otherwise expressly
provided, the Board may at any time eliminate or limit
a grantee’s ability to pay the purchase or exercise price
of any option granted under this Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme by any method other than cash payment to the
Company. The Board may take all actions necessary to
alter the method of option exercise and the exchange and
transmittal of proceeds with respect to grantees resident
in the PRC not having permanent residence in a country
other than the PRC in order to comply with applicable
PRC foreign exchange and tax regulations. Further details
of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in the
prospectus of the Company dated 7 May 2010.
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As at 31 December 2017, details of outstanding options granted

under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are as follows:

Name of the Class of
grantee shares
0-['u p..09
Others

(including senior

management)

Relationship
with the Group
~l« Y&

Number of
Shares
outstanding as
at 1 January
2017

0
2017E1010

J4Y
p...pf

Number of
Shares
outstanding as
at 31 December
2017
§2017E
120310

J 4y

p..pf

Exercise

price

(HK$

per share)
E g
€¥OJpe

Percentage of
the number of
Shares
outstanding as
at 31 December
2017 to the total
issued shares
§2017E
120310
J 4y
p..pt
&Sip..
<pYoid

Date of grant Expiry date
30 Q.U



During the Reporting Period, out of the share options granted 8 SE «d/a®si A..pA&

under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, 1,000,000 share EYO-§ .. p A& < H,000,000 ...
options lapsed due to the expiration of the share option. The a /E,"Q,p0OFfOOY ...pAE
lapsed share options are as follows: % hij
Number of share Exercise price
options lapsed (HK$ per share) Date of grant Expiry date
00..pEpf E gE¥XOIpe =30 Q.U
1,000,000 2.1 24 March 2010 8 February 2017
2010 E3U24 U 2017E208U
As at 31 December 2017, these was no outstanding share 52017E120310d (1 J 4Y
options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. /a®si A...pE EO-5Y ..
p A f
Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares x..e IDPU«p...
Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries had purchased, sold 0 SE «dI®!DPIl, n®
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the 12Ix...e /I DPU«, 1®!]
Reporting Period. 9CNf
Interests of Directors in Competing Business e+0)F8 "A£EB

Save for those disclosed in the following paragraphs by the 31 ®'6hO0OOPE~.dd S

Company, during the Reporting Period, none of the Directors or E «dI®leé+¢,1¢ YLO
their respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) of [€> E cj9 e E? 16 ~1«
the Company was interested in any business which competes or 8 YFD «)F™8 «1b A&

is likely to compete with the businesses of the Group. Bf



Mr. WANG Donglei, an Executive Director, the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, holds 90% equity
interest in Wuhu Elec-Tech Investment Co., Ltd€>3C " 3
p"® !+ , Wuhu Elec-Tech Investment Co., Ltd.€ >3 C

‘3 p"®!e in turn holds 16.57% of the shares of ETIC,
and ETIC in turn holds 24.30% of the shares (870,346,000
shares as at 31 December 2017) of the Company. Mr. WANG
Donglei is also a director and chairman of ETIC and holds
directorships in a number of subsidiaries of ETIC Group.
Apart from this, Mr. XIAO Yu holds directorships in a number
of subsidiaries of ETIC Group and Mr. LI Huating is a deputy
chairman and general manager of ETIC. To the best knowledge
of the Company, ETIC was established on 14 May 1996 with
issued capital of RMB1,764,720,000 as at 31 December
2017, the shares of which were listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange in June 2004. Based on the preliminary annual result
of ETIC dated 13 February 2018 (unaudited and subject to
further adjustment), its operating revenue for the year of 2017 is
approximately RMB4,203,131,000, its net loss is approximately
RMB896,495,000 and its total assets is approximately
RMB14,209,926,000. The principal business of ETIC is
production and sale of small household appliances and LED
products, while the Group’s subsidiaries are principally engaged
in the production and sale of lamp products, luminaire products
and lighting electronic products, including a variety of LED
lamps, luminaires and electrical products. As a result, Mr. WANG
Donglei, Mr. XiAO Yu and Mr. LI Huating are deemed to be
interested, directly or indirectly, in the business that competes or
may compete with that of the Company and/or its subsidiaries.

I®!'B e+Re+—q/©B ce

i d«<[5P>3C 3 bP"®
190% Y pEi>3C 3 p"®
I5pC"  —:1657% Y p ...iC”~
— 5P I ®!2430% Y p ..€UR
2017E12U031 U 5 879,346,000 p
p..f7 d<[uA,C —:Y
e+se+—@g¢ Cl—ix U
n®!+A, &+ fda~.d
YA C —:« peen®!
A,e+ w@¢¥h6uc[A,C
T— T e+t — < UHETLI®
10]dC”  —:W®d 1996 E5U014U
O mdUROL7E12U31 U p | %o |
O A,764,720w ©f ®! " p ... 0
2004E6 U0~ -CNtgOjofi

% C —:U,%2018E2013 U Y «
EE 86€J%2é¢ «*TSE
Edl 2017E Y 8x]10 %[
O /A,203,131w ©d | f&O % [
O AB96,495w ©d< *O %[0 A
14,209,926 w©fC~ —:Y O 8

% [*qV/fee¢ LED*Ud_6
l« en®!06 }+"UeifiHyg
kiee*UY[*¢V/du <¢
GLED"UefiH¢ewm*Ud24atl
d<[eyAc[e%nb6uc[—V

% O\YDReYAI®!;IDen®
'8 60)FD «60)FYS8

j&pb EBf



During the Reporting Period, the Company did not have any
controlling shareholders.

Connected Transactions, Potential Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected
Transactions

The Acquisition

On 12 June 2017, the Board announced that it has resolved
to acquire shares of ETIC to the amount of no more than
RMB110,000,000 on market before 31 December 2017 with the
acquisition price of no more than RMB5.45 per share of ETIC.
Assuming a purchase price of RMB5.45 per share of ETIC, it was
estimated that the total number of shares of ETIC to be acquired
by the Company would be approximately 20,183,486 shares,
representing 1.45% of the total issued shares of ETIC on 12
June 2017. (please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
12 June 2017 for more information).

On 31 December 2017, the total number of shares of ETIC
held by a subsidiary of the Company was 20,363,832 shares,
representing 1.154% of the total issued shares of ETIC on 31
December 2017.
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Immediately prior to the Acquisition, Mr. WANG Donglei indirectly
held 20.94% of total issued shares of ETIC and was a substantial
shareholder of ETIC. Mr. WANG Donglei is also the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and executive Director of the Company.
Although the Company will acquire shares of ETIC on market
from the public, the Acquisition will be regarded as a connected

transaction of the Company under Rule 14A.28 of the Listing

Rules. ETIC is an important business partner of the Company in
its industrial chain. The strategic investment in ETIC will enhance
the Company’s strategic cooperation relationship with ETIC.

ETIC is focusing on the production and sale of small household
appliances and LED products in the PRC. With a positive outlook
on the LED products market and the future performance of ETIC,

the Company believes that the Acquisition presents a valuable
investment opportunity for the Group to capture the potential

growth of ETIC, which will bring benefits to the Group. The

Company also considers that the current stock price of ETIC is
also at a reasonable level and of investment value. The Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors) consider
that the Acquisition is on normal commercial terms, fair and

reasonable, and is in the interests of the Company and its
Shareholders as a whole.

Potential Connected Transactions
Purported Pledge and Guarantee Agreements

Please refer to the relevant section in the 2016 annual report of
the Company for details of the Purported Pledge and Guarantee
Agreements. The Company repeats its earlier statement that it
is still seeking legal advice in relation to the legal validity of the
Purported Pledge and Guarantee Agreements.

The Board would like to reiterate that the entering into of the
Relevant Purported Pledge and Guarantee Agreements was not
carried out with the knowledge of the current Board. Accordingly,
the Board is not presently aware of a fair and reasonable
justification for the entering into of the Relevant Purported
Pledge and Guarantee Agreements, nor has the Board been
provided with a proper explanation which indicates that the
Relevant Purported Pledge and Guarantee Agreements are in the
interests of the Company or its shareholders as a whole. NVC
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China has commenced several proceedings in the PRC against
Mr. WU Changjiang and other defendants in connection with
certain Purported Pledge and Guarantee Agreements. In those
proceedings, NVC China’s position is that the Purported Pledge
and Guarantee Agreements are not legally valid or enforceable.
Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 14 April
2015 for more information.

Please refer to the section headed “Progress of Litigation” in
pages 22 to 23 in this annual report for more information about
the progress of the relevant litigation.

Counter Guarantees from Wu Ji

Please refer to the relevant section in the 2016 annual report of
the Company for details of the Counter Guarantees from Wu Ji.

The Company repeats its earlier statement that the Letters of
Counter Guarantee are currently referred to in ongoing litigation
in the PRC involving NVC China, and the Board notes that the
court has not yet made a determination in relation to their legal
validity and enforceability.

The Board would like to reiterate that the Board only became
aware of the executed Letters of Counter Guarantees in 2015.
The Letters of Counter Guarantee relate to a number of pledge
and guarantee agreements, entered into by Mr. WU Changjiang,
purportedly on behalf of the Company. The Board was not
previously aware of NVC China’s purported entering into of
the pledge and guarantee agreements. The Board is also not
presently aware of a fair and reasonable justification for the
Letters of Counter Guarantee and/or the pledge and guarantee
agreements, nor has Mr. WU Changjiang provided the Board
with a proper explanation which indicates that these letters
and agreements are in the interests of the Company or its
shareholders as a whole. Nonetheless, the Board notes that the
Letters of Counter Guarantees have apparently been granted
in return for the purported pledge and guarantee agreements
entered into by the Company in relation to the various loans
mentioned above. Please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 2 September 2015 for more information.
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Renewed Framework Raw Material Purchase Agreement

We entered into a renewed framework raw material purchase
agreement dated 22 January 2016 with World Bright and Quzhou

Aushite. As World Bright and Quzhou Aushite are associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) of Mr. WU Jiannong, a director
and a substantial shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules)
of Zhejiang NVC, a subsidiary of the Company, World Bright
and Quzhou Aushite are connected persons of the Company (as
defined under the Listing Rules), and the transactions between
which and the Company constitute connected transactions of

the Company under Chapter 14A of Listing Rules. Pursuant to
such agreement, we agreed to purchase raw materials (on a
non-exclusive basis) including glass tubes from World Bright,
phosphor powder from Quzhou Aushite. The quality, quantity
and technical standards of the raw materials delivered by these
suppliers must meet the Company’s standards as set out in

the sub-contract for each purchase and the prices charged by

these suppliers will be agreed following arm’s length negotiations
between the relevant parties with reference to the prevailing
market rates. The term of the renewed framework raw material
purchase agreement is three years commencing from 1 January
2016.

The maximum aggregate annual amounts payable by us to World
Bright and Quzhou Aushite under the renewed framework raw
material purchase agreement for the years ended 31 December
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Renewed Framework Equipment Purchase Agreement

We entered into a renewed framework equipment purchase
agreement dated 22 January 2016 with Jiangshan Youhe during
our usual course of business. As Jiangshan Youhe is an associate
(as defined under the Listing Rules) of Mr. WU Jiannong, a
director and a substantial shareholder (as defined under the
Listing Rules) of Zhejiang NVC, a subsidiary of the Company,
Jiangshan Youhe is a connected person of the Company (as
defined under the Listing Rules), and the transactions between
which and the Company constitute connected transactions of the

Company under Chapter 14A of Listing Rules. Pursuant to such
agreement, we purchase manufacturing equipment and software
from Jiangshan Youhe. The fees charged by Jiangshan Youhe will
be agreed based on arm’s length negotiations with reference to
the prevailing market rates. The term of this renewed framework
equipment purchase agreement is three years commencing on 1
January 2016.

The maximum aggregate annual amounts payable by us
under the renewed framework equipment purchase agreement
for the years ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018
are RMB4,500,000, RMB3,500,000 and RMB3,500,000,
respectively.

During the Reporting Period, we did not have any transaction
with Jianshan Youhe arising from the renewed framework
equipment purchase agreement.

Renewed Trademark Licensing Agreement

Huizhou NVC, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into a renewed trademark licensing agreement on 22
January 2016 with ETIC, which is a substantial shareholder (as
defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company, pursuant to
which, Huizhou NVC grants ETIC, a non-transferrable right to
use certain registered trademarks of the Company, including
“NVC” and “d {”, as well as granting ETIC the right to use the

Company'’s registered trademark in combination with ETIC’s own
brand as “NVCETI” and “d {C~ " on ETIC’s LED lamp products.

Y%f,YEE®..8VXD

62016 E1U22Ud¢A " UI8 @
Ge~eét%qg Mm¥%f,YEE®
..8VXDf_06ét%qll®!S
een®!d éd{Ye+qgqd p
€>E ¢j9e/EN 5¢[Y
LO[E>E «j9e/Edet ¥
Q% | ®!EL[{€>E «j9-
Edpl~1®!' " eYtesodl

j9. /£

ya5 Dfé t % ulRdé ce!!
2016 E1 U1 1

a



The licensing is worldwide but is exclusive only on certain ETIC’s
LED lamp products. As ETIC is a substantial shareholder of the
Company, it is a connected person of the Company (as defined
under the Listing Rules), and the transactions between which and
the Company constitute connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of Listing Rules. The trademark licensing fee
is agreed based on arm’s length negotiations and is on normal
commercial terms. The term of the renewed trademark licensing
agreement is three years commencing on 1 January 2016. To
further promote the Company’s brand name and to implement
the Company’s strategic development plan for LED products, the
Company decided to enter into such licensing agreement for the
production of certain LED lamp products using the Company’s
registered trademarks. ETIC has a well-established sales channel
for LED lamp products which is complementary to our existing
product sales channel. ETIC is a vertically well-integrated
LED lamp producer and its product quality and price are very
competitive in the market. The Board believes that through
cooperation with ETIC, the Company’s sales and distribution
network coverage of LED lamp products will be further extended,
which is expected to further improve the Company’s operation



Renewed Framework Finished Products and Raw
Materials Purchase Agreement

We entered into a renewed framework finished products and

raw materials purchase agreement on 22 January 2016 with
ETIC, which is a substantial shareholder (as defined under the
Listing Rules) of the Company, pursuant to which, the Company
agreed to purchase finished products and raw materials

including but not limited to LED chips and LED lamp products

from ETIC and its subsidiaries on a non-exclusive basis. As ETIC
is a substantial shareholder of the Company, it is a connected
person of the Company (as defined under the Listing Rules), and
the transactions between which and the Company constitute

connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of

Listing Rules. The quality, quantity and technical standards of
the products delivered by ETIC and its subsidiaries must meet
the Company'’s standards as set out in the sub-contract for each

purchase order. The prices charged by ETIC and its subsidiaries
will be agreed following arm’s length negotiations between

the parties with reference to the prevailing market rates. The
term of the framework agreement is three years commencing
on 1 January 2016. The Company entered into such purchase

agreement given the Group has a continuous demand for
the relevant finished products and raw materials in the next
three years and the fees charged by ETIC and its affiliates are
competitive (please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
22 January 2016 for more information).

In view of the better-than-expected demand of ETIC’s products,

the Company expects the original annual caps will not be
sufficient to meet the Company’s requirements. On 29 November
2016, the Board approved to revise upward the original annual
caps (Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 29 November 2016 for details). The maximum aggregate
annual amounts payable to ETIC and its subsidiaries under
the renewed framework finished products and raw materials
purchase agreement for the years ended 31 December 2016,
2017 and 2018 are RMB120,000,000, RMB130,000,000 and

RMB140,000,000, respectively.
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During the Reporting Period, the actual amount paid by us
to ETIC and its subsidiaries under the renewed framework
finished products and raw materials purchase agreement was
RMB124,248,000 which did not exceed the annual cap.

New ETIC Sales Agreement

We entered into a framework sales agreement (the “New ETIC
Sales Agreement”) on 14 March 2016 with ETIC, which is a
substantial shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) of
the Company, pursuant to which, the Company agreed to sell

finished products including but not limited to LED luminaire

products to ETIC on a non-exclusive basis. As ETIC is a
substantial shareholder of the Company, it is a connected

person of the Company (as defined under the Listing Rules), and
the transactions between which and the Company constitute

connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of

Listing Rules. The quality, quantity and technical standards of
the products delivered by the Group must meet ETIC and its

subsidiaries’ standards as set out in the sub-contract for each

sales order. The prices paid by ETIC will be agreed following
arm’s length negotiations between the parties with reference to

the prevailing market rates. The term of the framework agreement
is three years commencing on 1 January 2016. The Company
entered into such sales agreement given the continued demand
for such finished products by ETIC and its affiliates in the next
three years and the fees paid/payable by ETIC and its affiliates
are competitive (please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 14 March 2016 for more information).

The maximum aggregate annual amounts receivable by us from
ETIC and its subsidiaries under the New ETIC Sales Agreement
for the years ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 are
RMB100,000,000, RMB100,000,000 and RMB100,000,000,
respectively.
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During the Reporting Period, the actual amount received by
us from ETIC and its subsidiaries under the New ETIC Sales
Agreement was RMB2,934,000 which did not exceed the annual
cap.

The Lease Agreement |

We entered into a lease agreement on 22 January 2016 with
ETIC, which is a substantial shareholder (as defined under the
Listing Rules) of the Company, pursuant to which the Group

agrees to lease certain properties from ETIC and its affiliates (the
“Lease Agreement 1”). As ETIC is a substantial shareholder of the
Company, it is a connected person of the Company (as defined

under the Listing Rules), and the transactions between which and
the Company constitute connected transactions of the Company

under Chapter 14A of Listing Rules. Details of each properties
to be leased will be set out in the sub-contract for each lease.

The rent charged by ETIC and its Affiliates will be agreed
following arm’s length negotiations between the parties with

reference to the prevailing market price. The term of the Lease
Agreement | is three years commencing on 1 January 2016. The
Company entered into the Lease Agreement | given the Group
has a continuous demand for the relevant properties in the next
three years and the rent charged by ETIC and its affiliates are
competitive (please refer to the Company’s announcement dated

22 January 2016 for more information).

The maximum aggregate annual amounts paid by us to ETIC
under the Lease Agreement | for the years ended 31 December
2016, 2017 and 2018 are RMB2,000,000, RMB2,000,000 and
RMB2,000,000, respectively.

During the Reporting Period, the actual amount paid by us to
ETIC and its subsidiaries under the Lease Agreement | was
RMB183,000 which did not exceed the annual cap.
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The Lease Agreement Il

We entered into a lease agreement on 22 January 2016 with

ETIC, which is a substantial shareholder (as defined under the
Listing Rules) of the Company, pursuant to which the Group

agrees to lease certain properties to ETIC and its affiliates (the
“Lease Agreement II”). As ETIC is a substantial shareholder of the
Company, it is a connected person of the Company (as defined

under the Listing Rules), and the transactions between which and
the Company constitute connected transactions of the Company

under Chapter 14A of Listing Rules. Details of each properties
to be leased will be set out in the sub-contract for each lease.

The rent charged by the Group will be agreed following arm'’s

length negotiations between the parties with reference to the

prevailing market price. The term of the Lease Agreement Il is
three years commencing on 1 January 2016. The Company

entered into the Lease Agreement Il given ETIC and its affiliates
have a continuous demand for such properties in the next three

years and the rent paid/payable by ETIC and its affiliates are
competitive (please refer to the Company’s announcement dated

22 January 2016 for more information).

The maximum aggregate annual amounts received by us
from ETIC under the Lease Agreement Il for the years ended
31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 are RMB5,000,000,

RMB5,000,000 and RMB5,000,000, respectively.

During the Reporting Period, the actual amount received by us
from ETIC and its subsidiaries under the Lease Agreement Il was
RMB1,143,000 which did not exceed the annual cap.

Please refer to the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report for information of the
Directors’ positions and interests in ETIC group.
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Services Agreement

NVC HK, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the Services Agreement on 18 May 2017 with NVC Lighting
& Electrical Technology Singapore Pte. Ltd. (“NVC Singapore”),
pursuant to which NVC Singapore has agreed to provide
services in relation to lighting solutions and management of the
distributors and dealers in the Asia Pacific and East Europe
region for NVC HK. NVC HK is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company. NVC Singapore is a subsidiary of Mr. WANG
Dongming, an executive Director of the Company. Mr. WANG
Dongming holds 60% equity interest of NVC Singapore.
Therefore, NVC Singapore is a connected person of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the transactions contemplated under the Services Agreement
constitute the connected transactions of the Company under
the Listing Rules. Pursuant to the Services Agreement, NVC
Singapore will charge consultant fee from NVC HK based on
monthly expenses of human resources incurred by the Service
Provider. The annual actual expenses depend on actual business
developments and the related budget. The term of the Services
Agreement is three years commencing on 1 January 2017. NVC
Singapore can provide the Group with desirable profession
services based on its personnel with professional knowledge
and experience, and it is more cost-efficient than operating and
managing such activities overseas by the Group itself. (please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 18 May 2017 for
more information).

The maximum aggregate annual amounts paid by us to NVC
Singapore under the Services Agreement for the years ended
31 December 2017, 2018 and 2019 are RMB5,000,000,
RMB6,500,000 and RMB8,500,000, respectively.

During the Reporting Period, the actual amount paid by
us to NVC Singapore under the Services Agreement was
RMB3,430,000 which did not exceed the annual cap.
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Transportation and Warehousing Services Framework
Agreement

The Company entered into a transportation and warehousing
services framework agreement (the “Transportation and
Warehousing Services Framework”) on 22 December 2017 with
ETIC, which is a substantial shareholder (as defined under the
Listing Rules) of the company, pursuant to which the Group
agrees to provide transportation and warehousing services to
ETIC and its associates; As ETIC is a substantial shareholder
of the Company, it is a connected person of the Company (as
defined under the Listing Rules), and the transactions between
which and the Company constitute connected transactions

of the Company under the Chapter 14A of Listing Rules.

Individual agreements will be entered into between the parties
with respect to the specific services pursuant to the terms

of the Transportation and Warehousing Services Framework
Agreement. Such individual agreements will be entered in the
ordinary and usual course of business and on normal commercial
terms. The payment arrangement should be provided in the
individual agreements. The prices charged by the Group will
be agreed upon arm’s length negotiations between the parties

with reference to the prevailing market price. The term of the
Transportation and Warehousing Services Framework is three



Sales Framework Agreement

We entered into a sales framework agreement (the “Sales
Framework Agreement”) on 22 December 2017 with NVC
Singapore, pursuant to which the Group agrees to sell finished
products to NVC Singapore and its associates. NVC Singapore
is a subsidiary of Mr. Wang Dongming, an executive director of
the company, who holds 60% equity interest of NVC Singapore.
Therefore NVC Singapore is a connected person of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the proposed
transactions under the Sales Framework Agreement constitute
connected transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Individual agreements will be entered into between the parties
with respect to the specific finished products pursuant to the
terms of the Sales Framework Agreement. Such individual
agreements will be entered in the ordinary and usual course
of business and on normal commercial terms. The payment
arrangement should be provided in the individual agreements.
The prices charged by the Group for the finished products will
be agreed upon arm’s length negotiations between the parties
with reference to the market price for the same or similar type
of products provided in the same or surrounding regions. The
entering of the Sales Framework Agreement will facilitate the
penetration of the Company’s products into Singapore and
ASEAN market and enhance the Company’s brand awareness.
The term of the Sales Framework Agreement is three years
commencing from 1 January 2018. (Please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 22 December 2017 for more
information)

The maximum aggregate annual amounts receivable to NVC
Singapore under the Sales Framework Agreement for the years
ended 31 December 2018, 2019 and 2020 are RMB20,000,000,
RMB30,000,000 and RMB40,000,000, respectively.
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Confirmation on Continuing Connected Transaction

Pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the above
Continuing Connected Transactions have been reviewed by the
Independent Non-executive Directors, who confirmed that these
Continuing Connected Transactions were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iii)  according to relevant agreements governing them on
terms that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
the connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
a letter containing a conclusion that the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group above have no non-
compliance with Rule 14A.56 of Listing Rule. The auditor’s
letter has confirmed that nothing has come to their attention
that causes them to believe that the continuing connected
transactions:

(i) have not been approved by the Board;

(i) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with
the pricing policies of the Group as stated in this annual
report;

(iii)  were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreement governing the
continuing connected transactions; and
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(iv)  have exceeded their respective annual caps for the
financial year ended 31 December 2017 set out in the
previous announcements of the Company.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been submitted by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group entered
into certain transactions with “related parties” as defined
under the applicable accounting standards, which include (1)
transactions that could constitute connected transactions in
the event that the Relevant Purported Pledge and Guarantee
Agreements are determined to be legally valid, and (2)
transactions that constitute continuing connected transactions
for which the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules have been complied with. Details of the material
related party transactions are disclosed in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Disclosures pursuant to Rules 13.21 and
13.22 of the Listing Rules

The Board is not aware of any circumstances resulting in the
responsibility of disclosure under Rules 13.21 and 13.22 of the
Listing Rules.
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The Group’s remuneration policy is to compensate our
employees based on their performance, qualifications and our
results of operations.

The emoluments of our Directors and senior management are
determined by our Remuneration Committee with reference to
our results of operations, their individual performance and the
comparable market statistics.

The Company was not aware of any arrangement under which
a Director has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.
Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the Group’s five
highest-paid individuals are set out in note 9 and note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements on pages 288 to 293 of this
annual report, respectively.

Housing Fund and Pension Scheme

According to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, the Group’s
subsidiaries operating in the PRC are required to participate in
the housing fund and the defined contribution pension scheme
operated by local governments. Under these schemes, the Group
is required to pay to the defined contribution schemes based on
a certain percentage of the remuneration of its employees. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the housing fund
and pension scheme is to make the required contributions under
the scheme. Contributions made under the housing fund and
pension scheme are charged in the statements of profit or loss
as incurred.

The Company may not utilize any forfeited contributions in order
to make fewer contributions than the current amounts.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s contributions to the
housing fund and pension scheme were RMB65,855,000. Details
of the Group’s contributions to the housing fund and pension
scheme are set out in note 7 on pages 286 to 287 and note 9
on pages 288 to 292 to the consolidated financial statements of
this annual report, respectively.
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No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

Charitable Contributions

During the Reporting Period, the Group made donations of
approximately RMB190,000.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the Reporting Period, the revenue from the sales to our
top five customers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s
total revenue and the purchases of goods and services from our
top five suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s
total purchases.

Compliance with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices and the Code on
Corporate Governance

During the Reporting Period, the Company had complied with
the principles and codes provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code, except for code provision A.2.1. Please refer
to Corporate Governance Report on pages 112 to 134 of this
annual report for further details.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Specific
enquiry has been made to all Directors, and all of them have
confirmed that they have complied with all relevant requirements
as set out in the Model Code during the Reporting Period, the
details are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” on
page 112 to 113 of this annual report.
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On 14 March 2018, the Company entered into a non-binding
co-operation framework agreement (the “Co-operation
Framework Agreement”) with ETIC and Mr. WANG Donglei (each
a “Party”,together the “Parties”), pursuant to which, subject
to entering into definitive agreements, the Company intends
to sell, and ETIC and Mr. WANG Donglei intend to acquire,
directly and indirectly, the Company’s domestic lighting products
manufacturing business (the “Target Assets”) which includes
but not limited to the entire share capital of Huizhou NVC (the
“Potential Disposal”). The definitive scope of the Target Assets
will be subject to further discussions between the Parties.

In the past two years, the profitability of lighting product
manufacturers shrunk due to sustained increase in costs of
certain metal raw material, components and labour. In 2018,
in order to strengthen its core competitiveness and achieve
sustainable development, the Group formulated a strategy
of gradually transforming from a manufacturing enterprise to
a channel enterprise. The Potential Disposal contemplated
under the Co-operation Framework Agreement can reduce
the proportion of manufacturing business in the Group, and is
therefore in line with the development strategy and long-term
interests of the Group. For more details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 14 March 2018.

On 16 March 2018, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) with
Roman International (HK) Co., Limitel0¥  7¢b"®!-

(“the Seller”), pursuant to which, the Company agrees to acquire,
and the Seller agrees to sell, a 40% equity interest in Blue Light
(HK) Trading Co., Limite€ 0 ¥ 0 f "gqo b " ® !+ (‘the
Target Company”) at a consideration of RMB315,000,000. The
Target Company controls a business engaged in the sale and
distribution of lighting products through e-commerce platforms
and distribution channels. As at the date of execution of the Sale
and Purchase Agreement, the Target Company indirectly holds
85% equity interest in Wuhu NVC Electronic Business Co., Ltd.
(“Wuhu Electronic”) and the Company indirectly holds 10% equity
interest in Wuhu Electronic. Upon Completion, the Company will
hold 40% equity interest in the Target Company, and indirectly
hold, in aggregate, 44% equity interest in Wuhu Electronic.
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Such acquisition will strengthen the Company’s ability to develop
and/or cooperate with online-to-offline sales and distribution
channels. The source of funds for such acquisition is mainly self-
owned funds and bank loans. Following such acquisition, the
Company will continue to expand the variety of its sales and
distribution channels and benefit from the collection, analysis and
application of big data in respect of consumer behaviour. For
more details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 19 March 2018.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Auditor

On 16 December 2015, the Board passed, by a majority,
resolutions to terminate the contract with Messrs Ernst & Young
(“EY”) as the auditor of the Company and appoint BDO Limited
(“BDO”") as the new auditor of the Company (together, the
“Change of Auditor”). The above-mentioned Change of Auditor
has been passed by the Shareholders in the Extraordinary
General Meeting which was held on 17 March 2016.

The figures in respect of the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position, consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and the related
notes thereto for the year ended 31 December 2017 as set out
in this annual report have been audited by the Group’s auditor,
BDO, to the amounts set out in the Group’s audited consolidated
financial statements for the year.

A resolution to re-appoint BDO as our auditor will be submitted
for shareholders’ approval at forthcoming annual general
meeting.

By order of the Board
Chairman
WANG Donglei

Hong Kong
22 March 2018
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The Board presents this Corporate Governance Report in the
Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board is committed to achieving high corporate governance
standards.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions as set out in the CG Code.

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Group to safeguard the
interests of shareholders, enhance corporate value, formulate its
business strategies and policies, and enhance its transparency
and accountability.

The Board are of the opinion that, during the Reporting Period,
the Company had fully complied with the principles and
code provisions as set out in the CG Code, except for Code
Provision A.2.1. which requires that the role of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same person. The details of deviation are set
out in section headed “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer”
below in this Corporate Governance Report.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code which was set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and all of
them have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Company has also established written guidelines no less
exacting than the Model Code for securities transactions by
the relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company (the
“Employees Written Guidelines”).
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The Company is not aware any incident of non-compliance of the
Employees Written Guidelines by the relevant employees.

Board of Directors
The Board oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions
and performance and should take decisions objectively in the

best interests of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that Non-
executive Directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject
to re-election, while code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code states
that all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be
subject to election by shareholders at the first general meeting
after appointment and that every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles
of Association. The Nomination Committee is responsible for
reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating the
relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of Directors,
monitoring the appointment and succession planning of Directors
and assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors.

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years with effect
from their respective date of appointment unless terminated by
not less than three months’ written notice served by either the
Executive Directors or the Company. Each of the Non-executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors has signed
an appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years
with effect from their respective date of appointment unless
terminated by not less than three months’ written notice served
by either the Non-executive Directors of the Company. The above
appointments are subject to the provisions of retirement and
rotation of Directors under the Company’s Articles of Association.
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In accordance with Article 83(3) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, any new director appointed to fill a causal vacancy
shall submit himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at
the first general meeting after appointment, any new director
appointed as an addition to the Board shall submit himself/

herself for re-election by shareholders at the next following
annual general meeting after appointment. And in accordance
with Article 84(1) and (2) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple
of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall
be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least
once every three years. The Directors to retire by rotation shall
include (so far as necessary to ascertain the number of directors
to retire by rotation) any director who wishes to retire and not
to offer himself/herself for re-election. Any further directors so
to retire shall be those of the Directors subject to retirement
by rotation who have been longest in office since their last re-
election or appointment and so that as between persons who

became or were last re-elected Directors on the same day those
to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be
determined by lot. Accordingly, Mr. WANG Donglei, Mr. WANG
Dongming, Mr. XIAO Yu and Mr. LI Wei will be subject to re-
election on the forthcoming annual general meeting. None of the
Directors who is proposed for re-election or any other Directors

has a service contract with us that is not determinable by the

Company within one year without payment of compensation

(other than statutory compensation).

Responsibilities of the Directors and Management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and
control of the Company; and is collectively responsible for
directing and supervising the Company'’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads
and provides direction to management by laying down strategies
and overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s
operational and financial performance, and ensures that sound
internal control and risk management systems are in place.
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All Directors, including Non-executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of
valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism to
the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are responsible for
ensuring a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company
and providing a balance in the Board for bringing effective
independent judgement on corporate actions and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of
the Company and may request the joint company secretaries
and senior management to provide services and advice. The
Directors may, upon request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses
for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other
offices held by them and the Board regularly reviews the
contribution required from each Director to perform his/her
responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of directors and other significant operational matters of the
Company.

Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and management
of the Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and
the senior management. The delegated functions and work tasks
are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
abovementioned officers.
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and
changes in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion of
his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and full awareness of
Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors will be
arranged and reading material on relevant topics would be
provided to Directors where appropriate. All Directors are
encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the Company’s
expenses.
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The record of continuous professional development relating @ +86U 2017E12031 U R E x
to director’s duties and regulatory and business development QYbée+ 2;9M8 i+Y5

that have been received by the Directors for the year ended 31 fIYY8ie3%}? %hj

December 2017 are summarized as follows:

Type of

Name of Directors Training Netes
e+‘a C A 69 v
Executive Directors B e+
WANG Donglei Td B
WANG Dongming 70 B
XIAO Yu y A B
WANG Keven Dun Tm B
Non-Executive Directors ¢tB e+
LI Huating ¥%6n B
LI Wei Y B
YANG Jianwen (Note 1) @ O€eW1 - B
Independent Non-Executive Directors ume¢B é+
LEE Kong Wai, Conway Yo ¥ A/B
WANG Xuexian T2« B
WEI Hongxiong gf? B
SU Ling =E B

Notes: Wy

1. Ms. YANG Jianwen resigned on 22 March 2018. 1. @ O~{062018E 3U22U@,f

Types of Training CAo69

A: Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings, Aj CA 0d <(""68W

seminars, conferences and workshops 6e%A6e6D gzf+
B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines Bj agd é-rzAe we, eO

and relevant publications g’ é HJ



Board Committees

The Board has established five committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee,
Strategy and Planning Committee and Independent Investigations
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are posted
on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website
and are available to shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

Audit Committee

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee include maintaining relationship
with the auditor of the Group, reviewing financial information
of the Group, supervising the financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control system of the Group, and the
duties of corporate governance designated by the Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held three
meetings to review, in respect of annual financial results for the
year ended 31 December 2016, the interim results and reports
for the period ended 30 June 2017, and significant issues on
the financial reporting, operational and compliance controls,
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems and internal audit function, appointment of external
auditors and engagement of non-audit services and relevant
scope of works and, connected transactions and arrangements
for employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties.
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The Audit Committee also met the external auditors twice. 28% pBbUE~.l&paX Ga&
6Df

Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules requires the Audit Committee to *j9ee/E'K 321a°*>2¢€ % pb

comprise a minimum of three members with Independent Non- 2 < CgaOpdum¢B e+
executive Directors in majority and at least one member with 2&tupd CSaOpHeéeG..Y
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related Y8 gb6 D &l M#YS8]
financial management expertise. A f

Ms. YANG Jianwen has resigned as a Non-executive Director @ O0~{S@.,¢tB é&+d 2018
with effect from 22 March 2018, therefore, she ceased to be E3U22U01T[O0OdBY%"ZJ2¢ %
the member of Audit Committee. As of the date of this annual p6O0OpfoIlE SU,d2e %
report, the Audit Committee consists of two members, namely, p6_G Op\Od+9%0um¢B
Independent Non-executive Director Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway e+%¥ «[¢umeB é+1

and Independent Non-executive Director Mr. WANG Xuexian, acc[f¥ «[S—%, % 2 e

respectively. Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway has been appointed as %o p60O©f
the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Following Ms. YANG Jianwen'’s resignation, the Audit Committee 8@ O~{@, d2e%p6Aq

would have two members only, which falls below the minimum GueOpd[pCd28%p6 A£I
requirements provided in the terms of reference of the Audit Oe>Yd- EfI®!I$M<Z
Committee. The Company is in the process of identifying and J ¢% ,G..[odgip2¢e%p
shall appoint suitable candidates to fill up the vacancy of the 67dyf

Audit Committee as soon as practicable.

Remuneration Committee ZG % p6

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are ZG%p6Y £ Y ia ?”

of no less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. AstsM7AEOL1-Yz fZG
The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include %o pbBYOD 2 <2aH9eée+
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the TtM#4YZG >eE é+¢ +
remuneration packages of individual Directors and senior tM#4YZGA ¢Vo(late

management, the re4( r)18.2(efer)182(efeo9 crr)18.1(d)4.2( ono% 6rd) B3.1(@)4 2(moAdD ( ofl&ctu theno9 t,
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During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee met
twice to review and make recommendation to the Board on
the remuneration policy and structure of the Company, and the
performance and the remuneration packages of the Executive
Directors and senior management, and review the terms of
Executive Directors’ service contracts and other related matters.

Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules requires an issuer to establish a
Remuneration Committee chaired by Independent Non-executive
Director and comprising a majority of Independent Non-executive
Directors.

As of the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee
consists of three members, namely, Non-executive Director
Mr. LI Wei, Independent Non-executive Director Mr. LEE Kong
Wai, Conway and Independent Non-executive Director Mr. WEI
Hongxiong, respectively. Mr. WEI Hongxiong is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee.

In addition to the information about remuneration disclosed in
note 9 and note 10 to the consolidated financial statements on
pages 288 to 293 of this annual report, the remuneration of the
senior management of the Company falls in the following bands:
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86IE SK 288+ K 293+VY¥
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Number of Members of
Senior Management

+tM#4[p
Nil to HK$1,000,000 g 1,000,000 ¥ © 5
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 ¥ © 1,500,000 ¥ © 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 ¥ © 2,000,000 ¥ © -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 ¥ © 2,500,000 ¥ © -

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 ¥ © 3,000,000 ¥ © -



Nomination Committee

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no
less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The
principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of Directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and succession planning of Directors, and assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects as well as factors
concerning Board diversity as set out in the Company’s Board
diversity policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and industry and regional experience etc. The
Nomination Committee would discuss and agree on measurable
objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary,
and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships,
the Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s
character, qualifications, experience, independence and other
relevant criteria necessary to complement the corporate strategy
and achieve Board diversity, where appropriate, before making
recommendation to the Board.

The Board has set measurable objectives (in terms of gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of services) to
implement the Board diversity policy and review such objects
from time to time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain
the progress made towards achieving those objectives. The
Nomination Committee will review the Board diversity policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to
time.
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During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee met
once to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board and the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, and to consider the qualifications of the retiring
directors standing for election at the Annual General Meeting.
The Nomination Committee considered an appropriate balance
of diversity perspectives of the Board is maintained.

Code Provision A.5.1 of the CG Code requires an issuer to
establish a Nomination Committee chaired by the chairman of the
board or an independent non-executive director and comprises a
majority of independent non-executive directors.

As of the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee
consists of three members, namely, Executive Director Mr.
WANG Donglei, Independent Non-executive Director Mr. LEE
Kong Wai, Conway and Independent Non-executive Director Mr.
WEI Hongxiong, respectively. Mr. WANG Donglei is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee.

Strategy and Planning Committee

The primary function of the Strategy and Planning Committee is
to propose and formulate the strategic development plan of the
Company for the Board’s consideration.

As of the date of this annual report, the Strategy and Planning
Committee consists of four members, namely, Executive Director
Mr. WANG Donglei, Executive Director Mr. XIAO Yu, Non-
executive Director Mr. LI Wei and Independent Non-executive
Director Mr. WANG Xuexian, respectively. Mr. WANG Donglei is
the chairman of the Strategy and Planning Committee. During
the Reporting Period, no meeting was convened by the Strategy
and Planning Committee.
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Independent Investigations Committee um _%pb6

To advance the internal investigations into matters involving % 2T I®IAB &+¢/©B o
Mr. WU Changjiang, the former Executive Director and Chief N—eé<«<[ ~YPé&+eY«A _
Executive Officer of the Company, the Company has established Yt dI®! " @¢+6hOmYum

the Independent Investigations Committee under the Board. _ %o pb6fe+6S-F0um _ %
The Independent Investigations Committee has been authorized P66 I®!AN—@&«c[ YY",

by the Board to exercise powers and perform duties on behalf %%t «A _UOdpEe+6 4
of the Board in relation to the conduct of the investigations "e/ED(5 "é afum _ %o
into, among other things, the alleged wrongdoing of Mr. WU p6u ~AE£A«A _ «icY,
Changjiang. The Independent Investigations Committee has also acQ+3gyZ(£e+6d

been authorized to consider and make recommendations to the & DfF1I®IAN—@é«<[ 0Y
Board with respect to any potential proceedings arising from <e %Y _dum _ % p638j
the internal investigations. In connection with the Company’s Kg U] UbAbPé<e %S,
investigations of the alleged wrongdoing of Mr. WU Changjiang, _d(AI®!1¢106 *n®!

the Independent Investigations Committee has instructed a t «>Y d, _¢«A9>Y
third-party service provider to conduct a forensic review of $S.0f ¢« al®!'U, %
related irregularities and an internal controls assessment of the  2015E7 U017 U 015E9U017 U Y ®
Company and its key subsidiaries. The forensic review and the Sf

internal controls assessment has been completed. Please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 17 July 2015 and
17 September 2015 for details.

Ms. YANG Jianwen has resigned as a Non-executive Director @ O0~{S@,¢B é&+d 2018
with effect from 22 March 2018, therefore, she ceased to be the E30U22UT[OdBY%”ZJ0um
member of Independent Investigations Committee. As of the date _ % p6OpfdIE sSU,du

of this annual report, the Independent Investigations Committee m %p6_geOp\Od+ 9%
consists of three members, namely, Independent Non-executive umce¢B e+%¥ <[eum¢B
Director Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway, Independent Non- e+id«c<[¢umcecB é+g
executive Director Mr. WANG Xuexian and Independent Non- fac<[fd SE «dium _ %o

executive Director Mr. WEI Hongxiong, respectively. During the p6J $6Df
Reporting Period, no meeting was convened by the Independent
Investigations Committee.



Appointment and Resignation of Directors and Change
in Directors’ Information

From 1 January 2017 to the date of this annual report, the
appointment and resignation of Directors and changes in the

Directors’ information of the Company are as follows:

Mr. WEI Hongxiong, the Independent Non-executive Director
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Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board shall confirm its responsibilities for the risk
management and internal control of the Group and examine
its effectiveness through the audit committee to safeguard the
assets and investment of the Group as well as the interests of
shareholders. The risk management and internal control system
aims at the management but not the elimination of risks of failure
to attain the business target, and only provides reasonable but
not absolute guarantee for not having material misstatements or
losses.

Characteristics of the risk management and internal
control system of the Company, and the program for
reviewing the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control system:

The Board shall be responsible for the risk management and
internal control system, continue to inspect its effectiveness and
warrant that the Group shall establish and maintain the effective
risk management and internal control system; inspect the risk
management and internal control of the Group at least once
a year; supervise the management in respect of the design,
implementation and supervision of the risk management and
internal control system;

The audit committee shall be responsible for the inspection of the
risk management and internal control system of the Company;
the assessment for the outcome of the evaluating and auditing
the risk management and internal control system; the supervision
and promotion of rectifying the defects of the risk management
and internal control; the discussion with the management over
the risk management and internal control system in order to
ensure that the management has performed its duties to set
up the effective system; at the same time, proactively or upon
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The management shall undertake the duties of risk management
and internal control; formulate the appropriate strategy in
response to the risk; conduct the risk alert in advance and
promptly issue the risk management report; at the same time, be
responsible for evaluating the internal control; identify the defects
of the internal control and formulate the rectification scheme;
inform the Board and the audit committee of the relevant
information.

Programs for ldentifying, Assessing and Managing the
Material Risk:

Risk identification: to determine the standards for measuring the
risk; identify the potential risk which may affect the Group.

Risk assessment: to assess the identified risk and classify the
level of the risk.

Risk response: to select the strategy in response to the level of
the risk for the risk control department to follow up whether the
strategy in response is effective; at the same time, formulate the
relevant policy in response to avoid the recurrence of the risk or
minimize the relevant risk.

Risk supervision: to continue the regular inspection of the
relevant risk; promptly revise the risk management and internal
control procedure; ensure that the relevant controlling procedure
is appropriate and effective; provide the management and the
Board with the regular report on the outcome of risk supervision.

The Company shall set up the internal audit department and
the risk control department to regularly monitor and assess the
internal risk and control system of each department in order
to determine the risk which may affect the business and other
aspects of the Group (including key operational and financial
processes, regulatory compliance and information safety).
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The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on
pages 187 to 198 of this annual report. Shareholders are advised
to read the paragraph of qualified option in the independent
auditor’s report.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors of
the Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services
for the Reporting Period amounted to RMB3,000,000 and
RMB1,000,000 respectively.

An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external auditors of

the Company, BDO Limited, in respect of audit services and non-
audit services for the Reporting Period is set out below:

Service Category

°f
Audit Services 2¢e
Non-audit Services: t2é |
— Review of interim results N2a+,86

Company Secretary

Ms. LO Yee Har Susan and Miss LEUNG Ching Ching of
Tricor Services Limited, external service provider, have been
engaged by the Company as its joint company secretaries. Its
primary contact person at the Company is Mr. TAN Ying, the
chief financial officer and vice-president of overseas marketing
company of the Company. During the Reporting Period, Ms. LO
and Miss LEUNG have complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules of taking no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training.
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Shareholders’ Rights

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
general meetings, including the election of individual Director.
Pursuant to the Listing Rules, all resolutions put forward at
general meetings will be voted on by poll except where the
chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution which
relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be
voted on by a show of hands and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after each
general meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association,

an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) may be convened
by the Board upon requisition of one or more Shareholders

holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the

Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the

Company. Such meeting shall be held within two months after

the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of the deposit

of the requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene such

EGM, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, while all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The requisitionist(s) must state the objects clearly in the
requisition, sign the requisition and deposit the same to the
Board or the company secretaries or the primary contact person
of the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to put forward new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2013 Revision) or the Articles of Association of
the Company. However, shareholders who wish to put forward

proposal at general meetings may convene an EGM following the
procedures set out above.
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Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not
normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Primary Contact Person

Shareholders may send their requisitions, proposed resolutions
for the general meeting or enquiries to the Board as mentioned
above to the primary contact person of the Company as set out
below:

Name: The Chairman of NVC Lighting Holding Limited

Address: Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2956 2192
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During the Reporting Period, the Company did not make any
changes to its Articles of Association. An up to date version of
the Company’s Articles of Association is also available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains
a website at www.nvc-lighting.com.cn, where information
and updates on the Company’s business developments and
operations, financial information, corporate governance practices
and other information are available for public access.

Going Concern
There are no material uncertainties relating to events or

conditions that cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.
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About the Report
Reporting Guideline

This Report is the second Environment, Social and Governance
(“"ESG”) Report published by NVC Lighting Holding Limited.
It has been prepared in compliance with the “Environmental,
Social, and Governance Reporting Reporting Guide” set out in
Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Main Board of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited,
as well as based on actual situation of the Company. The Report
aims at improving stakeholders’ awareness of environment,
social and the sustainability strategy of the Company. The Board
of Directors of the Company has approved the Report and
confirmed that it is accurate, factual and complete.

Reporting Scope

The Report discloses the environmental and social performance
of the Group from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017. In

addition to the headquarters of NVC Lighting Holding Limited

and Huizhou base, the scope of this Report was expanded as

compared to 2016, including data from Chongging Wanzhou

base, Zhejiang Jiangshan base and Shanghai Qingpu base. The
disclosure of all indicators in the Report can be seen in the ESG
content index at the end of the Report.

Feedback

We will continue to improve the content and format of the ESG
Report in the future. For any inquiries or recommendations,
please do not hesitate to contact us. Contact information is as
follows:

NVC Lighting Holding Limited

Address: NVC Industrial Park, Huicheng District, Huizhou City,
Guangdong Province

Email address: ir@nvc-lighting.com

Tel: +86-752-2786600

Fax: +86-752-2786689
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Chairman’s Message
Dear stakeholders,

In 2017, we were making steady progress on implementing the
new meaning of NVC, i.e. open and connected, continuous
growth, and leading the transformation. We fully leveraged the
advantages of our entire corporate value chain, striving for the
transition towards green and environment-friendly LED lighting
products, and providing energy-efficient, healthy and comfortable
lighting solutions for our customers. We adhered to the
attitude of independent innovation and participated in research
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In 2017, the priority of our environmental management was the
control of resources consumption and emissions of the four
major production bases. Each production base’s environmental
management process is completed through cooperation
and coordination between departments through a mode of
corporate autonomy and supervision of the Group, satisfying
the bottom line of compliant emissions. Building on compliance,
we paid attention to the consumption of energy, water, raw
materials and many other resources, studied on and carried
out related energy-saving, water-saving measures to lower the
consumption of the natural resources of the company. We were
committed to reducing the impact on the environment during
the production process. We also made our employees aware of
the idea of green office and green living through advocation and
education, guiding them to take practical actions to participate in
environmental protection.

Employees are NVC’'s core resources. We have been looking
deep into creating and optimizing human resources and
transforming them into a drive for sustainable development
of the Group. We offer all-rounded protection on the rights
and interests of our employees. We require the entire Group
to fully achieve compliance in all aspects related closely with
the employees such as employment benefits, work safety and
occupational disease prevention. On the basis of providing safe
and harmonious work environment, we put emphasis on the
development of individual employees so that they can develop
themselves while utilizing their own talents at NVC. We provide
different development channels for different employees through
professional training curriculum system including NVC university
so that they can grow together with NVC.

On the operational front, we aim at providing excellent products
and services for our customers. Independent research and
development have always been our top priority. With a strict
qguality management process and detailed supplier management
process in place, our teams are committed to making excellent
products from the cradle of research and development in a
reliable and environment-friendly way. We have set up complete
quality management standards regarding the inspector’s
qualification management to selection of verification standards,
and from the inspection of raw materials of suppliers to the
quality inspection of the finished products. We also regularly
analyzed and reported the product quality within the Group. Our
professional, comprehensive and caring services have helped
us to be able to provide excellent solutions for customers in all
fields such as construction, transportation, office, housing and
industry.
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We advocate continuous improvement and sustainable growth.
My team and | believe that sustainable development can
supplement with the Company’s operation and management.
In 2017, we strengthened our communications with the
stakeholders regarding the topic of sustainable development.
Through a wide variety of communications channels including
guestionnaire and phone interview, we learnt the feedback and
perspectives from our employees, suppliers, customers, etc,
regarding NVC’s management approach on environmental and
social issues. We also responded to their demands and accepted
their suggestions. Looking forward, we will continue to uphold
our attitude of open interconnection and listen to the opinions
of all parties in an open manner. We will also continue to launch
green lighting solutions compatible with the national development
strategies to further improve the Group’s work on environmental
and social aspects. We hope you continue to support us on the
journey of our development!

By Order of the Board
Wang Donglei
Chairman

March, 2018
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NVC'’s Value Creation Model

Human and Intellectual
Capital
[b~}F 1

5,89Bmployees

5,8961 p

Researchers, engineers and
technicians
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Cooperation with Tsinghua
University, etc, to achieve
integration of industry,
academic and research
~06}2 ¥*d:*ede

S -

Social and Relationship
Capital
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36 exclusive regional
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In 2017, the Group continued to conduct materiality assessment
on environmental and social topics. By commissioning a third-
party consultant to conduct phone interviews and questionnaires
with different stakeholder groups, the Group aims to understand
the outcome of its socially responsible initiatives and get the
grips with the improvement direction on sustainability. Based
on the assessment, we identified two major material topics,
i.e. employees and products. On the employee front, the
material topics are employees’ rights and interests, as well as
occupational safety and health. On the product front, the material
topics are green products and product health and safety. This
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Material Topics Descriptions of Topics Response from the Group

Y%/1DZ DZz\ l« «b

Green product Researching, developing and producing < Establishment of NVC (Beijing) Lighting
green energy-saving lighting products Environment Innovation Institute
to protect the environment * The key national special project —

Research on High-Efficiency and
Long-Life LED Driven Power Supply
Technologies — has been approved
*0 Yi[*> -ektu*Ud-» ® e Omd{€ /" wo-Y0é
e -7+ AY°N+0O—2VvLED"
eU|"v0™

Product health Provision of high quality and safe < Establishment of product monitoring,
and safety lighting products for customers measurement and control procedures
e Obtaining 1SO 9001:2008 certification
for quality control system
*U pAE % Od6 /AEYKkU*U o E£bPe*U9VQg»Z>Sie"
e« _{ISO9001:2008U/MS 0G©OC

Cohesion of Employees

In the knowledge-based economy era, the Group regards its T1E£e%oYUpdl« VI[b
human resources as a major impetus for its continuous business U% 2 8 5 fieY b f
development. We attach great importance to the management ¢CAClI V[b UYM#dcbe-
of human resources, dedicating to improve employees’ P E:d%p d6CA~ieU
welfare, providing training and opportunities of development for 6d(z 8AE po6 / d ¢
employees, putting occupational safety and health as top priority, gS% Y~ * fJ8d¢AZ1
and creating harmonious and friendly working environment for fYleC (-5 g['dg¥%-
employees. Looking ahead, we will continue to recruit, nurture « —AYO f

and retain excellent talents to ensure long-term success of the



Diversity and Harmony; Respect for Human
Rights

We strictly comply with relevant national labor laws and
regulations, including the Labor Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China, and provisions for prohibition of use of child labor, making
sure equal opportunities for work and avoiding any form of
discrimination, including age, sex, marriage, sexual orientation,
race, religion, disability or political background. We strictly
prohibit the use of child labor and forced labor in our business
operation process. In 2017, the Group were not aware of any
reports regarding violation of employee’s basic rights, or the use
of child labor or forced labor.

The Group is engaged in design, manufacturing and sale of
lighting electrical products. We comply with the code of ethics
of Electronic Industry Corporate Citizenship, making sure the
work environment of the electronic industry’s supply chain is safe
and the employees are treated with respect and dignity. To this
end, in addition to compliance with national laws, the Group also
adopts several international accepted standards, including ILO
Declaration on Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work, and
UN Universal Declaration of Human Rights, to ensure our labor
standards are in line with international levels.

Employee Composition

Diversity of employees helps the Group to flexibly respond
to changes in business environment and improve innovative
capability. As of 31 December 2017, there were 5,895 employees
in the headquarters of the Group and its four major bases, 26%
of which were management staff and the remaining 74% were
frontline employees. Among the above-said employees, the
ratio of male to female is 43:57. Most of our employees were 30
years old or under, accounting for 53%; those between 31 to 50
accounted for 46%; and those above 50 accounted for 1%. In
terms of education background, 21% were associate degree or
above, among which, 34 were postgraduates.
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Functional Distribution
p~ ex1

1550
26%

Gender Distribution

CER

3359
57%

4345 _— 2536 m -]
74% Management 43% Female
mAp m ol
Frontline Male
Educational Distribution Age Distribution
pravyzx1 610 p Egx1 2693
0,
10% 46%
634
11% 96
1%
4651
79% 3106
53% W 31-50
B Asgj "}y B 1lYgh m>50
Undergraduate Associate Below associate
or above degree degree N <31
The Group actively improves its remuneration, benefit, trainin | « =g YZGE; CA
p y 1imp 9 q

and development system to retain and attract excellent talents. In
2017, the Group’s quarterly average new hire rate and turnover
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rate of employees were 6% and 11% respectively, as shown by (it0 % 11%fehiE219¢

gender and age in the figure below.
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Quarterly Average Turnover Rate and New Hire Rate of Employees by Age
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Quarterly Average Turnover Rate and New Hire Rate of Employees by Gender
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Talent Management

The Group has set up well-rounded human resources
management policy and system, including employee manual,
recruitment and dismissal management system, remuneration
management system, performance management measures,
social liability procedural documents, and measures for human
resources information management. This has laid a good
foundation for personnel management.
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Recruitment and Promotion

The Group upholds a fair, impartial and open recruitment
principle, and recruits talents by external recruitment, internal
promotion, recommendation from employees, etc. In addition, the
Group’s management model offers an open work environment
for employees, mechanisms for fair treatment of employees and
employee complaints, such that employees are able to give full
play to their functions. The Group has systematic promotion
systems which encourage excellent employees and promote
them to actively make contributions to the Company’s operation
and management.

Team Cohesion

To strengthen the employees’ sense of belonging, the Group
organizes various types of employee activities irregularly to
enrich the employee’s life and relieve their work stress. In 2017,
our regional bases organized several team building activities.
For example, Shanghai Base held a sport contest. Enriched
employee activities can effectively enhance communication and
exchange between employees and enhance cohesion of teams
while showing good team style and features.

Training and Development

As a leading company of China’s lighting source product
industry, the Group attaches great importance to talent nurturing
and development. The career development model features dual
channels. One is the channel towards management, i.e. one
can be promoted to higher level of management by leading
teams and enhancing their own management skills; the other
is the channel towards professionals, i.e. one can be promoted
to higher level of professionals through sustained and in-
depth development in certain specific field. The Group has
invested enormously to establish NVC University and appointed
international and domestic renowned lecturers to provide
systematic professional training to professional managers of
all business modules, frontline employees and dealers. We
implement complete training plans to help our employees to
make progress in career. This will promote the Group to grow
and develop in turn.
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We are dedicated to designing and implementing diversified
training programs in order to provide trainings for employees
of different levels and professional background. We target to
deliver effective training to cope with the diversified demand of
our employees. The employees’ training and career development
commences as of the first day they joined in the Group. We
implement pre-job training for newly-employed employees.
Human Resources Department will organize training for new
employees, so that they can understand the Company’s basic
system and related safety policy. This will help them integrate
into the working environment of the Group. Then, further training
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Total Training Person-time by Function
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Average Training Hours by Gender
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The Group developed a series of codes of conduct regarding
occupational health and safety, and professional ethics according
to EICC, including hiring safety and health professionals to
arrange regular safety inspection and assess the safety and
health status of the Company’s activities, in order to reduce
potential risk factors and prevent accidents. Meanwhile, the
Group developed emergency response procedures, regularly
arranged first-aid treatment, outfire, evacuation and escape drills.
The Group also established accident report and investigation
systems to encourage its employees to report any accident and
unsafe factor.

i%ees 8®OL' % _Adl«
S>SGeY 8 p~AE 88
CY %z f..o <1 AE |
Y8[{dA°> AEe»dY ®
lz YAE [K1d C Y3
"agdk# .+Bfe0dS>bD
"aPlOed>,A°"1eXeaeq/
sU[ ffl« u m+B Sq

S d|,p” S+Bq"AE
aof

As for the prevention of occupational disease, the Group
established a comprehensive set of rules on managing
occupational safety and health, with the Human Resources
Department being the core coordinator. Such rules are clear in
functions and responsibility. The functions and responsibility of
each department have all been clearly included into the Details
about Management of Occupational Health and Safety of the
Group and shall be reviewed on a regular basis. In addition,
as required by regulations, we regularly organize employees
for health examination, and provide employees with personal
protective equipment which are replaced regularly.
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In order to improve the employees’ awareness of occupational
safety, the Group promotes the education related to occupational
health and safety, delegating the Human Resources Department
the responsibility to organize relevant trainings, including pre-
job training on professional health and on-the-job training,
such as provision of employees training on prevention of cross-
infection of disease. Apart from regular trainings, we required
that all departments shall place obvious labels or marks at
production and construction sites and declare rules, procedures
and emergency rescue measures in relation to the prevention
and control of occupational diseases and release the test
results about dangerous factors that might lead to occupational
diseases in workplace. In 2017, the person-time of occupational
safety and health education training reached 2,575. There were
7,432 hours of safety training in total.

Occupational Safety and
Health Performance
8AE p60O

Rate of work-related injuries
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Lost days due to work-related injuries
a~/E&OUpP

Work-related fatalities
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Total training person-time
CA<Ja

Total training hours
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Remarks: The data boundary of 2016 only covered Guangdong Huizhou
Base. The data boundary of 2017 covered Chongging
Wanzhou Base, Zhejiang Jiangshan Base and Shangha
Qingpu Base, in addition to Guangdong Huizhou Base.
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Create Greener Environment

As an expert in luminous environment, the Group is devoted *% "~ wYedl« ¢cb-@O0-

to pushing forward green lighting through innovation and “ida ° kud% et-e
R&D, providing efficient and energy-saving lighting solutions i9¥.e teads3el®e-te

to customers of all fields, such as, building, transportation, "8 19d6+0-«Yku OU
city lighting, supermarket, hotel, office, housing, industry. We 6f¢CA gmA & o,  od
strictly follow laws related to environment, continue to improve "Ue M#OUdd°U4\O0
management systems, improve the efficiency of energy use, and Bd(>Sg;°6d C6 A =n
control discharge of waste water, waste gas and solid wastes to *[YBaf

gradually alleviate the impact over environment by operation.

Environmental Compliance a¥e

The Group strictly complies with national laws and regulations l« Y6 @mA7+ &Y o
related to the environment, including Environmental Protection , ,°d <eeB6[0QOeq7 =©
Law of the People’s Republic of China, Guangdong Standards me,B? 2} TQJ"=°0
about Limitations on Discharge of Air Pollutants, Prevention and z_*aiQ#7,e q o-
Control of Water Pollution Law, Marine Environmental Protection e, dg¢e? 247TQJ°06"
Law and Limit on Discharge of Water Pollutants of Guangdong. =" f2017E«dl« Uba<A
In 2017, the Group had not been imposed any fines or non- , 8, ,*pJQ }n>D¢
monetary sanctions due to non-compliance of environmental —-zZSRf

laws and regulations.



Environmental Management

The Group is dedicated to achieving harmonious coexistence
between its operation and the natural environment. It
developed Environmental Operation Control Procedures,with
an aim to realize efficient management of the environmental
problems related to its operation through cooperation
between departments. First, all departments shall identify
the environment-related problems in sections where they are
responsible for. And the General Affairs Department and Human
Resources Department shall be responsible for setting goals for
environmental protection and the management of equipment
requirements and coordinating with System Management
Department to evaluate the actual environmental factors before
taking corresponding measures for correction and prevention.
Finally, the System Management Department shall be responsible
for the verification of the results of correction and prevention.

2o /E9 £é¢fzM# a2oY
Environmental Facilities and Environmental

Aspects Objectives Factors

o M #

l« ¢b:¢c 6~ [ aYQg$s
cAdEme 86 >Sld @
CA"YX*dPOM#« 6 Y
o eDZf¢CA"/<E910 2
9Y wDzdZ_< A¢[b
UAE> afzgfeéM# Ed(
Xe OM#AY Yg ©v20d®
_gMbk#£Ddd _ OM#A
" ClgMBPKk#0 f

gM¢ k#
Correction and

Identification Management Evaluation Prevention

In 2017, the Group completed the renewal of ISO 14001
environmental management system certification (2015 version).

The bases of the Group also developed corresponding
Environmental Protection Management System, strictly managed
the Company’s environmental protection facilities and production
devices, implemented construction project Three-Simultaneities
system, conducted environmental impact assessment, developed
emergency response plans for environment pollution accidents,
conducted education and training on environmental protection
for employees, etc. Some production bases set up environmental
protection management committee according to the actual
conditions who is responsible for organization, coordination and
assessment of the Company’s environmental protection work,
requiring all members of such management agency to strictly
perform their duties.
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Resources Consumption

The Group strictly follows the Rules about Management of
Energy and Resources, advocates and educates its employees to
save water and electricity, etc., in order to reduce consumption
of resources.

Energy

The main types of energy consumed by the Group’s four major
bases included electricity, natural gas, diesel oil, gasoline and
liguefied petroleum gas, of which, the electricity accounted for
a largest percentage, up to 78%, followed by the natural gas,
accounting for 19%. In 2017, the Group’s four major bases
consumed a total of 58,943,989 kWh of electricity, equivalent to
212,198 gigajoules (GJ), a total of 1,361,813 ri of natural gas,
equivalent to 53,017 GJ, a total of 1,132 liters and 82,089 liters
of diesel oil and gasoline respectively, equivalent to 2,657 GJ,
and a total of 100,387 kg of liquefied petroleum gas, equivalent
to 5,037 GJ. The total energy intensity of the Group’s four major
bases was 0.067 GJ/one thousand of revenue in RMB. The
Group’s vehicle decreased in quantity, thus leading to significant
drop in oil consumption of cars.

Consumption Distribution of Main Types of Energy (GJ)
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Followed by the project to replace Huizhou Base’s public lighting
with LED lamps that save energy last year, in 2017, Shanghai
Base replaced its fluorescent lamps in its plant and office
lighting system with energy-saving LED tubes, greatly reducing
its electricity consumption. In addition, the Company also set
up Equipment Department responsible for unified management
of central air conditioning and office air conditioning and timely
maintenance of all blown switches and valves to reduce energy
consumption.

Water Resources

The Group’s four major bases mainly use tap water as water
resources and there is no problem in sourcing fitable water. It
consumed a total of 488,925 tons of water in 2017 and the
water intensity was 0.120 ton/a thousand of revenue in RMB.
The Group is continuously exploring feasible water-conservation
methods. In respect of domestic water consumption, we
installed water-conservation facilities in staff bathrooms and
toilets. In respect of production and building equipment water
consumption, we used water-conservation cooling towers. In
Guangdong Huizhou plants, the Group implemented techniques
combining cooling towers and cooling pool, which allow the
reuse of cooling water when it get cooled after flowing through
underground reflow cooling pool.

Types of Resources Unit
Udbe

Electricity kWh

e JwyYU

Natural Gas m?3
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Diesel oil Liter
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Tap Water Ton
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Remarks: The data boundary of 2016 only covered Guangdong Huizhou
Base; and the data boundary of 2017 covered Chongging
Wanzhou Base, Zhejiang Jiangshan Base and Shanghai
Qingpu Base, in addition to Guangdong Huizhou Base.
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Emissions Management COM#

The Group has developed Management of Emission of Waste @AfHiceVI@U0°06Y;
Gas, Waste Water and Solid wastes as to such emissions during e;d¢:;YJdl« SHg;

the process of manufacturing and marketing of luminaires, with COMHE™I Vo-« °COH:Q &
an aim to ensure its such emissions meet related requirements. > Ef 2017Edl« %AKgUO
In 2017, the Group delegated a third party to conduct tests and B Y;de; ¢>Jé»ed(U

no excessive emissions were found. These tests included waste P, tz°6«li[f

water, waste gas and noise test.

Greenhouse Gas ]
The Group’s greenhouse gas emissions are mainly direct l« Y] °6Ub6 <=+90
emissions from natural gas, gasoline and diesel oil burning, and Al e00q60*[Y\Y°6d
indirect emissions from electricity consumption. In 2017, the ¢f\..oebYoeY°6f 2017Ed
Group’s four major bases discharged a total of 39,943 tons of l« ,}?2®Y] <° 067 %
greenhouse gas. 39,9438 f
2016
Greenhouse Gas Unit Emissions
] 2016 E°6Z
Total emissions Ton carbon dioxide 16,215
<°67 equivalent
32 -A..Z
Direct emissions Ton carbon dioxide 4,335
(Scope 1) equivalent
\Y° o€l Se §8Z -A..Z
Indirect emissions Ton carbon dioxide 11,800
(Scope 2) equivalent
®eY°oEl Z» §3Z -A..Z
Remarks: The data boundary of 2016 only covered Guangdong Huizhou éWj 2016 E p % Ut A % ? | E?
Base; and the data boundary of 2017 covered Chongging ®f2017TEp%U¢d? IE?
Wanzhou Base, Zhejiang Jiangshan Base and Shanghai ®.d"-# E-E?2®e &

Qingpu Base, in addition to Guangdong Huizhou Base. et?2®¢j | ?20®f



Waste Gas

The Group strictly controls the emissions of industrial waste
gas according to the requirements of the local environmental
protection departments of the places where it operates. Some
plants even set up online pollution source monitoring system.
During the year, third party test reports showed that emissions of
all bases complied with related laws, regulations and standards,
including Prevention and Control of Air Pollutants Law, Standards
about Comprehensive Discharge of Air Pollutants, Limit on
Discharge of Air Pollutants of Guangdong, and etc.

The waste gas pollutants discharged from the Group mainly
included nitrogen oxide, sulfur dioxide and smoke released from
fuel combustion by plant and vehicle. The Group actively takes
measures to deal with such wastes and pollutants. For example,
on plant VOCs emissions, Shanghai Qingpu Base delegated
an accepted environmental protection equipment company to
design waste gas governance engineering and adopted advance
and mature processes, including activated carbon adsorption
device, in order to reduce the impact of the pollutant emissions
on the environment. In 2017, the nitrogen oxide, sulfur dioxide
and particulate matter (PM) released from the Group’s vehicle
exhausts were respectively 0.177 tons, 0.001 tons and 0.016
tons, while the nitrogen oxide, sulfur dioxide and smoke released
from the waste gas pollutants generated by the plant equipment
were respectively 3.459 tons, 1.601 tons and 6.560 tons.

Types of Pollutants Unit
iQJ°o606e
Nitrogen oxide Ton
¢ -J s
Sulfur dioxide Ton
zZ -7 S
PM Ton
1P §
Remark: The sources of waste gas pollutant emissions included

emissions from plant equipment and vehicle exhausts
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Waste Water

In 2017, the waste water generated in the Group’s operation
process was mainly the sanitary sewage. Its chemical oxygen
demand, and ammonia — nitrogen pollutant emissions were
respectively 18.2 tons and 1.4 tons. The third party test reports
showed that such emissions of all production bases were
in line with Integrated Sewage Discharge Standard and the
discharge standards set up by the local people’s governments.
As to sewage treatment, we have developed strict rules about
treatment of sewage and carried out separate treatment for
industrial waste water and sanitary sewage. The General Affairs
Department was responsible for the management of equipment
in the sewage treatment station, and also for the training and
management of the equipment operators.

Types of Pollutants Unit
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As for the non-hazardous wastes, we, according to the guidelines 2@ AS>;YIJdEtAT e YIM

of the Provisions for Management of Wastes, categorize and #e>'Y8IdZ «xY:JW%:
collect the recyclable wastes, such as, waste paper, plastic, wegie—ne Yéoé jK £06x
metal, wood and powder, and then transport them to qualified « dt_© «x “#Hilwx;
recycling agents for treatment. Wastes with no recycling and \ =Y ;YIJAEt ..®9A A
utilization value are passed to local municipal environmental "x« " #fE«dl« t LA«
sanitation department for central collection and treatment. During xYS>:YJe2,8755f

the year, the Group processed a total of 2,875 tons of non-
hazardous wastes for external recycling.

Types of Discharged Pollutants Unit
1QJ°0606¢é
Hazardous wastes Ton
§°;Y1J S
Non-hazardous wastes Ton
(for external recycling) s
S>:YJ
€. Auxo
Remark: The disposal tonnage of general wastes (for external W) S>;YIE. A«uxeY " #271]
recycling) excluded Guangdong Huizhou Base ~? IE?®
Green R&D and Production CVaie [
As a national brand in lighting field, the Group strives to research l« *% kiT90AUDd E-
and develop energy-efficient lighting system and internally @Yi+eOKkiudU¢ A« -
promote environmental protection culture to ensure the Group O-dyl« 8 £ eWie]
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Green and Innovative

The Group supports lighting research innovation and sets up
NVC (Beijing) Lighting Environment Innovation Institute. It is a
technology innovation entity. It promotes the LED era luminaires
to develop and provides more environment-friendly and clean
solutions for solving professional lighting problems.
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NVC (Beijing) Lighting Environment Innovation Institute
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In 2017, led by Institute of Engineering Thermophysics, Chinese
Academy of Sciences, the proposal of the key national special
project — Research on Key Technologies of High-Efficiency
and High-Reliability LED Luminaires — applied for by 23 units,
including the Group’s Guangdong Huizhou Base and Shanghai
Qingpu Base, has been approved. And it has formally began the
start-up procedures. This Project will significantly increase the
lighting efficiency and reliability of high power luminaires. The
innovative technologies based on this Project will significantly
increase the industrial level of China’s high power LED luminaires.

2017Ed_+7A2&°0 J#%0
O*%°f< =~ dl« ? |
E?®¢j | ?2® 23+ oo

a Y7« AY°"+0+ f LED
AiHEY!"%a™ -me°dMIit
1Y% OGef °fZ}7d=+}

AHY Oq fid?8a°fo-

17 9d°e7} LEDAH Y
*8.4 f



Promotion of Green Culture

The Group is dedicated to promoting the green culture and
strives to reduce unnecessary wastes in the production process.
We advocate and education employees to save water and
electricity, including turn off lights, water and air-conditioner, save
paper and separate wastes into different dustbins depending on
whether they are “recyclable” or “non-recyclable”. We are also
dedicated to reducing consumption of resources, cutting use
of unnecessary packaging materials and adopting renewable
materials.

Pursuit of Excellent Quality

As a leading company of lighting industry, NVC sets up
strict requirements on product safety, stability and reliability
and implements various quality management measures
on product design, R&D, manufacturing and sales. It is
dedicated to improving its product quality and meeting the
needs of its customers.

Compliant Operation

NVC strictly complies with laws and regulations of electronic
products in order to safeguard consumer safety. The sales of
the Group’s products complies with Product Quality Law of the
People’s Republic of China as well as industrial and regional
regulations. We, by strictly following the procedure of inspection,
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R&D and Innovation

NVC is dedicated to research and development of new
technologies and new products. We combine the market
demands with our product professionalization standards
to produce intelligent and healthy products. We have set
up improved R&D systems and achieved integration of the
industry, schools and research institutions through our rich
experiences and continuous inputs. At present, NVC has 4 major
manufacturing bases in China, 2 internationalized R&D centers
and nationally qualified labs. We also have set up overseas
product development centers in line with EU standards. During
the year, the Group had more than 94 new inventions and
patents applications, including 34 utility model applications
and 56 design patent applications, of which, 65 were granted
patents, including 22 utility models and 43 design patents.

The approved key national R&D plan and special project
— Research on High-Efficiency and Long-Life LED Driven
Power Supply Technologies
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As to daily quality examination work, we monitor and survey
our products in procurement stage, intermediate stage and
final stage. In procurement stage, we test the materials from
suppliers in terms of its appearance, size and texture based
on Inspection Flow of Supplied Materials and Raw Material
Inspection, Feedback and Treatment Process to ensure that all
purchased materials complying with the Group’s designed quality
requirements. As for those unqualified products, the Purchase
Department shall return the products, accept after screening or
accept by concession in accordance with Control Procedures for
Unqualified Products.

In the intermediate stage, we, in the production process, set
up several inspection points for product inspection and test by
stationed inspectors of Quality Department based onQuality
Control Procedures for Process Productsand the quality
characteristics of semi-products of different stages of the
production process. After being confirmed qualified, the products
will be labeled with inspection mark, and then recorded in
Product Flow Sheet. Qualified semi-products will be transferred
to next process and related inspection and test data will be put
into the Company’s computer LAN ERP system by designated
personnel.

In the final stage, we control the quality of the finished products,
including conducting quality inspection on multiple items, e.g. air
leak, cleanliness, and appearance inspection. Unqualified finished
products will be disposed of according to Flow of Processing

Quality Abnormality Feedback and Control Procedures for
Unqualified Products, so as to ensure they will not be used.
For unqualified products that can be reworked, we also make

second input and carry out second test.

Finally, the Quality Department will regularly analyze the
monitoring and surveying data about the purchased products,
semi-products in the production process, and finished products.
If any data is found abnormal, it will, according to the Control
Procedures for Correction and Prevention Measuresrequire
related departments to carry out correction and prevention
measures and track such measures for verification.
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Furthermore, the Group has also developed its Management
System for Recall of Defective Consumer Products. We have
formed a product recall group and developed recall plans. If
any consumer product is found defective, we will safely and
quickly recall it. In this case, we will, within 5 working days,
take initiative to file our recall plan with the quality inspection
department of the province where we operate. Then, the Group
will publicly release in a timely manner the recall information
through press conferences, posters, traditional media, network
media and many other channels. We will notify the sellers and
reach a consensus with them about the responsibilities and
actions of recall measures, and take initiative to contact the
consumers. Upon recall, we will immediately process such
recalled products, analyze the defection reasons and develop
feasible prevention and correction measures. Finally, we will
summarize our recall work and submit to the information system
of the provincial quality supervision bureau the Phased Report of
Recall of Defective Consumer Products and Summarized Report
of Recall of Defective Consumer Products. In daily operation,
we will collect teaching materials and cases about product recall
to provide training to related department so as to avoid the
occurrence of similar quality related events.
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Improved Product Certification

Product certification is an important part to ensure product
quality. The Group actively push forward product test and
certification work. In order to ensure the products to fully meet
related safety requirements, the Group conduct routine inspection
and confirmation inspection of the products to be certificated.
The Company establishes Certification Management Department
to undertake application for certification, rectification, renewal of
certification and etc. And as for the renewal of certificates due to
modification of relevant certification standards, the Department
of Standardized R&D System shall provide unified scheme.

At present, the Group headquarters and its production bases
have certificates such as China Compulsory Certificate
(CCC), China Quality Certificate (CQC) and CQC Energy-
saving Certification. For the products to be sold overseas, the
Group also follows the local requirements to obtain American
UL certificate, America DLC certificate and European ENEC
certificate and many other international certificates.

Customer-oriented
Customer Satisfaction

In order to fully understand the customers’ comments on
our products and services, thus, to improve the customer
satisfaction, the Group developed Evaluation Procedure for
Customer Satisfaction and carried out investigation on customer
satisfaction in each quarter. When a product quality problem is
found, we will organize such investigation for specific customers
in order to understand their satisfaction. In 2017, based on the
customer survey, the Group proposed appropriate correction
measures as to the delivery period, product quality, service,
price, etc. to keep improving our services. Furthermore, NVC
provided to employees “7S” customer experience-oriented
systematic marketing training. “7S” is a system including
participation, vision, store, service, product, case and evaluation
experiences. It gives a comprehensive diagnosis of any existing
problems of the store, helps propose practical solutions and
facilitates to improve the quality of our customer service.
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Brand Value

The Group has also received various corporate honors over the
yeas. In 2017, we again were awarded as “China’s 500 Most
Valuable Brands”. As an international lighting corporate, NVC'’s
brand values in the amount of RMB20.685 billion, ranking first
in the lighting industry for 6 consecutive years. Furthermore, the
Group’s Shanghai Qingpu Base was also awarded as “High-tech
Corporate” and “Shanghai Municipal Patent Pilot Corporate”,
selected as a “Professional, Refine, Characteristic and Novel”
small and medium-size corporate, and identified as “Qingpu
District Corporate Technology Center”.

Management of Supply Chains

Suppliers are especially important to the quality of the Group’s
products. Therefore, NVC handles affairs related to suppliers from
two aspects, including the screening standards and management
of suppliers, as well as procurement procedures, in order to
create high quality supply chain platform. As of December 31,
2017, the Group has had a total of 400 material suppliers, most
of which are located in mainland China.

The Group screens and manages suppliers based on the
Procedure for Management and Control of Suppliersit has

developed. Every month, we collect data from suppliers, and
conduct a statistic analysis on aspects such as quality, delivery,
service and cost for grading. For low-grade suppliers, we
implement Quality Improvement Plan and other measurements,
such as lowering supply ratio, or even terminating cooperation.
Those suppliers with serious quality issues shall be examined on
site by personnel from the Group with immediate arrangement.

In addition, the Group has stipulated annual evaluation plan
for suppliers, ensuring that each supplier is examined for at
least once per year. The Group also updates Qualified Supplier
Catalog to timely end the business relationships with unqualified
and uncooperative suppliers. The Group shall convene at least
one conference for all suppliers to convey the new guidelines
and requirements about production quality of the Group and to
share cases of improvement, thus, promoting all suppliers to
improve the quality of the supplied products, therefore, meeting
the needs for the development of both the Group and suppliers.
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The Group will enter into Supply and Demand Cooperation
Agreement with new suppliers. In addition to requiring suppliers
to ensure the quality of products and services, we also examine
the suppliers’ performance in environmental protection and
occupational safety. We will add in such agreement terms
as to environmental protection and occupational safety and
health management. The suppliers shall guarantee that their
products and services comply with laws and regulations as to
environmental protection and workers’ occupational health at
national, local and industrial level. While maintaining production
quality, the Group gives priority to production craft or equipment
without contamination or with less contamination. In addition,
we also add in such agreement terms on confidentiality and
intellectual property rights, in order to protect each party’s
intellectual property rights.

Anti-Corruption Policy

The Group has established anti-corruption systems, especially
standards about professional practice of the board directors and
medium and senior level management, in order to build up a
clean working attitude, to avoid wrong doings that harm interests
of the Company, shareholders and employees and to prevent
illegal behaviours of commercial bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.

We have established Department for Internal Audit as our
standing organ directing reporting to the Company’s Board and

conducting anti-corruption work together with internally and

externally related institutions such as management at all levels
and suppliers. In addition, we internally conduct anti-corruption
trainings through many means, in order to ensure that the
employees understand relevant laws and the Company’s anti-
corruption policy, handling procedures and relevant measures.
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We carry out risk evaluation on anti-fraud annually, including its
importance and potential, and implement in various forms of
necessary measures for internal control of fraud in areas with
high risks, thus containing corruption from the very beginning.
The Group also encourages real-name whistleblowing.
Employees and parties who have a business relationship directly
or indirectly with the Group can report any illegal actions such
as fraud, through reporting telephone, e-mail, mail or by other
means. If what is reported is found true upon investigation, the
informant will be commended and rewarded by the Company.
Meanwhile, we require that we must keep confidential the
informant’s identity to ensure that his/her personal interests
are not infringed. Besides, we have worked out commitment of
honest operation and categorized the commitment separately for
our suppliers, customers and internal employees, encouraging
both internal and external actions to prevent fraud. In 2017,
the Group received no report of any illegal actions, such as,
commercial bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

Fulfillment of Social Welfare Projects

For many years, NVC has insisted on fulfilling its corporate
social responsibility in practical action. It provides fund, material
and other supports to poverty relief, environmental protection,
education and many other aspects by carrying out branded
public welfare activities such as “NVC Guangming School”, “NVC
Public Welfare Forest”.

In addition, the Group actively assumes its social responsibility
by applying market-based means. NVC implements
“30,000+Township Franchised Stores”, in which, a certain ratio
of such stores must assume social responsibility for poverty
relief. NVC promises that within 3 years, it will select from poor
areas not less than 3,000 children from poor families, training
them to work in its plants or sale systems. Meanwhile, it will
also provide fund, goods credit, commercial skill training and
store establishment support to 500 to 1,000 excellent individuals
selected from such employees, in order to lead them to a
commercial road to gaining wealth on their own.
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In July 2017, NVC’'s chairman Wang Donglei was invited to
attend the Forum “Hong Fund 7.27 — Chinese Community
Thinking Date” and delivered “Responsibility Creates Future”
themed speech. She said, corporations shall put emphasis on
taking up social responsibility to help poor areas to get rid of
poverty. NVC supports “Hong Fund (¢ ? —)”, which cares for

the life and study of the left-behind children, joins hands with
Chinese poverty alleviation net and participates in the creation
of the Chinese entrepreneurs’ alliance for poverty alleviation,
to contribute to the cause of China’s poverty alleviation. In
addition, the Group also provides fund support to secondary
schools and primary schools in the place where it operates. In
2017, we provided a total of RMB40,000 to several secondary
schools and primary schools in Huizhou area. We make efforts to
create a society with harmonious-development together through
persistent social public welfare practice.
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Community Participation and Public Welfare

_ Investment

~q®B?]

Public Welfare Donation 10,000 RMB 22
®BI> -©[0 A&

N Unless otherwise specified, 2017 data collection boundary n %1$9-0d 2017E p ¥ x «U
included the Group’s headquarters, Guangdong Huizhou Base, C% l« <Ae? IE?®e
Chongqging Wanzhou Base, Zhejiang Jiangshan Base and E-E?®e 681?2®¢j i
Shanghai Qingpu Base. ?7®

* Unless otherwise specified, 2016 data collection boundary only * %1$9-0d 2016 E p % x «U
included the Group’s headquarters and Guangdong Huizhou C% l« <A¢? IE?2®
Base

ESG Content Index « ™Mpl|

KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Report Chapters/Remarks
Y608z ¥tOESG S8l E SY-Jew

A. Environmental

A. o

Aspect Al Emissions

4 &A1 °0J

General Disclosure Information on: Creation of Green
S>b£E (a) the policies; and Environment —

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that Environmental Compliance
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to air and Management of
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water Emission
and land, and generation of hazardous and non- 6, = N o¥ee

hazardous waste. COM#H
P&; ¢] °6efdcz®Y°ieb ¢l
YIY*[ Y
(@ A i¢

() mAAiT [P }BaY &, (7Y Of



KPls
8Y608z

KPI A1.1

KPI A1.2

KPI A1.3

KPI Al1.4

KPI A1.5

KPI A1.6

Aspect A2

4 &A2

General Disclosure
S>pbP£E

KPI A2.1

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
¥tOESG s8i E

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.
°0JG06¢ é°6 Of

Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

] <°O0ZEBE Qei€%BG\W €%HgE™

Z eE°£D Qf

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

O*[P";YI<ZEDBS Q€% G\W £% g

E*7 eE°£D Qf

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
O*[1":YI<ZEBSE Qe €% G\W £%g

E*Z eE°£D Qf

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results
achieved.

\ T-°0ZYEDsO{O f

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.

\ "#P7¢17;YIYU,e -*[ZYED¢ O

(O f

Use of Resources
U4\
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.
PO4\ UE <eUed¢luag@eYA |

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total
(kwWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g.per unit of production
volume, per facility).

206 E+xY\Y ¢ JDeYeUEhee DO<fZ
€EoawHwWYU Qe W €%gE*Z eE°£D

U4

Report Chapters/Remarks
SY-Jéew

Creation of Green
Environment —
Management of Emission
aN°6M#
Creation of Green

0¢°

Environment —
Management of Emission
6¢° aN°oOM#
Creation of Green
Environment —
Management of Emission
6¢° oN°OM#
Creation of Green
Environment —
Management of Emission
6, aNe°oM#
Creation of Green
Environment —
Management of Emission
6, aNeoM#
Creation of Green
Environment —
Management of Emission

6, aNeoM#

Creation of Green
Environment —
Consumption of Resources
6¢> 8N UF\
Creation of Green
Environment —
Consumption of Resources

6¢° =N UF\



KPls
86Y608z

KPI A2.2

KPI A2.3

KPI A2.4

KPI A2.5

Aspect A3

4 &A3

General Disclosure
S>pbP£E

KPI A3.1

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
¥tOESG S8l E

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g.per unit of
production volume, per facility).
<fAZ¢ W €%gE*Z eE°£D Qf

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.
\ eU4\OB E,O0{O0 f

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing

water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and

results achieved.

\ E_G\aUj b, *Zdg¢d°\a0OB E

c0{0 ¢

Total packaging material used for finished products (in

tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit

produced.

iOUOB\
&Zf

CDBY<ZEBS Qec€%BG\E[

The Environment and Natural Resources
as Al U
Policies on minimizing the issuers’ significant impact on
the environment and natural resources.
-1 [A mgAl UgO }BroYA f

Description of significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken
to manage them.

\' 8z A osgAl UY }BaysS® M#b

éBonyYy f

Report Chapters/Remarks
SY-Jéew

Creation of Green
Environment —
Consumption of Resources
6¢° 8RN U\
Creation of Green
Environment —
Consumption of Resources
a N Uf\
Creation of Green

0¢°

Environment —
Consumption of Resources
6¢ 8RN UF\
Data Summary
pvuES$U

Creation of Green
Environment —
Environmental
Management

6¢° N aM#
Creation of Green
Environment — Green R&D
and Production
a N

0¢° Yalie

[*



KPls
8Y608z

B. Society

B._6

Aspect B1

4 &B1

General Disclosure

S>bP £

KPI B1.1

KPI B1.2

Aspect B2

4 &B2

General Disclosure
S>bP£E

KPI B2.1

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements

¥tOESG S81 E

Employment

te

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer related
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other

benefits and welfare.

P&zZG¢ fteYigUoe®
6ep©-eA Vool >¢E; Y]

@ A i¢

(b) mMAAT [P }BroY &, ¢+7Y Of
Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group

and geographical region.

219eto0eeEQg\9¢,® E+Yip<pf
Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and

geographical region.

219eEg\9¢,® E+Yiptoa f

Health and Safety
p~AE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

PEd6AE "* ny-atp’5 8187Y]

@ A i¢

() mAAiT [P }BaY &, 7Y Of
Number and rate of work-related fatalities.

a~xg.pasY[pea f

*Upey,e;

Report Chapters/Remarks
SY-Jéew

Cohesion of Employees —

Diversity and Harmony and

Respect for Human Rights,

Management of Talents

‘sp"bZNuo©eD/
[Ee[ M#

Cohesion of Employees —
Composition of Employees
‘sp"bZNp-\O
Cohesion of Employees —
Composition of Employees
‘sp"bZNp~\O

Cohesion of Employees —
Occupational Safety and
Health
‘sp"bZN B8AE-

p

During the reporting period,
there was no death due to
occupational injuries

SE «dUbP2"4&s
+Bi[



KPls
86Y608z

KPI B2.2

KPI B2.3

Aspect B3

4 &B3

General Disclosure
S>b £

KPI B3.1

KPI B3.2

Aspect B4

4 &B4

General Disclosure
S>b £

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements

¥tOESG S8i1 E

Lost days due to work injury.

a~/E&O *Upf

Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.
\ O®vY 8 p~AEE£Ddo: €B ¢(9AU

,f

Development and Training
ies CA

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills
for discharging duties at work.Description of training

activities.

pbédotp5 “* aY]/E¢,leYA f\ CA

z f

The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle

management).

219¢tpO69EY%+tM#detM#4 «EZY

ahtpoxaf

The average training hours completed per employee by
gender and employee category.
219¢tp69E+dEntpeOalAy;iUpf

Labour Standards
0" _ &

Information on:
(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child or forced labour.

Pe#R "DvSO Y]
(@ A ig¢

() mMAAT [P }BoY &, ¢«7Y @Of

Report Chapters/Remarks
SY-Jéew

Cohesion of Employees —
Occupational Safety and
Health
‘sp"bZN 8AE-~

p
Cohesion of Employees —
Occupational Safety and
Health
‘sp"bZN 8AE-~

p

Cohesion of Employees —
Training and Development
‘sp"bZNCA~i-

Cohesion of Employees —
Training and Development
‘sp"bZNCA~i.

Cohesion of Employees —
Training and Development
‘sp"bZNCA~i.

Cohesion of Employees —
Diversity and Harmony and
Respect for Human Rights,
‘sp"YONpo©-D/

[ A



KPls
8Y608z

KPI B4.1

KPI B4.2

Aspect B5

4 &B5

General Disclosure
S>pbP£E

KPI B5.1

KPI B5.2

Aspect B6

4 &B6

General Disclosure
S>pP £

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements

¥t OESG S38i

Description of measures to review employment practices

£

to avoid child and forced labour.
\ eAYIO7YED®'5 “¢vSo~f

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices

when discovered.

\ Ti$<e<10 6pPE<10®_YET7S

Supply Chain Management

6baM#

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the

supply chain.

M#6DAaY a¢_6, A f

Number of suppliers by geographical region.
2® E+xY6D pff

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.

\ pel\6D YO7d£IB ped7Y6D p
feaspbeO7YB (9AU,f

Product Responsibility

* U a ,
Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to

Report Chapters/Remarks
SY-Jéew

Cohesion of Employees —
Compliant Operation and
Respect for Human Rights
‘sp " bZN¥ev |/

[ £
During the reporting period,
there was no report of
breach

SE «dUb<e S

Pursuit of Excellent Quality
— Management of Supply
Chains
UEYsU/NebaM#
Pursuit of Excellent Quality
— Management of Supply
Chains
UEYsU/N6baM#
Pursuit of Excellent Quality
— Management of Supply
Chains
UEYsU/NebaM#

Pursuit of Excellent Quality
— Compliant Operation,
Quality Management,
Customer-oriented

health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy UEYsU/ N ¥+% e

matters relating to products and services providedand U/M>e g %o |

methods of redress.

pedde*Uq
co¢brU, Y|
@ A i¢

Y p~AEe?Sez ¢+ +

() mAAiT [P }BaY &, 7Y Of



KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Report Chapters/Remarks

eYe608z ¥tOESG s8Il E SY-Jéew

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to During the reporting period,
recalls for safety and health reasons. there was no recycling
S/IDS60*U<peaAE~ p#_bp2«xYO+ events due to reasons of
af safety and health

SE «dUbPi[2A
E~ p#_peaxY+

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints Pursuit of Excellent Quality
received and how they are dealt with. — Compliant Operation,
Y e6*U¢ Y3apfo¢cbDAU,f Quality Management,

Customer-oriented
UEYsU/N¥.% e
U/M>eg %ol

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and Pursuit of Excellent Quality
protecting intellectual property rights. — R&D and Innovation,

\ ~je¢-a}FI*EPEYDTS Management of Supply
Chains
UEYsU/Nwid-e
6baM#

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Pursuit of Excellent Quality
procedures. — Quality Management
\U/é>@0¢e*Uaxef OEYsU/NU/M>

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy No Material Risks Related
policies, how they are implemented and monitored. to the Company Business
\ |k @-2¢+ A do¢ B ¢9AU ®!8 Ub ¢ },”

, f

Aspect B7 Anti-corruption

4 &B7 A-1

General Disclosure Information on: Pursuit of Excellent Quality

S>bE (a) the policies; and — Anti-Corruption Policy

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that UEYsU/N A-uA
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

Pé#R!$e pece_¢cyzY]j

(@ A i¢

(b) mAAT [P }BoY &, (7Y Of



KPls
8Y608z

KPI B7.1

KPI B7.2

Aspect B8

4 &B8

General Disclosure
S>b £

KPI B8.1

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
¥tOESG s8i E

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the

cases.
80 ,«Ai [Dlfpd (S2 Y-Taunés
Ypf¢egae f

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.
\ #I£D¢X Oedge B ¢9AU,f

Community Investment
3

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

bég ~8 607 _ @& q%-18 z

6yG_ ;BYA f

Focus areas of contribution (e.g.education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).

YIT (56w e
e f

— Fulfillment of Social
Welfare Projects

n+eed " éEe peO

Report Chapters/Remarks
SY-Jéew

During the reporting period,
there was no report of
corruption case

SE «dUPY -1
aaY S

Pursuit of Excellent Quality
— Anti-Corruption Policy
UEYsU/NA-uA

Pursuit of Excellent Quality
— Fulfillment of Social
Welfare Projects
UEYsU/Nv5_6®
B

Pursuit of Excellent Quality
— Fulfillment of Social



TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of NVC
Lighting Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 199 to 404, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters
described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” section of our
report, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in
all material respects, of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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(a)

Impairment of other receivables and
uncertainties relating to financial guarantee
contracts

As set out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements, a subsidiary of the Company (the “Subsidiary”)



(a)

Impairment of other receivables and
uncertainties relating to financial guarantee
contracts (continued)

As set out in Notes 33 and 34 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Subsidiary also entered into
guarantee agreements with another PRC bank in 2013
(the “Guarantee Agreement 1”") and a PRC finance
company in 2014 (the “Guarantee Agreement 2")
respectively, providing guarantees to the PRC bank
and the PRC finance company for their loan facilities
granted to their borrowers. The outstanding loans of
RMB35,497,000 and RMB34,000,000 in relation to the
Guarantee Agreements 1 and 2 were in default in 2015
and 2014 respectively. The PRC bank and the PRC
finance company took legal actions against the respective
borrowers and the guarantors (including the Borrower and
the Subsidiary as guarantors) to recover the loan balances
and interests.

For the Guarantee Agreement 1, according to the first
court judgement in 2016 and the final court judgement
in 2017, the Subsidiary is adjudicated to be jointly liable
for the payment to the PRC bank of the outstanding
loan, plus interest and costs. The Subsidiary has filed
application of retrial of the PRC court judgements and
the commencement of related legal proceeding has
been accepted by the PRC court in January 2018. The
related outcome of the retrial according to the official
legal documents received by the Subsidiary is pending
as of the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements.

For the Guarantee Agreement 2, according to the first
court judgement in 2016 and the final court judgement
in 2017, the Subsidiary is adjudicated to be jointly liable
for the payment to the PRC finance company of the
outstanding loan, plus interest and costs. The Subsidiary
is in the process of applying for protest of the PRC court
judgements.
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(a)

Impairment of other receivables and
uncertainties relating to financial guarantee
contracts (continued)

Accordingly, the Group is of the view that the legal
proceedings in relation to Guarantee Agreements 1 and
2 are still in progress notwithstanding the respective final
court judgements.

The directors, with reference to legal opinions obtained
and other factors, consider that the likelihood of the Group
sustaining losses from the Guarantee Agreements 1 and 2
is remote as it is considered that the loans had sufficient
underlying securities including the Borrower’s guarantees
and the Subsidiary is only one of the guarantors for
the loans. As a result, the directors considered that
no provision thereon is considered necessary as at 31
December 2016 and 2017.

However, the legal proceedings in relation to the Pledge
and Guarantee Agreements and the Guarantee Agreement
1 are still in progress and we are not able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to assess the
likelihood of successfully applying for the protest of the
PRC court judgements by the Subsidiary in relation to
Guarantee Agreement 2 and the likely outcome of such
protest of the PRC court judgements, and we are not able
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to ascertain
the above management assessment. Accordingly we
are not able to assess the likely outcome of the legal
proceedings in respect of the amount that the Group
would recover from the Borrower’s assets as determined
by the court and the amount ultimately to be recovered
from the Borrower in connection with the Pledge and
Guarantee Agreements, and to determine if any provision
arising from the Guarantee Agreements 1 and 2 is
necessary. As a result, we are not able to ascertain the
recoverability of the Recoverable Amount due from the
Borrower and any provision for the Guarantee Agreements
1 and 2 as at 31 December 2017 should be recognised.

-5

(a)

2b  €f-

|UDX>°_=¢éC~)i
A-¥OY"%>I €fe
agdcn« ©%d«MS*

"eonr,6:0d(~A-
XDl¢A-XD2bpé&Y, a
o¥ f of

% oy _{Y, elua
o0dé+©%cn« 21A-
XDl A-XD2OA&OY
«1A dav%, r>HbP
DY éA-€ < >>[Y
A-dp *n®!'uA% r
>YleSoA-[faade
+©% "é 062016 E (2017 E
12031U0* "gaéf

ipdpPé&/8&d¢A-XDgg¢
A-XD1lY, as¥ ft
cd¢AJe { £&..Y2
eC%egY +n®!0 1
A-XD2Ye+7,é:0a
a—Y elg¢le7,é:
Ot "éo—Y « do
CAIl,_{ t&..Y2eC
Ybgh>M#4Y] Y fa
Aad¢Al,Y 1cn«
1,-:0x« >>[ *Y
>XY, ag Y o1
J&¢A-XDINE >
x«Y>Xdul,%>Jleé
1A-XD 1¢A-XD2*
, aéfaadcecAl, %>
claxBDx >>[Y x«

- X ¢ B | @017E12031U0
1A-XD1¢A-XD2 da
Eflbx >>[>° x«
-XY, A0 2017E120
31U1A-XD1 ¢A-XD2 %



(a)

(b)

Impairment of other receivables and
uncertainties relating to financial guarantee
contracts (continued)

Any adjustments to the Recoverable Amount due from
the Borrower and any provision to be recognised as at 31
December 2017 in respect of Guarantee Agreements 1
and 2 would have a consequential impact on the Group’s
net assets as at 31 December 2017 and the Group’s
financial performance for the year then ended. Our audit
opinion on the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2016 was qualified in this
respect.

Provision for loss on financial guarantee contract

As set out in Notes 33 and 34 to the consolidated
financial statements, in addition to the agreements as
mentioned in the above paragraphs, the Subsidiary
entered into a guarantee agreement (the “Guarantee
Agreement 3”) with a PRC bank in 2014, providing
guarantee to the bank for a loan facility granted to its
borrower. The bank loan was in default in 2014 and the
bank took legal actions against the borrower and the
guarantors (including the Subsidiary) to recover the bank
loan balance and interest. A court order was issued to
freeze assets of the guarantors (including the Subsidiary)
in the amount of RMB62,000,000. As a result of the court
order, bank balance of the Subsidiary in the amount of
RMB55,396,000 had been frozen by the bank as at 31
December 2016 which was included in “Restricted bank
balances and short-term deposits” in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016
as set out in Note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements. According to the first court judgement in 2016
and the final court judgement in 2017, the Subsidiary
is adjudicated to be jointly liable for the payment to the
PRC bank of RMB60,000,000, plus interest and costs. In
February 2017, the frozen bank balance of the Subsidiary
has been withdrawn by the court for the purpose of
settlement of the claim by the PRC bank. During the year,
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(b)

Provision for loss on financial guarantee contract
(continued)

the Subsidiary filed an application of retrial of the PRC
court judgements in relation to Guarantee Agreement
During the
year, the Subsidiary has filed an application of protest

3 which was rejected by the PRC court.

of the PRC court judgements and the commencement
of related legal proceeding has been accepted by the
PRC court in March 2018. The related outcome of
the protest according to the official legal documents
received by the Subsidiary is pending as of the date
of approval of these consolidated financial statements.

Accordingly, the Group is of the view that the legal
proceeding is still in progress notwithstanding the final
court judgement and the rejection of the application of
retrial. As at 31 December 2017, the withdrawn amount of
RMB55,396,000 was included in “Prepayments, deposits
and other receivables” in the consolidated statement of
financial position as set out in Note 22 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The directors, with reference to legal opinion obtained and
other factors, consider that the likelihood of the Group
sustaining losses from the guarantee is remote as it is
considered that the bank loan had sufficient underlying
securities and the Subsidiary is only one of the guarantors
for the bank loan. The directors believe that the withdrawn
bank balance will be fully recovered upon the conclusion
of the protest of the PRC court judgements and no
provision on the frozen and subsequently withdrawn
amount is considered necessary as at 31 December 2016
the directors are of
the opinion that no provision on any shortfall between

and 2017 respectively. In addition,

the amount to be ultimately settled by the Group under
the Guarantee Agreement 3 and the Subsidiary’s frozen
and subsequently withdrawn bank balance is considered
necessary as at 31 December 2016 and 2017 respectively.
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(b)  Provision for loss on financial guarantee contract (b) 1 A-¥0O&0aé €fe
(continued)

However, as the legal proceeding is still in progress, we ipd_6, ao¥ t
are not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence ced¢AJe _{ £&..Y2
to assess the likely outcome of the legal proceeding eC¥%oY 1 n®!JI

in respect of whether the Subsidiary is jointly liable for 26 QAE 070 Ou
the payment to the PRC bank of RMB60,000,000 and [ O £60,000wWO©>°g¢ ~C
accordingly whether and to what extent the Group would N« l£,80«—d_ -
recover the withdrawn amount from the court, and we are X¢eDU«puGC-Xpeyvy,
not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence aayY o doc¢AIl,

to ascertain the above management assessment. _{ x&...Y2eC%oY%>
Accordingly, we are not able to ascertain whether any M#4Y] Y faadc¢A
provision on the frozen and subsequently withdrawn J e % > 82017E12031 U J
amount as at 31 December 2017, and any shortfall IP1—V ¢1 d_Y-X
between the amount to be ultimately settled by the Group daéd¢cn« 1%A-
under the Guarantee Agreement 3 and the Subsidiary’s XD3d™* Yu>»— X~
frozen and subsequently withdrawn amount is required to Nn®!'—V ¢1 —d_Y
be made as at 31 December 2017. O A>"eY "XJlée o

2017 E12U31U daéf

Any provisions that should have been made as at 31 , P62017E 120310 dY
December 2017 would have a consequential impact on aéZAcn« 8 2017E12U
the Group’s net assets as at 31 December 2017 and the 310UY *¢en« U
Group’s financial performance for the year then ended. URE YI E$60 }B
Our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements af¢ AAU 2016 E 12U31U
for the year ended 31 December 2016 was qualified in RE Y¥:;1 EVY2¢e
this respect. l1a* -5f

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong tASi%0¥6 2@6E0¥6

Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Aa®6 ™M0olYO¥2 _A€0Y¥
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"). Our 2 _AE™T 2efi _AEd

responsibilities under those standards are further described in ¢CAY2 61 STépal2 ¥

the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated ol EVY?2a, ™MS.. Tfi¥

Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent 0O0¥6 2®6"7¢ 86 28

of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics CAE™AAELE™J¢AImMBdCN «
for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled d(SmCAAES5 lus8cCca,f

our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. ¢CA !d¢eADO {Y2¢&~¢C

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient D¢eG...®% CAY-5 d6?
and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion. bf



The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company'’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. As
described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” section above, we
were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence about
impairment of other receivables and uncertainties relating to
financial guarantee contracts; and provision for loss on financial
guarantee contract. Accordingly we are unable to conclude
whether or not the other information is materially misstated with
respect to these matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. In addition to the matters described in the “Basis
for Qualified Opinion” section of our report, we have determined
the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.
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Refer to Notes 2.3, 3 and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Included in other intangible assets of the Group are trademarks
of RMB270,000,000 with indefinite useful lives as at 31
December 2017.

We focused on this area due to the size of trademarks with
indefinite useful lives. Furthermore, the directors’ assessment
of the value-in-use calculation of the Group’s cash-generating



The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibilities in this regard.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of
our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs

will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken

on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lam Siu Fung
Practising Certificate Number: P05308

Hong Kong, 22 March 2018
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REVENUE

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Year ended 31 December 2017 0 0 20170 120310 0 00O

Notes
W
x] 5
V/OlI
V.= 5

2017 E
RMB’000
w[O A

4,063,163

(2,890,305)

2016
2016 E
RMB’000
w[O A

3,806,329

(2,785,371)



PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Other comprehensive income to
be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations
Fair value gain/(loss) on available-for-sale
financial assets

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

1E; —

10 E & x]
I -+t6 &BE
YIUES&x]]

IQ .8 *[Y
037X

6 /-D *
®a = xB

IEE&x]¥

gheUD&|

N®!1p]
¢>SIi/EB

2017 E
RMB’000
w[O A

331,600

(2,136)

(3,000)

326,464

308,606
17,858

326,464

2016
2016 E
RMB’000
w[O A

178,583

(35,863)

1,000

143,720

117,092
26,628

143,720



NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid land lease payments
Goodwill

Other intangible assets
Investments in associates
Investment in a joint venture
Long term investments
Deferred tax assets
Prepayments

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade and bills receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Income tax recoverable

Other current assets

Held-for-trading investments

Restricted bank balances and
short-term deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and bills payables
Other payables and accruals

Interest-bearing loans and
borrowings

Government grants

Income tax payable

Convertible bonds — derivative
component

Convertible bonds — liability
component

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT

LIABILITIES
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Notes
oW

14
15
16
17
18
46
47
19
22

20
21

22

23
24

25
25

26

27

28

29

45

45

31 December 2017 20170 1200 310

2016
2017 E 2016 E
RMB’000 RMB’000
w[O A w[O A
619,497 650,583
46,119 47,439
21,161 21,161
294,575 312,240
54,518 41,030
100,000 100,000
218,026 23,000
52,258 48,704
429,961 102,252
1,836,115 1,346,409
425,384 401,668
1,092,554 1,218,003
397,213 343,115
11,741 4,596
41,512 25,303
88,786 -
314,422 445,424
1,265,589 1,160,155
3,637,201 3,598,264
820,833 750,036
728,749 749,975
24,940 48,411
2,012 2,026
34,071 24,951
11,933 60,230
421,229 -
2,043,767 1,635,629
1,593,434 1,962,635
3,429,549 3,309,044
continued/...

fJ...



NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Government grants

Deferred tax liabilities

Convertible bonds — liability
component

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners
of the parent

Share capital

Reserves

Proposed final dividend

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

WANG Donglei

T d
Director
e+

¢t A

A p?

E-i° A
IpPANN AA..

¢t A¥

¢>SIAEB

</EB

Notes
o W

29
19

45

30
32
12

2017 E
RMB’000
w[O A

12,112
87,208

99,320

3,330,229

3
3,212,109
29,940

3,242,052

88,177

3,330,229

XIAO Yu
y A
Director

e+

2016
2016 E
RMB’000
w[O A

12,859
82,238

440,272

535,369

2,773,675

2
2,674,734
28,745
2,703,481
70,194

2,773,675



Year ended 31 December 2017 0 0 20170 120310 0 00O
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Year ended 31 December 2017 0 0 20170 120310 0 00O

2016
2017 E 2016 E
RMB’000 RMB’000
w[O A w[O A
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES % z O{$-tZ
Profit before income tax UA; — 435,856 254,054
Adjustments for: Yaght° Aj
Interest income ;1% (25,868) (14,505)
Finance costs (A 42,096 25,769
Share of results of associates b&L ®!86 (17,468) (6,800)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary "ASeen®!
x B - (7,419)
Loss on disposal of items of property, "AJ8e@ Oy
plant and equipment £ée°fyYf& 16,642 30,173
Depreciation of items of property, J8e@O¢ £é
plant and equipment °f+ 82,229 94,069
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments Avkuz®
a#>° 1,319 1,319
Amortisation of other intangible assets lG1— *AvV 4,293 5,007
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment of J8e@O¢£é
property, plant and equipment, net € =—a«d
“=d X (27) 12,807
Impairment of other intangible assets lal— *7= 18,165 -
Impairment of trade receivables, net qobx*>
X = 15,839 38,913
Impairment of prepayments and other kus>eglab x
receivables, net > X= 929 10,594
Reversal of write-down of inventories a<A-0" (14,499) (39,770)
Recovery of bad debts X« X* 11,457 -
Government grants released to consolidated a ¥,;&BEY
statement of profit or loss A p? (16,532) (18,124)
Fair value change of derivative component IpAN ["H
of convertible bonds A.y®ea2 =
(46,228) 46,889
Unrealised exchange differences J $03"X (14,777) 24,482
Wavier of other payables lubu*>€5 (16,718) -
Fair value change of held-for-trading 5*0-3% Y
investments ®2 = 12,004 -
Equity-settled share option expense EB Q..p&ES3O - 7
488,712 457,465
continued/...

fJ...



(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in trade and
bills receivables
Increase in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
Decrease in trade receivables with
maturity more than one year
Increase in other current assets
Increase in trade and bills payables

(Decrease)/increase in other payables
and accruals

Receipt of government grants

Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating
activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Purchases of items of property, plant and
equipment

Dividend received from an associate

Acquisition of interest in a subsidiary

Purchase of long term investments

Purchase of held-for-trading investments

Proceeds from disposal of held-for-trading
investment

Investments in associates

Refund of investment in an associate

Investment in a joint venture

A-€# J°C
qo ¢ C¥%bx*>
TCEH#H o
ku>e-C—-¢
0D x*>#
t@SEQ,Yquo
bx*"C

lat *#

go¢cC¥%bu*>
#

labu*>¢

b I\ CJ
€# o

xQA p?

% O{$-
S®0{i

3z O{$-tZ
Sx;1
"AlJse@ Oy
£e°fYO{»
..0J8e @0,
£éc°f

x _SeL ®!p?
X...Seen®!A£B
...0—,3
...05*0-3
"A5*0-

3 YO{»
6L ®!3

6L ®!73 x>
0¥ ®!3

2017 E
RMB’000
w[O A&

(5,958)

102,864

(55,109)

(16,209)

70,072

(5,505)
15,771

594,638
(100,864)

493,774

25,868

3,203

(397,427)
3,000

(204,268)
(302,669)

202,597

980

2016
2016 E
RMB’000
w[O A&

123,231

(84,479)

(18,900)

13,856
(8,788)

140,891

187,404
16,556

827,236
(83,753)

743,483

14,505

6,873

(138,163)

(752,022)
(22,000)

(7,800)

(100,000)



Year ended 31 December 2017 0 0 20170 120310 0 00O

2016
2017 E 2016 E
RMB’000 RMB’000
w[O A w[O A
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary "ASeen®!
O0{»° - 25,127
Additions to other intangible assets 6AlLT- * (5,995) (23,504)
Decrease in the restricted bank a"sd q
balance and short-term deposits ¢0,A>"C 131,002 214,883
Net cash used in investing activities 3z O\
$- X (543,709) (782,101)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING D z O
ACTIVITIES $-tZ
Capital contribution from non-controlling ¢>Sip #

shareholders shareholders



NVC Lighting Holding Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the
“Group”) was incorporated in the territory of the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) as a limited liability company
on 2 March 2006 and was redomiciled to the Cayman
Islands on 30 March 2010 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The Company’s registered office address is
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands. The Company’s

®! @

d{ki>pb"®!I€I1®
I™dlelen®!UH I«
™e]Sed 2006E30U2U0
dnj'/E¥Ednj"'/
E¥x™w OmYb"a,K ®
If 32010E 3U030Ud | ® !
K & E¥dO% 3 E¥
,7TK22Y®! ,€ 1961 E,7
gd¥% ¥:¢sL ehY €5
p"a, ®IfI®IfAYW

| +"®g % Cricket Square,

shares are listed on the Main Board of Stock Exchange of Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,

Cayman IslandsfI® I'p ... &
O¥L¥tgOP"®!06 j

Hong Kong Limited.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries
comprise the manufacture and sale of lamps, luminaries,
lighting electronic products and related products.
Information on the Group’s subsidiaries is set out in Note
39.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is different from the Company’s
functional currency (United States dollars). These
consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB
because management considers that a substantial
majority of the Group’s transactions are denominated in
RMB and the Group primarily generates and expends cash
in RMB. Accordingly, RMB presents more reliable and
more relevant information about the Group’s transactions.

9f

I®!0 8 %3 >pfe

N®!'Yd 8 <[*¢V
/|"UefiHeklUeomy¢ &
*Ufl« en®!Y @1
6+ W39 f

¥ Eg[OALEE][O
A ™QOedpl®!'Y -/
% OOEOO™ HM#40
% l« }A ...togo[O £
=¢la *[¢O\V$-0
g[OF =dB ¥;I
Eg[OALAOf2ad[O
AEZO~l« tg»élyY
f of



2.1 Basis of Preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), which in collective
term include all applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards
(“IASs”) and Interpretations issued by the IASB, and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
certain financial instruments that have been measured

¥;:1 EWI%T7¢6
_FE %o p6ETc6 _ A
% p6 ™MOo0l~7¢6
EE€ Tl S £ ™eg g
O¥®!a7YbE EU;f
7¢l S_&E <7¢6
_E%p601°-OPGVHO9
7¢l S _fFEeT7¢6 _
EE€T¢c6 _/FE™,;, Gf
a.d¥;1 E <0¥L
¥tgOP"®!CNj9-o
EE |9« E ™" G\b £
>d12Y&0O12_Uid-
2®2 = ZYde—D"H
da.f ¥;1 Eig]
OFO-dd¢c$spP8UdOP
p=i,uz]Qd8YeYw
(000) f

¥:,?

¥:1 E <l« ¢le
n®!3U 2017E 12U31UR
E YI Efen®!Uj

I EY SE ~1®!Y
SE “+«d(®\S¢cY6

A fen®!YB86 I«
{I>SAEYU,T ¥

i E«d\ I>SAEN
R~U %o R f

,—Df&eITUE&Xx] T
anl« N®!1pP[¢ ¢

SIEBdC4-¢c¢>SI A
B $fY qgqfl« Op®

"eetg O*[Y« « *

q Ae/Z£EBex]ed g%
-tSo¥;UEpeVvf



2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described in the accounting policy for subsidiaries
below. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of
any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.
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2.2 Adoption of IFRSs (continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective
1 January 2017 (continued)

Amendments to IAS 7 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional disclosure
that will enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities.

The adoption of the amendments has led to the
additional disclosure presented in the note to the
consolidated statement of cash flows, Note 50.

Amendments to IAS 12 — Recognition of
Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments relate to the recognition of
deferred tax assets and clarify some of the
necessary considerations, including how to account
for deferred tax assets related to debt instruments
measured of fair value.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the clarified treatment
is consistent with the manner in which the Group
has previously recognised deferred tax assets.
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2.2 Adoption of IFRSs (continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective (a)
1 January 2017 (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle — Amendments to IFRS 12, Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to IFRS 12,
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, to clarify
that the disclosure requirements of IFRS 12, other
than the requirements to disclose summarised
financial information, also apply to an entity’s
interests in other entities classified as held for sale
or discontinued operations in accordance with
IFRS 5, Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations.

The adoption of the amendments to IFRS 12
has no impact on these financial statements
as the latter treatment is consistent with the
manner in which the Group has previously dealt
with disclosures relating to its interests in other
entities classified as held for sale or discontinued
operations in accordance with IFRS 5.
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2.2 Adoption of IFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised IFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective

The following new/revised IFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have not

been early adopted by the Group.

Annual Improvements
to IFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle

Annual Improvements
to IFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle

Annual Improvements
to IFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

Annual Improvements
to IFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

Annual Improvements
to IFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

Annual Improvements
to IFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

Amendments to IFRS 2

IFRS 9

Amendments to IFRS 9

Amendments to IFRS 1
First-time adoption of
International Financial
Reporting Standards

Amendments to |IAS
28 Investments in
Associates and Joint
Ventures

Amendments to
IFRS 3 Business
Combinations?

Amendments to IFRS 11
Joint Arrangements

Amendments to IAS 12
Income Taxes

Amendments to IAS 23
Borrowing Costs?

Classification and
Measurement of
Share-Based Payment
Transactiong

Financial Instrument$
Prepayment Features

with Negative
Compensatior?
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2.2 Adoption of IFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised IFRSs that have been issued (b)
but are not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customerst
Amendments to Clarifications to IFRS 15
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customerst
IFRS 16 Leaseg
IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty Over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
IFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
IAS 28 Associate or Joint Venturé

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019

8 The amendments were originally intended to
be effective for periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016. The effective date has now
been deferred/removed. Early application of the
amendments of the amendments continue to be
permitted.
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2.2 Adoption of IFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised IFRSs that have been issued (b)
but are not yet effective (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
— Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standard

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to IFRS 1, First-
time Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards, removing transition provision exemptions
relating to accounting periods that had already
passed and were therefore no longer applicable.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle — Amendments to IAS 28 Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to IAS 28,
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures,
clarifying that a Venture Capital organisation’s
permissible election to measure its associates or
joint ventures at fair value is made separately for
each associate or joint venture.
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2.2 Adoption of IFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised IFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle — Amendments to IFRS 3 Business
Combinations

The amendment clarifies that a company
remeasures its previously held interest in a joint
operation that is a business when it obtains control
of the business. Paragraph 42A is added to clarify
this requirement.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
— Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

The amendment clarifies that a company that
participates in but does not have joint control
over a joint operation, does not remeasure its
previously held interest in the joint operation which
is a business when it obtains joint control of the
business. Paragraph B33CA is added to IFRS 11
to clarify this requirement.

(b)
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2.2 Adoption of IFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised IFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
— Amendments to IAS 12 Income Tax

The amendment clarifies that a company accounts
for all income tax consequences of dividend
payments in the same way as the entity recognised
the originating transaction or event that generated
the distributable profit giving rise to the dividend.
Paragraph 57A to IAS 12 is added to clarify this
point.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
— Amendments to IAS 23 Borrowing Costs

The amendment clarifies that when a qualifying
asset is ready for its intended use or sale and
(some of) the related specific borrowing remains
outstanding, that borrowing is treated as general
borrowings. Paragraph 14 of IAS 23 is amended to
convey this principle.

(b)
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2.2 Adoption of IFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised IFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 2 - Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the
accounting for the effects of vesting and non-
vesting conditions on the measurement of cash-
settled share-based payments; share-based
payment transactions with a net settlement feature
for withholding tax obligations; and a modification
to the terms and conditions of a share-based
payment that changes the classification of the
transaction from cash-settled to equity-settled.

(b)
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2.2 Adoption of IFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised IFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows (the business model
test) and that have contractual terms that give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding
(the contractual cash flow characteristics test)
are generally measured at amortised cost. Debt
instruments that meet the contractual cash flow
characteristics test are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") if
the objective of the entity’s business model is both
to hold and collect the contractual cash flows and
to sell the financial assets. Entities may make an
irrevocable election at initial recognition to measure
equity instruments that are not held for trading
at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity instruments
are measured at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL").

IFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at
FVTPL replacing the incurred loss model in IAS 39
and new general hedge accounting requirements to
allow entities to better reflect their risk management
activities in financial statements.

(b)

Sol1( J[OY-
J%L 7c¢l
S _EE€f-

¢l S _ £ KO9T
+6¢ Z-D *Ii
-e>f2fY %5 P
*gx_¥0$-tZ
€8 |1» +~8 |
105PA "Hdagg¢
¥Oé>—|(}*[$—t
ZpbPés$—tZqX %
Oul-¢ Jp"l-
TLIE¥YO0OS$-tZS
D» A "HdS
>2AVOl 2Ty
"8 |1fY%5b
EX_¥0$-tZo¢
/-D *d&E - -@Y¥
0$-tZ$D» ~A
"H2®a = ]I
UE&X]E®?2 =
JIGE & x] ™ Zf
Yo B<E®%OU*
" P« 0¢sd2®2
= ]110E & x]
Z(¢5*0-"AEB"
HfOPIUA ¢ A£EB
"H2®2a = ]&8B
€®2 = ]&B ™
Zf

7
1
]

7 ¢l S _ £ KT

"G\6OP(t2®

a = 1&B 77 -
*T ok, f& =

U
_AERKITTF[T&]
le¢g- S>AUG
exd+¥% »bPO®
81 @EAHI,"M
#z f



(b) So1( J[OY-
J%L 7c¢l
S EEf-



2.2 Adoption of IFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised IFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (continued)

Furthermore, the long-term investments will be

classified as financial assets at FVTOCI or FVTPL
based on the Group’s business model in managing

the investments under IFRS 9. The classification
may have an impact on the financial position and

results of operations.

The above assessments were made based on
an analysis of the Group’s financial assets as at
31 December 2017 on the basis of the facts and
circumstances that existed at that date. As facts
and circumstances may change during the period
leading up to the initial date of application of IFRS
9, which is expected to be 1 January 2018, the
assessment of the potential impact is subject to
change.

Amendments to IFRS 9 — Prepayment Features
with Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial
assets with negative compensation can be
measured at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income if specified conditions
are met — instead of at fair value through profit or
loss.
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2.2 Adoption of IFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised IFRSs that have been issued (b)
but are not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services.
IFRS 15 supersedes existing revenue recognition
guidance including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11
Construction Contracts and related interpretations.

IFRS 15 requires the application of a five-step
approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a
customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations
in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each

performance obligation
Step 5: Recognise revenue when each
performance obligation is satisfied

IFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the
current approach taken under IFRS. The standard
also significantly enhances the qualitative and
guantitative disclosures related to revenue.
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2.2 Adoption of IFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised IFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
customers (continued)

Management has performed a preliminary
assessment and expects that the recognition of
sales rebates under IFRS 15 may affect the amount
of the transaction price to which the Group expects
to be entitled in sale transactions. This may result
in a significant impact on the Group’s financial
position and results of operations. Besides, there
will be additional disclosure requirement under
IFRS 15 upon its adoption. IFRS 15 is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018 and earlier application is permitted.

Amendments IFRS 15 — Clarifications to IFRS
15 Revenue from Contracts with customers

The amendments to IFRS 15 included clarifications
on identification of performance obligations;
application of principal versus agent; licenses of
intellectual property; and transition requirements.
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2.2 Adoption of IFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised IFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 16 — Leases

IFRS 16, which upon the effective date will
supersede IAS 17 — Leases and related
interpretations, introduces a single lessee
accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases
with a term of more than 12 months, unless the
underlying asset is of low value. Specifically,
under IFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise
a right-of-use asset representing its right to use
the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation
of the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease
liability, and also classifies cash repayments of the
lease liability into a principal portion and an interest
portion and presents them in the statement of cash
flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease
liability are initially measured on a present value
basis. The measurement includes non-cancellable
lease payments and also includes payments to be
made in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise an option to extend the lease,
or to exercise an option to terminate the lease. This
accounting treatment is significantly different from
the lessee accounting for leases that are classified
as operating leases under the predecessor
standard, IAS 17.
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2.2 Adoption of IFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised IFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 16 — Leases (continued)

In respect of the lessor accounting, IFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in IAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases
or finance leases, and to account for those two
types of leases differently.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-

cancellable operating lease commitments of
approximately RMB4,991,000 as disclosed in

Note 36(b). A preliminary assessment indicates
that these arrangements will meet the definition of
a lease under IFRS 16, and hence the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding

liability in respect of all these leases unless they
qualify for low value or short-term leases upon the
application of IFRS 16. In addition, the application
of new requirements may result in changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above. However, it is not practicable to

provide a reasonable estimate of the financial effect
until the directors complete a detailed review.
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2.2 Adoption of IFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised IFRSs that have been issued (b)
but are not yet effective (continued)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments (continued)

Under the Interpretation, the entity shall determine
whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment
separately or together based on which approach
better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.
The entity shall also assume the tax authority will
examine amounts that it has a right to examine and
have full knowledge of all related information when
making those examinations. If the entity determines
it is probable that the tax authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment, then the entity should
measure current and deferred tax in line with its tax
filings. If the entity determines it is not probable,
then the uncertainty in the determination of tax is
reflected using either the “most likely amount” or
the “expected value” approach, whichever better
predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.
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2.2 Adoption of IFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised IFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 — Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or
losses to be recognised when an entity sells or
contributes assets to its associate or joint venture.
When the transaction involves a business the gain
or loss is recognised in full, conversely when the
transaction involves assets that do not constitute a
business the gain or loss is recognised only to the
extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the
joint venture or associate.

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of adopting the above standards and
amendments to existing standards to the Group.
Except for those disclosed above, the Group has
so far concluded that the application of these new
pronouncements will have no material impact on
the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s investments
in subsidiaries that are not classified as held for sale in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.
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2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining significant
influence are similar to those necessary to determine
control over subsidiaries.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the Group’s share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
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2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included
as part of the Group’s investments in associates or joint
ventures.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group
elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

6L ®!co¥ ®!Y3
€/

l« P&L ®!1¢s¥ ®!
x.. 86qlUE&X*X]D+
9%U]¥;&BE¢ ¥;10C&E
&x]fa.dJ\YdL ®
'Db¥ ®'YAB%OS”
dEl« 6V+<10Y¥;
/A B E»OD &, f
l« ~IL ®'D¥ ®!
"eetg¥YJ $&B2l«
6L ®!D¥ ®!Y3 U
dd(%J $&0 CcusS7
+ * $ =/£0.fax ..
L ®!'DY¥ ®!p*[Y
‘“W*% l« 6L ®!DY¥
®!13 YSA . e*f

t8¥;¢

T8Y¥: W®\x ..., ]*f7

+"A Wegx ..U, Y®?2

= Qd ®2 =% l« 7

+Y *8x..U0,Yy®?*
U~A 1

PI[OAY Ad¢l« i

gl _—x . . U>SEYplA
BY<qfd¢t8¥;+dl

« 0¢Jlg®2 =P — x

.U k© * =Yb&a
7d Q6 —x..Uns$0rp
[EB((S'P[A ;606N

O02a7+x&% Y * =Y

¢>S1EBf¢>SIEBY
OpPluA. . W2®a =
Zfx ... 8016*[0 %
§Of

—el« — X ...



2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition-date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability
that is a financial instrument and within the scope of IAS
39 is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
either recognised in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration
is not within the scope of IAS 39, it is measured in
accordance with the appropriate IFRS. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests in
the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in
a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques

for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.
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2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.
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2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued) ¢—D * = €f-

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting 8¢ SE KdieyYy JI
period as to whether there is an indication that previously b&e |@»S%OY =&
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or 0"ZA™D « Cf% $
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the &ed A6 x « — X f
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised @»%O©Y *€ ‘0. =
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is &O0AB\G>> ° *Y
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates x«-XO0®\Y $

used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, UDa«d(bPé&-X"{tCy
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that E@»E ( 11 ° *1©E
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/ T=&0pDPY*&=£S5S0
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for 8, # JAvVda«™ =
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment &06*[,e ]&BE(
loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the o *2 —Xe*dAE™
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at =& 0a«6i¥ *Y

a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the Pbée6 A o*f

impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties éLu
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: JSULY¥heaedZEV % ~
l« PELj
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that (@) U% S @ [{D [{
person’s family and that person "6 .-W2ea0pdp
[{
0] has control or joint control over the Group; (i >S BDee> S|
« |
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) Al« P }B
aib
(i) is a member of the key management (iii) % | « DI ®!
personnel of the Group or of the parent of N®!'YO M#
the Company; [pYleSal

pi



2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Related parties (continued)

or

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);
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2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Related parties (continued) BLUES-

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (i) @@ « O £ 9 {
influence over the entity or is a member of Av b }Bauo
the key management personnel of the entity bbn Y% €D
(or of a parent of the entity); and Yo " N ® e

~6 M # 40
pPi¢

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of (vii) P &% db* %
which it is a party, provides key management « , OpYS
personnel services to the Group or the Ud£1l« DI
Company'’s parent. ®!'N®!d6bd

YM#[p f
Close members of the family of a person are those family a[{Ye K% +—k,0d
members who may be expected to influence, or be ~% t tgUBuo o[
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity Pa a[{BrY +<AO
and include: p( <j
0] that person’s children and spouse or domestic (i) a[{Ye~¢ &8 b
partner; e« i
(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic (i) a[{Y& D«
partner; and Ye~ig
(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse (iii) al[{b =a[{Ya

or domestic partner. PDe-a« Yenf



2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. When an item of property,
plant and equipment is classified as held for sale or when
it is part of a disposal group classified as held for sale,
it is not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance
with IFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting policy
for “Non-current assets held for sale”. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are

as follows:

Buildings 18 to 40 years
Leasehold improvements 3 to 5 years
Plant and machinery 3 to 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 2 to 5 years

Motor vehicles 4 to 8 years
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2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued) JBe@O¢Ee €f-
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment %J8e@O ¢ £ T fA
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated ..HP”"e 4\E dE °
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is f"O012¥%¥#? +a ¢A
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and .. dpESA..H9 Q=
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if fog =e 4\E, ¢+
appropriate, at least at each financial year end. U,8C28¢IAE Q
Ut ¢ _ d( G..<1h~*
AEf
An item of property, plant and equipment including Yeceh©® " J8e@O0¢ £é
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised <, A...S"AbPbk,
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are "624\D"Apé *p*
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2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on

initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets

acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the

date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life on the straight-line basis and assessed

for impairment whenever there is an indication that the

intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period

and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a

finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not
amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable.
If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Trademarks

Trademarks are accounted for as intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and are not amortised. They are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Computer software

Computer software is stated at cost less any impairment

losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its
estimated useful lives ranging from five to ten years.
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2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Customer relationships

Contractual customer relationships are stated at cost
and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives ranging from six months to five
years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or
sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell
the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project; and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is
expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-
line basis over the commercial lives of the underlying
products not exceeding five to ten years, commencing
from the date when the products are put into commercial
production.
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2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Patents

The patents were granted for a period of 10 years by the
relevant government agency in different jurisdiction with
the option of renewal at the end of this period. Patents
are stated at cost less any impairment losses and are
amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives of 5 to 10 years.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title,
are accounted for as finance leases. The Group had no
financial leases during the current year or the prior year.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases net of any incentives received from
the lessor are charged to the statement of profit or loss
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the entire
lease payments are included in the cost of the land
and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and
equipment.
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2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and
available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued) s ¢lu-D * €/
Subsequent measurement Y V4
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends -D *~ f 201%™+
on the classification as follows: 0%hj
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2®2 = ]&B"-D *
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include A@&B*g®2 =%~ _
financial assets held for trading and financial assets D * <tgl-D *¢
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through <o OU—8>%2®2 =
profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for ]&B"-D *f-D *
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the “gd,- %fYp..odAZAE
near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded +0%tgl *fo¢—8>
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless % P O"AU HE>E 7¢
they are designated as effective hedging instruments as 6 _ AK39TdIl £ <
defined by IAS 39. +N"2]1 [-D"H «

" [-D"Hp 6% to

I-D *f
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are 2®2 = ]&B"-D *
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value Z2k®a =+]1 K1
with positive net changes in fair value presented as other EdMY ®2 = O0O-0
income and gains and negative net changes in fair value y,— ETlux]egxByg¢ Y
presented as finance costs in the statement of profit or ®2a = 0«06, —E"I
loss. These net fair value changes do not include any I\f®a = X(”
dividends or interest earned on these financial assets, < -D *"ptb;
which are recognised in accordance with the policies set id p!HD;*WixhO
out for “Revenue recognition” below. "x]%O©™M1e"A KLOF
Financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair 8ce%©UB8>%2®2 =
value through profit or loss are designated at the date ]&B"-D *Wo<ce%
of initial recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are oU,¢cABL¥7¢6 _E
satisfied. K391~ _A£U0* 8>f
The Group has not designated any financial assets upon l« }JZ, —=D *0«¢
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. c%OU0U85>%2®2 = ]
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2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
guoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortisation is included in other income and gains
in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in finance costs for loans and in other expenses for
receivables.
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2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held to
maturity when the Group has the positive intention
and ability to hold then to maturity. Held-to-maturity
investments are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method less any allowance
for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in other income and gains in the statement of profit or
loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in other expenses.

The Group had no held-to-maturity financial investments
during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments
and debt securities. Equity investments classified as
available for sale are those which are neither classified as
held for trading nor designated as at fair value through
profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those
which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of
time and which may be sold in response to needs for
liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions.
The Group’s long term investments are classified under
available-for-sale financial assets.
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2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued) s ¢lu-D * €fe
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued) 6 /-D3 €fe
After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial YceL© d 6 [/-D3
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2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash

flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.
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2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exist if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred).
The present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues
to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and
is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with
any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has
been realised or has been transferred to the Group.
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2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets —D * = €£f-
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2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Financial liabilities
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2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Loans and borrowings (continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the
amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation.
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2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in
the statement of financial position, net of transaction
costs. On issuance of convertible bonds, the fair value of
the liability component is determined using a market rate
for an equivalent non-convertible bond; and this amount is
carried as a long term liability on the amortised cost basis
until extinguished on conversion or redemption. If the
conversion option is classified as an equity instrument, the
remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion
option that is recognised and included in shareholders’
equity, net of transaction costs. The carrying amount of
the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent
years. Transaction costs are apportioned between the
liability and equity components of the convertible bonds
based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability
and equity components when the instruments are first
recognised.

If the conversion option of convertible bonds exhibits
characteristics of an embedded derivative, it is separated
from its liability component. On initial recognition,
the derivative component of the convertible bonds is
measured at fair value and presented as part of derivative
financial instruments. Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the derivative component
is recognised as the liability component. Transaction
costs are apportioned between the liability and derivative
components of the convertible bonds based on the
allocation of proceeds to the liability and derivative
components when the instruments are initially recognised.
The portion of the transaction costs relating to the liability
component is recognised initially as part of the liability.
The portion relating to the derivative component is
recognised immediately in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities -D ATA"RY%©

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation .. A°h~a — 8P _

under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires. PEf d-D AZ—"R%Of

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another %$p-D A_+SOA[g

from the same lender on substantially different terms, a>vlj .~ AO _pd

or the terms of an existing liability are substantially D$bhb A~asr } L

modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as daotibL Z—V % "

a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of RrOa A¢g¥%o©- A°

a new liability, and the difference between the respective #dbpe*&=""X0&B &

carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit % O f

or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments éV-D"H

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and LOA..$UATS° 1,v

the net amount is reported in the statement of financial SB “"AE; éVS®yo-

position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to Xdoub o X QbB-U

offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention $ *¢MUA dAE-D

to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle *; Ai sevd (z -

the liabilities simultaneously. Xe]l K1E«f

Derivative financial instruments [-D"H

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised [-D"H<«<e2 m [¥

at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract e...U"®2 =%odl 2

is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair ®a = - Zfhpe®a

value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value =% Mpd A [TH2

is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative. *e*xd%h®2 =% pd
E2 Aexf

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of [THa®@2 = O*]

derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or ", &Bi\Y ]&BEd

loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, “$-tZAU"POA ..

which is recognised in other comprehensive income. LdIBIUE&X]*LOF
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2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on
certain products are recognised based on sales volume
and past experience of the level of repairs and returns,
discounted to their present values as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all
taxable temporary differences, except:

. when the deferred income tax liability arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and a joint venture, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
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2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

. in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and a joint venture, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.
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2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released to
the statement of profit or loss over the expected useful
life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments or
deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
released to the statement of profit or loss by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.

Where the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets,
the grants are recorded at the fair value of the non-
monetary assets and released to the statement of profit or
loss over the expected useful lives of the relevant assets
by equal annual instalments.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods
have been transferred to the buyer, usually on despatch
of the goods, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold.
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2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest rate method by applying the rate
that discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases is recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Royalty income

Royalties are recognised on an accrual basis in
accordance with the substance of the relevant agreement.

Handling income

Handing income is recognised when services are
provided.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).
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2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair values of share options
are determined by management using the Black-Scholes
valuation model, or a binomial option pricing model, where
appropriate.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled in the employee benefit expense.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge
or credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-vesting
condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.
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2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were
a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.
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2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Other employee benefits
Defined contribution plan for the PRC employees

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, the
employees of the Group’s subsidiaries operating in the
PRC are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. The
Group’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC are required
to contribute a certain percentage of the salaries of their
employees to the central pension scheme. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the central pension
scheme is to pay the ongoing required contributions.
Contributions are charged to the statement of profit or
loss when they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.
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2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Sales tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the
amount of sales tax, except:

(a) where the sales tax incurred on a purchase of
assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case the sales tax is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the
asset or as part of the expense item as applicable;
and

(b) receivables and payables that are stated with the
amount of sales tax included.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable
to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables
or payables in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as
a separate allocation of share premium within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they
have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved by
the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a
liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.
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2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
RMB, which is different from the Company’s functional
currency of United States Dollar (“US$"). Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. All differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss with the exception of monetary items that
are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s net
investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised
in other comprehensive income until the net investment
is disposed of, at which time the cumulative amount is
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss. Tax charges
and credits attributable to exchange differences on those
monetary items are also recorded in other comprehensive
income.
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2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e. translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of the Company and certain
subsidiaries are currencies other than RMB. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the
end of the reporting period and their statements of profit
or loss are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the foreign currency translation reserve, a separate
component of equity. On disposal of a subsidiary with a
functional currency other than RMB, the component of
other comprehensive income relating to that particular
subsidiary is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.
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2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of the Company and certain
subsidiaries, whose functional currencies are not RMB,
are translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of the Company and certain subsidiaries, whose
functional currencies are not RMB, which arise throughout
the year are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, which
has the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements:

Corporate income taxes

Significant management judgements on the future
tax treatment of certain transactions are required in
determining income tax provisions. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of
such transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in tax legislation.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Fair value measurement of derivative financial
instrument

Convertible bonds - derivative component included in
the Group’s financial statements requires measurement
at, and/or disclosure of, fair value. In assessing the fair
value of the conversion option giving rise to the derivative,
the generally accepted option pricing model was used
to calculate the fair value. The option pricing model
requires the input of subjective assumptions, including
the expected volatility and yield. Any changes in these
assumptions can significantly affect the estimate of the
fair value of the derivative.

Fair value measurement

Certain assets and liabilities included in the Group’s
financial statements require measurement at, and
disclosure of, fair value. Further details of fair value
measurement are disclosed in Note 42. The Group
measures the following items at fair value:

(i) Convertible bonds — derivative component (Note
45)

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 47)

(iii)  Held-for-trading investments (Note 24)

More detailed information in relation to the fair value
measurement of the items are set out in the respective
notes.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Useful lives of other intangible assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives for its
intangible assets based on their best estimate on the

expected future cash flows from the assets. The useful

lives of the Group’s trademarks were estimated to be

indefinite. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
tested for impairment at least annually and at other times
when such an indication exists. Further details are set out
in Note 17.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

The Group has to exercise judgement in determining
whether an asset is impaired or the event previously
causing the asset impairment no longer exists, particularly
in assessing (i) whether an event has occurred that may
affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset
value has not been in existence; (ii) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (iii)
the appropriate key assumption to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash
flow projections are discounted using appropriate rates.
Changing the assumptions selected by management to
determine the level of impairment, including the discount
rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could affect the net present value used in the
impairment test significantly.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. Further
details are set out in Note 19.

Recognition of a deferred tax liability for withholding
taxes

The PRC New Corporate Income Tax Law, which became
effective on 1 January 2008, states that the distribution of
dividends by a foreign-invested enterprise established in
Mainland China to its foreign investors, from its earnings
after 31 December 2007, shall be subject to withholding
corporate income taxes at a rate of 10%. The Group
carefully evaluates the necessity of dividend distribution
of its PRC subsidiaries out of profits earned after 31
December 2007 and makes decisions on such dividend
distribution based on the senior management’s judgement.
Details are set out in Note 19.

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the
accounting policy for research and development costs
in Note 2.3. Determining the amounts to be capitalised
requires management to make assumptions regarding the
expected future cash generation of the assets, discount
rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits.
Further details are set out in Note 17.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the
goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. Further details are
given in Note 16.

Impairment provision for trade and other receivables

The provision policy for doubtful debts of the Group is
based on the ongoing evaluation of the collectability and
ageing analysis of the outstanding receivables and on
management’s judgement. A considerable amount of
judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of these receivables, including creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each customer. If the financial
conditions of the customers of the Group were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments, additional impairment may be required.

Provision for loss on financial guarantee contracts

The Group exposes to the risk of loss arising from legal
proceedings as mentioned in Note 33. Due to potential
outcomes and uncertainties around the legal proceedings,
significant management judgement on determining
the provision amount, if any, to be recorded in the
consolidated financial statements is required.

l« GCEE>> ‘bl
$ =fpe + 4
Y$-* Y 4\
4\ =0dl« 2

k,$—* J8*[YS$
—tZ2d2¢0s¥GY:$
g Q $-tZYS$=ft
SE <106+W16f

goclibxs>° =zaé

l« A 2AEYX*A J
AlJx«PDx>°Y x«l*
5fY (ft *gx d |
M#4:UIl * L*_eéf
Y Dx>°YaNr $ebé
t }Z:Ud <¢ OY
1'e@»0>%}3fIl«
OYl K1F-d=g¢lu
>eb7®dAE2* X. =1

| A-¥O0&0aé

e B3O dIl« &W

acOlTY&o, f_8
, ame‘' Y "l
ide A>>¥:1 E-
%}Yaé-—XE¥%ber }
M#:Uf



BM#FYdl« 261*
U¢ V08 ©dE=+g
hgH S8 +Aj



Operating Segment Information (continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit or loss, which is a measure of adjusted
profit or loss before income tax. The adjusted profit or
loss before income tax is measured consistently with
the Group’s profit or loss before income tax except that
interest income, finance costs, unallocated income and
gains as well as head office and corporate expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the then prevailing market prices.

Since total assets, liabilities and capital expenditures for
each reportable segment are not regularly provided to
the chief operating decision maker, the directors are of
the opinion that the disclosure of such amounts is not
necessary.
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Segment revenue:
Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales

Reconciliation
Elimination of intersegment sales

Revenue

Segment results

Reconciliation

Elimination of intersegment results

Interest income

Recovery of bad debts

Wavier of other payables

Fair value change of the derivative
component of convertible honds

Unallocated income and gains

Corporate and other unallocated
expenses’

Los